
APRIL 7, 2021 
VIDEO CONFERENCE 

4:00 P.M. Closed Session; 5:00 P.M. Regular Session 
201 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 

MAYOR Paul McNamara 
DEPUTY MAYOR Michael Morasco 

COUNCIL MEMBERS Consuelo Martinez 
Tina Inscoe 
Joe Garcia 

CITY MANAGER Jeffrey Epp 
 CITY CLERK Zack Beck 

CITY ATTORNEY Michael McGuinness 
DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT Mike Strong 

DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING SERVICES Julie Procopio 



2 

COVID-19 PUBLIC SERVICE ANNOUNCEMENT 

Pursuant to Governor Newsom’s Executive Orders, including N-25-20 and N-29-20: Certain Brown 
Act requirements for the holding of a public meeting have been temporarily suspended and 
members of the Escondido City Council and staff will participate in this meeting via teleconference. 
In the interest of reducing the spread of COVID-19, members of the public are encouraged to 
submit their agenda and non-agenda comments online at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx.  Council Chambers will be closed.      

Public Comment: To submit comments in writing, please do so at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx. 

Depending on the volume and/or similarity of public comments, and pursuant to the City Council 
Rules of Procedure, the Mayor or Presiding Councilmember may limit the number of comments to be 
read and/or limit the amount of time each comment may be read.  It is in the interests of members 
of the public who desire that their statement be read out loud to be mindful of this potential 
limitation when drafting their comment.  The entirety of all comments received from the public will 
be made a part of the record of the meeting.       

The meeting will be available for viewing via public television on Cox Communications Channel 19 
(Escondido only). The meeting will also be live streamed online at the following link: 
https://www.escondido.org/meeting-broadcasts.aspx 

In the event a quorum of the City Council loses electrical power or suffers an internet connection 
outage not corrected within 15 minutes, the meeting will be adjourned. Any items noticed as public 
hearings will be continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council. Any other 
agenda items the Council has not taken action on will be placed on a future agenda. 

ELECTRONIC MEDIA: 
Electronic media which members of the public wish to be used during any public comment period should be submitted 
to the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the Council meeting at which it is to be shown.   

The electronic media will be subject to a virus scan and must be compatible with the City’s existing system.  The media 
must be labeled with the name of the speaker, the comment period during which the media is to be played and contact 
information for the person presenting the media.   

The time necessary to present any electronic media is considered part of the maximum time limit provided to speakers. 
City staff will queue the electronic information when the public member is called upon to speak.  Materials shown to 
the Council during the meeting are part of the public record and may be retained by the Clerk.   

The City of Escondido is not responsible for the content of any material presented, and the presentation and content 
of electronic media shall be subject to the same responsibilities regarding decorum and presentation as are applicable 
to live presentations. 

https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/agenda-position.aspx
https://www.escondido.org/meeting-broadcasts.aspx


3 

April 7, 2021 
4:00 p.m. Meeting 

Mitchell Room 
Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

In addition to speaking during particular agenda items, the public may address the Council on any item which 
is not on the agenda provided the item is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Council.  State law 
prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such items, but the matter may be referred to the City 
Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please refer to the back page of the agenda for 
instructions.) Speakers are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications. 

CLOSED SESSION: (COUNCIL/RRB) 

I. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION (Government Code 
§54956.9(d)(1))

a. Newell v. City of Escondido, et. al.
Case No. 37-2020-00023879-CU-PA-NC

b. Noah Werner v. City of Escondido, et. al.
Case No. 37-2021-00011594-CU-OR-NC

c. Building Industry Association of S.D. County v. City of Escondido
Case No. 37-2021-00008423-CU-MC-CTL

II. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS (Government Code § 54957.6)
a. Agency representative: Jeffrey Epp (City Manager) and/or designee

Employee organization: Maintenance and Operations Bargaining Unit (Teamsters)
b. Agency representative: Jeffrey Epp (City Manager) and/or designee

Employee organization: ECEA Unit (ACE and Supervisory)
c. Agency representative: Jeffrey Epp (City Manager) and/or designee

Employee organization: Police Officers’ Association Non-Sworn Bargaining Unit 

ADJOURNMENT 



4 

April 7, 2021 
5:00 P.M. Meeting 

Escondido City Council 

CALL TO ORDER 

MOMENT OF REFLECTION: 
City Council agendas allow an opportunity for a moment of silence and reflection at the beginning of the evening meeting.  
The City does not participate in the selection of speakers for this portion of the agenda, and does not endorse or sanction 
any remarks made by individuals during this time.  If you wish to be recognized during this portion of the agenda, please 
notify the City Clerk in advance.   

FLAG SALUTE 

ROLL CALL: Garcia, Inscoe, Martinez, Morasco, McNamara 

PROCLAMATIONS:     Adult Education Week, April 19 - 23 
 Fair Housing Month 

CLOSED SESSION REPORT 

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda.  (Please 
refer to the back page of the agenda for instructions.) NOTE:  Depending on the number of requests, comments 
may be reduced to less than 3 minutes per speaker and limited to a total of 15 minutes. Any remaining speakers 
will be heard during Oral Communications at the end of the meeting. 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Items on the Consent Calendar are not discussed individually and are approved in a single motion.  However, 
Council members always have the option to have an item considered separately, either on their own request 
or at the request of staff or a member of the public. 
1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)



5 

2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
Request the City Council approve the City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

• 351100 - 351270 dated March 17, 2021
• 351271 - 351478 dated March 24, 2021
Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled

4. ANNUAL STATE MANDATED INSPECTION COMPLIANCE REPORT -
Request the City Council approve acknowledging the Fire Department's report of compliance with
annual State mandated inspections.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Fire Department: Rick Vogt)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-29 

5. AUTHORIZATION OF ESRI ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor to execute, on behalf of the City of Escondido
(“City”), a Small Municipal and County Enterprise Agreement (“SGEA”) with Environmental Systems
Research Institute, Inc. (“ESRI”) for software and maintenance services.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Information Systems Department: Rob Van De Hey)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-39 

6. SUNRISE PROJECT TRAFFIC MITIGATION AGREEMENT -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Mayor to execute a Traffic Mitigation Funding
Agreement with Lennar Homes, the Developer of a 192-unit multi-family residential project with the
City of San Marcos, to fund mitigation measures within the City of Escondido.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Engineering Services Department: Julie Procopio)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-31 

7. CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR THE PURCHASE OF CHEMICALS FOR THE WATER AND
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS -
Request the City Council approve authorizing the Director of Finance to exercise the last year renewal
option of the purchase order contracts, to purchase chemicals used at the Water and Wastewater
Treatment Plants and approve the unit price increases for FY 2021/22.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-46 

8. AUTHORIZATION OF PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT, EASEMENT, AND PLOT PLAN
APPROVAL -
Request the City Council approve entering into an agreement with San Diego Gas and Electric
(“SDG&E”) for the installation and operation of electric vehicle charging stations (“EV Stations”) and
related underground and above-ground equipment on City-owned property within the Grape Day
parking lot adjacent to Woodward Avenue.  The request also includes granting SDG&E an easement
tor the installation and operation of the EV Stations.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Community Development Department: Mike Strong)
RESOLUTION NO. 2021-52 



CONSENT RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES (COUNCIL/RRB) 

The following Resolutions and Ordinances were heard and acted upon by the City Council/RRB at a previous 
City Council/Mobilehome Rent Review meeting.  (The title of Ordinances listed on the Consent Calendar are 
deemed to have been read and further reading waived.) 

CURRENT BUSINESS 

9. APPROVAL OF CITY MANAGER AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT TO EXISTING CITY
MANAGER RETIREE APPOINTMENT AGREEMENT –
Request the City Council approve an Employment Agreement between the City of Escondido and Sean
McGlynn to perform the responsibilities of and serve as the City Manager; and approve First Amendment
to Retiree Agreement with Jeffrey Epp.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (City Attorney's Office: Michael McGuinness)
a). RESOLUTION NO. 2021-49   b). RESOLUTION NO. 2021-52 

10. APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) BETWEEN THE CITY OF
ESCONDIDO AND THE US SOCCER FOUNDATION RELATED TO THE INSTALLATION OF TWO
MINI-PITCH/FUTSAL COURTS IN WASHINGTON PARK -
Request the City Council approve to a) authorize the Deputy City Manager/Director of Communications
and Community Services or her designee to accept a grant from the US Soccer Foundation to fund two
Mini-Pitch/Futsal Courts in Washington Park, b) execute all documents necessary for the management
and completion of the grant scope; and c) authorize the necessary budget adjustment needed to
establish a new project number for tracking and spending of grant funds.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Communications and Community Services Department:
Danielle Lopez)

RESOLUTION NO. 2021-54 

11. DALEY RANCH MITIGATION BANK CREDITS -
Request the City Council discuss Mitigation Bank Credits per Deputy Mayor Morasco's requisition during 
the February 10, 2021 City Council meeting.

Staff Recommendation: None (Utilities Department: Christopher McKinney; Community 
Development Department: Mike Strong)

12. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT UPDATE -
Request the City Council receive and file and update on the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 and the 
estimated funding allocation to the City of Escondido.

Staff Recommendation: Receive and File (Finance Department: Christina Holmes)

13. APPOINTMENT AND DIRECTION REGARDING A HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE, AND 
RELATED DETAILS SUCH AS SCOPE, DURATION, AND STAFF SUPPORT -
Request the City Council appoint and provide direction regarding a housing subcommittee and related 
details such as scope, duration, and staff support.

Staff Recommendation: Approval (Councilmember Joe Garcia)
                                                         
                                                     6 



7 

FUTURE AGENDA 

14. FUTURE AGENDA -
The purpose of this item is to identify issues presently known to staff or which members of the City
Council wish to place on an upcoming City Council agenda. Council comment on these future agenda
items is limited by California Government Code Section 54954.2 to clarifying questions, brief
announcements, or requests for factual information in connection with an item when it is discussed.

Staff Recommendation: None (City Clerk's Office: Zack Beck)

COUNCIL MEMBERS SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS AND OTHER REPORTS 

CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

The most current information from the City Manager regarding Economic Development, Capital Improvement 
Projects, Public Safety and Community Development. This report is also available on the City’s website, 
www.escondido.org. 

• WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT -

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

The public may address the Council on any item that is not on the agenda and that is within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the legislative body.  State law prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on such 
items, but the matter may be referred to the City Manager/staff or scheduled on a subsequent agenda. Speakers 
are limited to only one opportunity to address the Council under Oral Communications.  

ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOMING MEETING SCHEDULE 
Date Day Time Meeting Type Location 

April 14 - - No Meeting (Cancelled) - 
April 21 Wednesday 4:00 & 5:00 p.m. Regular Meeting Council Chambers 
April 28 - - No Meeting (Spring Break) - 
May 5 - - No Meeting (Spring Break) -



8 
 

TO ADDRESS THE COUNCIL 
 

The public may address the City Council on any agenda item. Please complete a Speaker’s form and give it to 
the City Clerk.  Submission of Speaker forms prior to the discussion of an item is highly encouraged.  Comments 
are generally limited to 3 minutes. 
 

If you wish to speak concerning an item not on the agenda, you may do so under “Oral Communications.”  
Please complete a Speaker’s form as noted above. 
 

Nomination forms for Community Awards are available at the Escondido City Clerk’s Office or at 
http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx 
 
Handouts for the City Council should be given to the City Clerk.  To address the Council, use the podium in the 
center of the Chambers, STATE YOUR NAME FOR THE RECORD and speak directly into the microphone. 
 

AGENDA, STAFF REPORTS AND BACK-UP MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE: 
 

• Online at http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx 
• In the City Clerk’s Office at City Hall  
• Placed in the Council Chambers (See: City Clerk/Minutes Clerk) immediately before and during the 

Council meeting. 
 

AVAILABILITY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS AFTER AGENDA POSTING:  Any supplemental writings 
or documents provided to the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public 
inspection in the City Clerk’s Office located at 201 N. Broadway during normal business hours, or in the Council 
Chambers while the meeting is in session. 
 

LIVE BROADCAST 
 

Council meetings are broadcast live on Cox Cable Channel 19 and U-verse Channel 99 – Escondido Gov TV.  
They can also be viewed the following Sunday and Monday evenings at 6:00 p.m. on those same channels.  
The Council meetings are also available live via the Internet by accessing the City’s website at 
www.escondido.org, and clicking the “Live Streaming –City Council Meeting now in progress” button on the 
home page. 
 

Please turn off all cellular phones and pagers while the meeting is in session. 
 

The City Council is scheduled to meet the first four Wednesdays 
of the month at 5:00 in Closed Session and 6:00 in Open Session. 

(Verify schedule w ith City Clerk ’s Office) 
Members of the Council also sit as the Successor Agency to the Community Development 

Commission, Escondido Joint Powers Financing Authority, 
 and the Mobilehome Rent Review Board. 

 

CITY HALL HOURS OF OPERATION 
Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

 
 

 
If you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact our ADA Coordinator at 

839-4643.  Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility. 

 
Listening devices are available for the hearing impaired – please see the City Clerk. 

 

http://www.escondido.org/city-clerks-office.aspx
http://www.escondido.org/meeting-agendas.aspx


Consent Item No. 1 April 7, 2021

A F F I D A V I T S

OF

I T E M 

P O S T I N G



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 2              April 7, 2021  File No. 0400-40

SUBJECT: Approval of Warrants

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

Request approval for City Council and Housing Successor Agency warrant numbers:

351100 – 351270 dated March 17, 2021
351271 – 351478 dated March 24, 2021

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The total amount of the warrants for the following periods are as follows:

March 11 – March 17, 2021, is $ 1,524,667.53
March 18 – March 24, 2021, is $ 1,569,296.24

BACKGROUND:

The Escondido Municipal Code Section 10-49 states that warrants or checks may be issued and paid 
prior to audit by the City Council, provided the warrants or checks are certified and approved by the 
Director of Finance as conforming to the current budget. These warrants or checks must then be 
ratified and approved by the City Council at the next regular Council meeting.



Consent Item No. 3 April 7, 2021

A P P R O V A L

O F

M I N U T E S



Staff Report - Council

  Consent Item No. 4                 April 7, 2021         File No. 0320-10

SUBJECT: Annual State Mandated Inspection Compliance Report  

DEPARTMENT: Fire Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-29, acknowledging receipt of the 
Annual State Mandated Inspection Compliance Report (“Report”). The Report indicates the 
Escondido Fire Department has conducted 100% of Educational Group E occupancies and 83.8% of 
Residential Group R occupancies as required by state law.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

No fiscal impact. 

BACKGROUND:

California law requires that certain structures be inspected on a regular basis. Public or private 
schools, which are used by more than six persons, (Educational Group E occupancies) and specified 
structures used for housing, such as hotels, motels, lodging houses, residential care facilities, and 
apartment houses (Residential Group R occupancies), must be inspected for compliance with 
building standards pursuant to sections 13146.2 and 13146.3 of the California Health and Safety 
Code.

On September 27, 2018, Governor Jerry Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 1205, which requires fire 
departments to report annually to their administering authorities that these mandatory inspections 
have been conducted. SB 1205 was introduced in early 2018 in response to the Oakland Ghost Ship 
warehouse fire in 2016, which killed 36 people, and reported that many schools and apartment 
buildings in the Bay Area had not received their annual required fire inspections for many years. 

According to the SB 1205’s author, State Senator Jerry Hill, the annual report required by SB 1205 
serves to “remind” cities to inspect their buildings as required by law to prevent the loss of life and 
property. SB 1205 requires the administering authority to acknowledge receipt of the report in a 
resolution or a similar formal document. The intent is to bring to the attention of governing bodies, 
particularly during the budget process, if there is a lack of compliance with specified mandated annual 
inspections. 

The Escondido Fire Department has a business inspection program that meets the Health and Safety 
Code requirements for the annual inspection of educational Group E and the residential Group R 
occupancies. Inspections are performed by our Fire Prevention Bureau inspectors and fire engine 



Annual State Mandated Inspection Compliance Report
April 7, 2021
Page 2

company personnel. The current staffing level of the Fire Department is normally sufficient to meet 
the State mandated inspection requirements of SB 1205. 

The goal of the Escondido Fire Department is to complete 100% of the State mandated inspections 
annually. However, 2020 presented challenges that limited our ability to achieve this goal. Due to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, State and County guidelines eliminated or severely restricted access to many 
buildings, particularly residential care facilities. Due to these restrictions, and in the interest of the 
health and safety of Fire Department employees and the public, in-person inspections of these 
facilities were halted for several months. Also, during this time period the Fire Department’s Fire 
Prevention Bureau lost two of its five staff members to retirements requiring the recruitment and 
training of two new Fire Prevention Specialists. In addition, the workload from new development 
project applications and construction inspections for large projects that were already underway 
created a huge demand on staff capacity. While 100% of the Group E (Educational) inspections were 
completed, the circumstances detailed above resulted in the Fire Department inspecting 83.8% of the 
Group R (Residential) occupancies during the reporting period. However, the disruption from 
pandemic restrictions led to the development of creative alternative processes, including virtual 
inspections using video conferencing technology. With pandemic restrictions lifting and vacant 
positions now filled, the Fire Prevention staff have accelerated their inspection pace and prioritized 
occupancies that were overdue. Barring any further disruption from the pandemic, the expectation is 
that all mandatory inspections will be caught up in 2021.

The report of annual State mandated inspections pursuant to sections 13146.2 and 13146.3 of the 
California Health and Safety Code is contained in Exhibit 1 of Resolution No. 2021-29. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Rick Vogt, Fire Chief
04/01/21 12:11 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-29
2. Resolution No. 2021-29 – Exhibit “A”



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-29

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
ACKNOWLEDGING RECEIPT OF THE 
ANNUAL STATE MANDATED INSPECTION 
COMPLIANCE REPORT DEVELOPED BY 
THE ESCONDIDO FIRE DEPARTMENT 
REGARDING THE REQUIRED INSPECTIONS 
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 13146.2 AND 
13146.3 OF THE CALIFORNIA HEALTH AND 
SAFETY CODE

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 13146.4 became 

effective on September 27, 2018; and

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Sections 13146.2 and 13146.3 

requires all fire departments, which provide fire protection services, conduct annual 

inspections in every building used as a public or private school, hotel, motel, lodging 

house, apartment house, and certain residential care facilities for compliance with 

building standards, as provided; and

WHEREAS, California Health & Safety Code Section 13146.4 requires all fire 

departments that provide fire protection services to report annually to its administering 

authority on its compliance with Sections 13146.2 and 13146.3; and

WHEREAS, the City Council intends this Resolution to fulfill the requirements of 

the California Health and Safety Code regarding acknowledgment of the Escondido Fire 

Department’s compliance with California Health and Safety Code Sections 13146.2 and 

13146.3.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:



1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council expressly acknowledges the measure of compliance 

of the Escondido Fire Department with California Health and Safety Code Sections 

13146.2 and 13146.3 in the area encompassed by the City of Escondido, as detailed in 

Exhibit “A”, which is attached to this Resolution and incorporated by this reference.



Resolution No. 2021-29
Exhibit “A”

Page 1 of 1

Escondido Fire Department Annual State Mandated Inspection Compliance Report

A. EDUCATIONAL GROUP E OCCUPANCIES:

Educational Group E occupancies are generally those public and private schools, 

used by more than six persons at any one time for educational purposes through the 12th 

grade.  Within the City of Escondido, there lie 67 Group E occupancies, buildings, 

structures and/or facilities. 

From March 1, 2020, to February 28, 2021, the Escondido Fire Department 

completed the annual inspection of 67 Group E occupancies, buildings, structures and/or 

facilities.  This is a compliance rate of 100 percent for this reporting period.  

B. RESIDENTIAL GROUP R OCCUPANCIES:

Residential Group R occupancies, for the purposes of this Resolution, are 

generally those occupancies containing sleeping units, and include hotels, motels, 

apartments (three units or more), etc., as well as other residential occupancies (including 

a number of residential care facilities).  These residential care facilities have a number of 

different sub-classifications, and they may contain residents or clients that have a range 

of needs, including those related to custodial care, mobility impairments, cognitive 

disabilities, etc.  The residents may also be non-ambulatory or bedridden.  Within the City 

of Escondido, there lie 483 Group R (and their associated sub-categories) occupancies 

of this nature.

From March 1, 2020, to February 28, 2021, the Escondido Fire Department 

completed the annual inspection of 405 Group R occupancies, buildings, structures 

and/or facilities.  This is a compliance rate of 83.8 percent for this reporting period. 



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No.  5 April 7, 2021          File No. 0600-10, A-3355

SUBJECT: Authorization of ESRI Enterprise Agreement 

DEPARTMENT: Information Systems 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-39 authorizing the Mayor to execute, 
on behalf of the City of Escondido (“City”), a Small Municipal and County Enterprise Agreement 
(“SGEA”) with Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. (“ESRI”) for software and maintenance 
services.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The SGEA is a four-year contract that will become effective upon execution and contingent on the 
approval of each fiscal year’s budget approval.  The total cost of the SGEA is $282,000.  Annual cost 
for the first year of the SEGA is $37,000.  Annual cost for the second year of the SEGA is $59,000.  
Annual cost for the third year of the SEGA is $79,000.  Annual cost for the fourth year of the SEGA is 
$109,000.  The annual cost for the first year of the SGEA is equivalent to the City’s current annual 
geographic information system (“GIS”) software subscription costs. Funding for the first year of the 
SGEA will come from current budget funds. Thereafter, the increased annual costs for the SGEA will 
be provided via the General Fund with an allocation to Utilities of 30%.

BACKGROUND:

GIS has been in use within the City for almost a quarter of a century.  Initially, GIS software was used 
primarily as a mapping tool and has produced almost every map within the City since then.  As GIS 
technology has evolved, GIS software has become the cornerstone of various City systems and 
applications.  

In early 2015, Cityworks became an invaluable tool to Utilities.  Consequently, significant resources 
have since been devoted to improving the Utilities data and integration of GIS with Cityworks. 
Volunteers, interns, and paid part-time staff worked on a multiple year project to gather and improve 
the Utilities network data.  This led to the employment of a full-time GIS staff member focused solely 
on maintaining and improving the Utilities data. 

As the success of Cityworks and GIS for Utilities grew, Public Works adopted Cityworks more 
consistently for their work-orders and inspections.  Building on the momentum, GIS built web-based 
dashboards that gave managers an instant look at the performance of their teams and the state of the 
City.  The need to expand the GIS department’s web knowledge and ability was recognized and a 
new GIS staff member was employed in 2019 for this purpose.  At the same time, our GIS vendor, 
ESRI, released a community engagement product, commonly referred to as the “Hub.”  The Hub 
provided the ability to convey information to and engage citizens in the discussion using GIS data and 
related applications. The Hub was used to build the City’s Volunteer site, the Community 



April 7, 2021
Authorization of ESRI Enterprise Agreement 
Page 2

Engagement site, and the new Homelessness site. The City has received numerous awards based 
on these efforts.

Building on this success, the Community Development Department explored options for replacement 
to their Permit and Licensing software. Cityworks had a separate, yet integrated, component 
specifically for this. After seeing the demonstrated success and value of Cityworks’ integrated 
component, it was implemented for Business Licensing and Code Enforcement in 2019, and 
Community Development in 2020.  It is anticipated that additional City departments and functions will 
adopt this software application in the coming years. 

Additionally, various City departments and staff heavily rely on a variety of web applications built by 
GIS.  For example: the EPIC parcel viewer application for rapid querying of parcel information, the 
Utility Viewer application for rapid querying of utilities and engineering data, and the Fire Viewer for 
rapid querying of locations for numerous purposes including reviewing fires due to homeless 
encampments and for reviewing 911 call location and patterns. 

Currently, the City’s Public Safety Dispatch vendor is transitioning to an ESRI-based map for use with 
dispatch software.  GIS already supports the City’s Public Dispatch system.  However, this transition 
will be a leap in technology as it allows significant improvements in the maintenance of the address 
data that is crucial in responding to emergency calls.  Thus, the transition is strongly supported by 
Information Systems as it makes use of the City’s current software and will enable the City to be 
compliant with new NG911 standards.

The City’s current GIS single license software subscription has remained unchanged since before 
2015.  While this single license approach has served the City well, it has become obsolete in the face 
of modern technology that increasingly relies on GIS and location intelligence.  Upgrading from the 
City’s current single license software subscription to SGEA with ESRI will enable the City to take 
greater advantage of software and applications based on GIS and location intelligence.  Licenses 
under SGEA will be uncapped for key components and additional capped licenses that will provide 
additional benefits are included.

ESRI is recognized as the leader, worldwide, in GIS.  ESRI has no true competition and no single 
vendor can provide the same breadth of integrated products.  Cityworks is a close partner with ESRI 
and the two vendors work closely to ensure secure and robust integration of various applications. 
Staff therefore recommends approval of the SGEA with ESRI, as provided in Resolution No. 2021-39.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Rob Van De Hey, Deputy City Manager/Director of Information Systems 
04/01/21 9:04 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-39 
2. Resolution No. 2021-39 Exhibit “A” – SGEA with ESRI 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-39

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A SMALL 
MUNICIPAL AND COUNTY ENTERPRISE 
AGREEMENT WITH ENVIRONMENTAL 
SYSTEMS RESEARCH, INC. 

WHEREAS, the City currently uses Environmental Systems Research Institute, 

Inc. (“ESRI”) for geographic information system (“GIS”) software licensing and mapping; 

and

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into a four-year Small Municipal and County 

Enterprise Agreement (“SGEA”) with ESRI for increased GIS software licensing and 

mapping capabilities; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve the four-year SGEA with ESRI.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the Mayor and City Council accepts the recommendation of the

Information Systems Department regarding approval of the four-year SGEA with ESRI.

3. That the City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute, on behalf of the

City, the four-year SGEA with ESRI in substantitally the same format as Exhibit “A” 



which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, subject to final approval as 

to form by the City Attorney. 



January 27, 2021 

Rob Van De Hey 
City of Escondido 
201 N Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025-2709 

Dear Rob, 

The Esri Small Municipal and County Government Enterprise Agreement (SGEA) is a four-year agreement that 
will grant your organization access to Esri term license software. The EA will be effective on the date executed and 
will require a firm, four year commitment.  

Based on Esri's work with several organizations similar to yours, we know there is significant potential to apply 
Geographic Information System (GIS) technology in many operational and technical areas within your 
organization. For this reason, we believe that your organization will greatly benefit from an Enterprise Agreement 
(EA).  

An EA will provide your organization with numerous benefits including: 

 A lower cost per unit for licensed software
 Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses
 Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed

The following business terms and conditions will apply: 

 All current departments, employees, and in-house contractors of the organization will be eligible to use
the software and services included in the EA.

 If your organization wishes to acquire and/or maintain any Esri software during the term of the agreement
that is not included in the EA, it may do so separately at the Esri pricing that is generally available for
your organization for software and maintenance.

 The organization will establish a single point of contact for orders and deliveries and will be responsible
for redistribution to eligible users.

 The organization will establish a Tier 1 support center to field calls from internal users of Esri software.
The organization may designate individuals as specified in the EA who may directly contact Esri for Tier
2 technical support.

 The organization will provide an annual report of installed Esri software to Esri.

 Esri software and updates that the organization is licensed to use will be automatically available for
downloading.

 The fee and benefits offered in this EA proposal are contingent upon your acceptance of Esri’s Small
Municipal and County Government EA terms and conditions.

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 25



 Licenses are valid for the term of the EA.

This program offer is valid for 90 days. To complete the agreement within this time frame, please contact me 
within the next seven days to work through any questions or concerns you may have.   

To expedite your acceptance of this EA offer: 

1. Sign and return the EA contract with a Purchase Order or issue a Purchase Order that references this EA
Quotation and includes the following statement on the face of the Purchase Order:

"THIS PURCHASE ORDER IS GOVERNED BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ESRI
SMALL MUNICIPAL AND COUNTY GOVERNMENT EA, AND ADDITIONAL TERMS AND
CONDITIONS IN THIS PURCHASE ORDER WILL NOT APPLY."

Have it signed by an authorized representative of the organization.

2. On the first page of the EA, identify the central point of contact/agreement administrator. The agreement
administrator is the party that will be the contact for management of the software, administration issues,
and general operations. Information should include name, title (if applicable), address, phone number, and
e-mail address.

3. In the purchase order, identify the "Ship to" and "Bill to" information for your organization.

4. Send the purchase order and agreement to the address, email or fax noted below:

Esri  
Attn: Customer Service SG-EA  
380 New York Street
Redlands, CA 92373-8100

e-mail: service@esri.com
fax documents to: 909-307-3083

I appreciate the opportunity to present you with this proposal, and I believe it will bring great benefits to your 
organization.  

Thank you very much for your consideration. 

Best Regards,  

Natalie Carter 

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 25



Quotation # Q-410312

Date: March 23, 2020

Customer # 12745      Contract #

City of Escondido
Information System Dept
201 N Broadway
Escondido, CA 92025-2709

ATTENTION: Rob Van De Hey
PHONE: (760) 839-4035

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc. 
380 New York St
Redlands, CA 92373-8100
Phone: (909) 793-2853       Fax: (909) 307-3049 
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175    CAGE Code: 0AMS3

To expedite your order, please attach a copy of 
this quotation to your purchase order.
Quote is valid from: 3/11/2020  To: 4/26/2021 EMAIL: rvandehey@escondido.org

Material Qty Term Unit Price Total

168181 1 Year 1 $37,000.00 $37,000.00

Populations of 125,001-150,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

168181 1 Year 2 $55,000.00 $55,000.00

Populations of 125,001-150,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

168181 1 Year 3 $80,000.00 $80,000.00

Populations of 125,001-150,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

Subtotal: $282,000.00

Sales Tax: $0.00

Estimated Shipping and Handling (2 Day Delivery): $0.00

Contract Price Adjust: $0.00

Total: $282,000.00

Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program.

For questions contact:
Natalie Carter

Email:
ncarter@esri.com

Phone:
(909) 793-2853 x7419

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document
found at  https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri’s standard terms and conditions found at https://go.esri.com/MAPS apply to your
purchase of that item. Federal government entities and government prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of
Esri’s GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and conditions found at https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply
to some state and local government purchases. All terms of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement
regarding Esri’s offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different
or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer, or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation
information is confidential and may not be copied or released other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The
information may not be given to outside parties or used for any other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin.

CARTERN This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein.

168181 1 Year 4 $110,000.00 $110,000.00

Populations of 125,001-150,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 25



Esri Use Only: 
Cust. Name  
Cust. # 
PO # 
Esri Agreement # 

Page 1 of 6 February 1, 2020 

SMALL ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY AND MUNICIPALITY GOVERNMENT 

(E214-5) 

This Agreement is by and between the organization identified in the Quotation ("Customer") and Environmental 
Systems Research Institute, Inc. ("Esri"). 

This Agreement sets forth the terms for Customer's use of Products and incorporates by reference (i) the 
Quotation and (ii) the Master Agreement. Should there be any conflict between the terms and conditions of the 
documents that comprise this Agreement, the order of precedence for the documents shall be as follows: (i) the 
Quotation, (ii) this Agreement, and (iii) the Master Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which Customer is located without reference to conflict of 
laws principles, and the United States of America federal law shall govern in matters of intellectual property. The 
modifications and additional rights granted in this Agreement apply only to the Products listed in Table A. 

Table A 
List of Products 

Uncapped Quantities 
Desktop Software and Extensions (Single Use) 
ArcGIS Desktop Advanced 
ArcGIS Desktop Standard 
ArcGIS Desktop Basic 
ArcGIS Desktop Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Geostatistical 
Analyst, ArcGIS Publisher, ArcGIS Network 
Analyst, ArcGIS Schematics, ArcGIS Workflow 
Manager, ArcGIS Data Reviewer 

Enterprise Software and Extensions 
ArcGIS Enterprise and Workgroup 
(Advanced and Standard) 
ArcGIS Enterprise Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Geostatistical 
Analyst, ArcGIS Network Analyst, ArcGIS 
Schematics, ArcGIS Workflow Manager 

ArcGIS Monitor 

Enterprise Additional Capability Servers 
ArcGIS Image Server 

Developer Tools 
ArcGIS Engine 
ArcGIS Engine Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Engine Geodatabase 
Update, ArcGIS Network Analyst, ArcGIS Schematics 
ArcGIS Runtime (Standard) 
ArcGIS Runtime Analysis Extension  

Limited Quantities 
One (1) Professional subscription to ArcGIS Developer 
Two (2) Esri CityEngine Single Use Licenses 
1,000 ArcGIS Online Viewers 
1,000 ArcGIS Online Creators 
110,000 ArcGIS Online Service Credits 
1,000 ArcGIS Enterprise Creators 
10 Insights in ArcGIS Enterprise 
10 Insights in ArcGIS Online 
100 Tracker for ArcGIS Enterprise 
100 Tracker for ArcGIS Online 
6 ArcGIS Parcel Fabric User Type Extensions (Enterprise) 
6 ArcGIS Utility Network User Type Extensions (Enterprise) 

OTHER BENEFITS 

Number of Esri User Conference registrations provided annually 4 

Number of Tier 1 Help Desk individuals authorized to call Esri 4 

Maximum number of sets of backup media, if requested* 2 

Self-Paced e-Learning Uncapped 

Five percent (5%) discount on all individual commercially available instructor-led training classes at Esri 
facilities purchased outside this Agreement 

* Additional sets of backup media may be purchased for a fee

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 25



Page 2 of 6 February 1, 2020 

Customer may accept this Agreement by signing and returning the whole Agreement with (i) the Quotation 
attached, (ii) a purchase order, or (iii) another document that matches the Quotation and references this 
Agreement ("Ordering Document"). ADDITIONAL OR CONFLICTING TERMS IN CUSTOMER'S PURCHASE 
ORDER OR OTHER DOCUMENT WILL NOT APPLY, AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL 
GOVERN. This Agreement is effective as of the date of Esri's receipt of an Ordering Document, unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties ("Effective Date"). 

Term of Agreement: Four (4) Years

This Agreement supersedes any previous agreements, proposals, presentations, understandings, and 
arrangements between the parties relating to the licensing of the Products. Except as provided in Article 4—
Product Updates, no modifications can be made to this Agreement. 

Accepted and Agreed: 

(Customer) 

By: 
Authorized Signature 

Printed Name:   

Title:   

Date:   

CUSTOMER CONTACT INFORMATION 

Contact:   Telephone: 

Address:   Fax:   

City, State, Postal Code:   E-mail:

Country:   

Quotation Number (if applicable): 

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 25



Page 3 of 6 February 1, 2020 

1.0—ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 

In addition to the definitions provided in the Master 
Agreement, the following definitions apply to this 
Agreement: 

"Case" means a failure of the Software or Online 
Services to operate according to the Documentation 
where such failure substantially impacts operational 
or functional performance. 

"Deploy", "Deployed" and "Deployment" mean to 
redistribute and install the Products and related 
Authorization Codes within Customer's 
organization(s). 

"Fee" means the fee set forth in the Quotation. 

"Maintenance" means Tier 2 Support, Product 
updates, and Product patches provided to Customer 
during the Term of Agreement. 

"Master Agreement" means the applicable master 
agreement for Esri Products incorporated by this 
reference that is (i) found at 
https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/full-master-
agreement and available in the installation process 
requiring acceptance by electronic acknowledgment 
or (ii) a signed Esri master agreement or license 
agreement that supersedes such electronically 
acknowledged master agreement. 

"Product(s)" means the products identified in 
Table A—List of Products and any updates to the list 
Esri provides in writing. 

"Quotation" means the offer letter and quotation 
provided separately to Customer. 

"Technical Support" means the technical 
assistance for attempting resolution of a reported 
Case through error correction, patches, hot fixes, 
workarounds, replacement deliveries, or any other 
type of Product corrections or modifications. 

"Tier 1 Help Desk" means Customer's point of 
contact(s) to provide all Tier 1 Support within 
Customer's organization(s). 

"Tier 1 Support" means the Technical Support 
provided by the Tier 1 Help Desk. 

"Tier 2 Support" means the Esri Technical Support 
provided to the Tier 1 Help Desk when a Case 
cannot be resolved through Tier 1 Support. 

2.0—ADDITIONAL GRANT OF LICENSE 

2.1 Grant of License. Subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, Esri grants to 
Customer a personal, nonexclusive, 
nontransferable license solely to use, copy, and 
Deploy quantities of the Products listed in 
Table A—List of Products for the Term of 
Agreement (i) for the applicable Fee and (ii) in 
accordance with the Master Agreement. 

2.2 Consultant Access. Esri grants Customer the 
right to permit Customer's consultants or 
contractors to use the Products exclusively for 
Customer's benefit. Customer will be solely 
responsible for compliance by consultants and 
contractors with this Agreement and will ensure 
that the consultant or contractor discontinues 
use of Products upon completion of work for 
Customer. Access to or use of Products by 
consultants or contractors not exclusively for 
Customer's benefit is prohibited. Customer may 
not permit its consultants or contractors to install 
Software or Data on consultant, contractor, or 
third-party computers or remove Software or 
Data from Customer locations, except for the 
purpose of hosting the Software or Data on 
Contractor servers for the benefit of Customer. 

3.0—TERM, TERMINATION, AND EXPIRATION 

3.1 Term. This Agreement and all licenses 
hereunder will commence on the Effective Date 
and continue for the duration identified in the 
Term of Agreement, unless this Agreement is 
terminated earlier as provided herein. Customer 
is only authorized to use Products during the 
Term of Agreement. For an Agreement with a 
limited term, Esri does not grant Customer an 
indefinite or a perpetual license to Products. 

3.2 No Use upon Agreement Expiration or 
Termination. All Product licenses, all 
Maintenance, and Esri User Conference 
registrations terminate upon expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

3.3 Termination for a Material Breach. Either party 
may terminate this Agreement for a material 
breach by the other party. The breaching party 
will have thirty (30) days from the date of written 
notice to cure any material breach. 

3.4 Termination for Lack of Funds. For an 
Agreement with government or government-
owned entities, either party may terminate this 
Agreement before any subsequent year if 

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 25



Page 4 of 6 February 1, 2020     

Customer is unable to secure funding through 
the legislative or governing body's approval 
process. 

3.5 Follow-on Term. If the parties enter into 
another agreement substantially similar to this 
Agreement for an additional term, the effective 
date of the follow-on agreement will be the day 
after the expiration date of this Agreement. 

4.0—PRODUCT UPDATES 

4.1 Future Updates. Esri reserves the right to 
update the list of Products in Table A—List of 
Products by providing written notice to 
Customer. Customer may continue to use all 
Products that have been Deployed, but support 
and upgrades for deleted items may not be 
available. As new Products are incorporated into 
the standard program, they will be offered to 
Customer via written notice for incorporation into 
the Products schedule at no additional charge. 
Customer's use of new or updated Products 
requires Customer to adhere to applicable 
additional or revised terms and conditions in the 
Master Agreement. 

4.2 Product Life Cycle. During the Term of 
Agreement, some Products may be retired or 
may no longer be available to Deploy in the 
identified quantities. Maintenance will be subject 
to the individual Product Life Cycle Support 
Status and Product Life Cycle Support Policy, 
which can be found at 
https://support.esri.com/en/other-
resources/product-life-cycle. Updates for 
Products in the mature and retired phases may 
not be available. Customer may continue to use 
Products already Deployed, but Customer will 
not be able to Deploy retired Products. 

5.0—MAINTENANCE 

The Fee includes standard maintenance benefits 
during the Term of Agreement as specified in the 
most current applicable Esri Maintenance and 
Support Program document (found at 
https://www.esri.com/en-
us/legal/terms/maintenance). At Esri's sole 
discretion, Esri may make patches, hot fixes, or 
updates available for download. No Software other 
than the defined Products will receive Maintenance. 
Customer may acquire maintenance for other 
Software outside this Agreement. 

a. Tier 1 Support

1. Customer will provide Tier 1 Support
through the Tier 1 Help Desk to all
Customer's authorized users.

2. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be fully trained in
the Products.

3. At a minimum, Tier 1 Support will include
those activities that assist the user in
resolving how-to and operational questions
as well as questions on installation and
troubleshooting procedures.

4. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be the initial point
of contact for all questions and reporting of a
Case. The Tier 1 Help Desk will obtain a full
description of each reported Case and the
system configuration from the user. This
may include obtaining any customizations,
code samples, or data involved in the Case.

5. If the Tier 1 Help Desk cannot resolve the
Case, an authorized Tier 1 Help Desk
individual may contact Tier 2 Support. The
Tier 1 Help Desk will provide support in such
a way as to minimize repeat calls and make
solutions to problems available to
Customer’s organization.

6. Tier 1 Help Desk individuals are the only
individuals authorized to contact Tier 2
Support. Customer may change the Tier 1
Help Desk individuals by written notice to
Esri.

b. Tier 2 Support

1. Tier 2 Support will log the calls received
from Tier 1 Help Desk.

2. Tier 2 Support will review all information
collected by and received from the Tier 1
Help Desk including preliminary documented
troubleshooting provided by the Tier 1 Help
Desk when Tier 2 Support is required.

3. Tier 2 Support may request that Tier 1 Help
Desk individuals provide verification of
information, additional information, or
answers to additional questions to
supplement any preliminary information
gathering or troubleshooting performed by
Tier 1 Help Desk.

4. Tier 2 Support will attempt to resolve the
Case submitted by Tier 1 Help Desk.

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 25



Page 5 of 6 February 1, 2020     

5. When the Case is resolved, Tier 2 Support
will communicate the information to Tier 1
Help Desk, and Tier 1 Help Desk will
disseminate the resolution to the user(s).

6.0—ENDORSEMENT AND PUBLICITY 

This Agreement will not be construed or interpreted 
as an exclusive dealings agreement or Customer's 
endorsement of Products. Either party may publicize 
the existence of this Agreement. 

7.0—ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 

7.1 OEM Licenses. Under Esri's OEM or Solution 
OEM programs, OEM partners are authorized to 
embed or bundle portions of Esri products and 
services with their application or service. OEM 
partners' business model, licensing terms and 
conditions, and pricing are independent of this 
Agreement. Customer will not seek any discount 
from the OEM partner or Esri based on the 
availability of Products under this Agreement. 
Customer will not decouple Esri products or 
services from the OEM partners' application or 
service. 

7.2 Annual Report of Deployments. At each 
anniversary date and ninety (90) calendar days 
prior to the expiration of this Agreement, 
Customer will provide Esri with a written report 
detailing all Deployments. Upon request, 
Customer will provide records sufficient to verify 
the accuracy of the annual report. 

8.0—ORDERING, ADMINISTRATIVE

PROCEDURES, DELIVERY, AND

DEPLOYMENT 

8.1 Orders, Delivery, and Deployment 

a. Upon the Effective Date, Esri will invoice
Customer and provide Authorization Codes to
activate the nondestructive copy protection
program that enables Customer to download,
operate, or allow access to the Products. If this
is a multi-year Agreement, Esri may invoice the
Fee up to thirty (30) calendar days before the
annual anniversary date for each year.

b. Undisputed invoices will be due and payable
within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of
invoice. Esri reserves the right to suspend
Customer's access to and use of Products if

Customer fails to pay any undisputed amount 
owed on or before its due date. Esri may charge 
Customer interest at a monthly rate equal to the 
lesser of one percent (1.0%) per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by applicable law on 
any overdue fees plus all expenses of collection 
for any overdue balance that remains unpaid 
ten (10) days after Esri has notified Customer of 
the past-due balance.  

c. Esri's federal ID number is 95-2775-732.

d. If requested, Esri will ship backup media to the
ship-to address identified on the Ordering
Document, FOB Destination, with shipping
charges prepaid. Customer acknowledges that
should sales or use taxes become due as a
result of any shipments of tangible media, Esri
has a right to invoice and Customer will pay any
such sales or use tax associated with the receipt
of tangible media.

8.2 Order Requirements. Esri does not require 
Customer to issue a purchase order. Customer 
may submit a purchase order in accordance with 
its own process requirements, provided that if 
Customer issues a purchase order, Customer 
will submit its initial purchase order on the 
Effective Date. If this is a multi-year Agreement, 
Customer will submit subsequent purchase 
orders to Esri at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the annual anniversary date for each 
year. 

a. All orders pertaining to this Agreement will be
processed through Customer's centralized point
of contact.

b. The following information will be included in
each Ordering Document:

(1) Customer name; Esri customer number, if
known; and bill-to and ship-to addresses

(2) Order number
(3) Applicable annual payment due

9.0—MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS, OR

DIVESTITURES 

If Customer is a commercial entity, Customer will 
notify Esri in writing in the event of (i) a 
consolidation, merger, or reorganization of Customer 
with or into another corporation or entity; 
(ii) Customer's acquisition of another entity; or (iii) a
transfer or sale of all or part of Customer's
organization (subsections i, ii, and iii, collectively
referred to as "Ownership Change"). There will be

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 25



Page 6 of 6 February 1, 2020     

no decrease in Fee as a result of any Ownership 
Change. 

9.1 If an Ownership Change increases the 
cumulative program count beyond the maximum 
level for this Agreement, Esri reserves the right 
to increase the Fee or terminate this Agreement 
and the parties will negotiate a new agreement. 

9.2 If an Ownership Change results in transfer or 
sale of a portion of Customer's organization, that 
portion of Customer's organization will transfer 
the Products to Customer or uninstall, remove, 
and destroy all copies of the Products. 

9.3 This Agreement may not be assigned to a 
successor entity as a result of an Ownership 
Change unless approved by Esri in writing in 
advance. If the assignment to the new entity is 
not approved, Customer will require any 
successor entity to uninstall, remove, and 
destroy the Products. This Agreement will 
terminate upon such Ownership Change. 

Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 14 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 15 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 16 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 17 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 18 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 19 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 20 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 21 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 22 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 23 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 24 of 25



Resolution 2021-39 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 25 of 25



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 6    April 7, 2021 File No. 0600-10, A-3356

SUBJECT: Sunrise Project Traffic Mitigation Agreement

DEPARTMENT: Engineering Services Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-41 authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Traffic Mitigation Funding Agreement with Lennar Homes, the Developer of a 192-unit multi-family 
residential project within the City of San Marcos, to fund mitigation measures within the City of 
Escondido.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The cost for plan review and inspection of traffic mitigation measures will be funded by the developer 
through payment of established plan check and inspection fees.  The cost of maintenance and 
operation of the signal that is made necessary to mitigate project traffic impacts will be paid for by the 
developer through a deposit.  

BACKGROUND:

Lennar Homes of California has received approval from the City of San Marcos to construct a 192-
unit multi-family housing development located south of Barham Drive and west of Meyers Avenue 
within the City of San Marcos.  The project EIR requires construction of certain mitigation measures, 
including street widening, sidewalk, signal and drainage improvements.  In addition, a new traffic 
signal at Barham and Meyers was required as a mitigation measure for the project.  Since this signal 
is located with the City of Escondido, the City of San Marcos has conditioned the project to pay for 
the ongoing operating and maintenance costs of the signal.  The attached Traffic Mitigation 
Agreement provides for construction of required improvements and payment of signal maintenance 
costs as required for the Sunrise project.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Julie Procopio, Director of Engineering Services
04/01/21 9:34 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-41
2. Resolution No. 2021-41 Exhibit “A”



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-41

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A TRAFFIC 
MITIGATION FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH 
LENNAR HOMES 

WHEREAS, the City of San Marcos has entitled a 192-unit mulit-family 

development located south of Barham Drive and west of Meyers Avenue within the City 

of San Marcos that requires certain mitigation measures within the City of Escondido; 

and

WHEREAS, the Developer of the project, Lennar Homes of California, has 

requested a Traffic Mitigation Funding Agreement that outlines the improvements to be 

constructed withing the City of Escondido, and the fair share contributions and 

operating costs to be funded by the Developer. 

           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, the

Traffic Mitigation Funding Agrement, in substantially the same format as Exhibit “A” 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, subject to final approval as 

to form by the City Attorney.



TRAFFIC MITIGATION FUNDING AGREEMENT 

This Traffic Mitigation Funding Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as 
of the _____ day of __________, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the CITY OF 
ESCONDIDO, a California municipal corporation (the “City”), and LENNAR HOMES OF 
CALIFORNIA, INC., a California corporation (the “Developer”).  (City and Developer may be 
referred to herein individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties.”) 

RECITALS 

1. CAL HEARTHSTONE LOT OPTION POOL 01, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership (“Owner”)  is the owner of approximately 14.4 acres of real property made up of two 
parcels (the “Property”), one located in the City of San Marcos (“San Marcos”) (APN 228-312-09) 
and one in an unincorporated area of the County of San Diego (the “County”) (APN 228-312-10) in 
the San Marcos sphere of influence, south of Barham Drive, west of Meyers Avenue.  On December 
7, 2020, the San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission (“LAFCO”) approved annexation of 
the latter parcel into San Marcos.   

2. Owner has granted Developer an option (the “Option”) to acquire the Property
pursuant to that certain Option and Development Agreement, dated December 4, 2020, and addenda 
related thereto, all by and between Owner and Developer (collectively, the “Option and 
Development Agreement”).  Pursuant to the Option and Development Agreement, Developer has 
agreed to perform certain site development improvements including the improvements required to 
be performed by Developer under this Agreement (the “Developer Work”), In connection 
therewith, Owner and Developer executed: (a) a Memorandum of Option and Development 
evidencing the Option which was recorded in the Official Records of San Diego County on 
February 25, 2021 as Document No. 2021-0149427; and (b) Construction License and Indemnity 
Agreement granting Developer a license to perform the Developer Work which was recorded in the 
Official Records of San Diego County on February 25, 2021 as Document No. 2021-0149428.  

3. Developer, Owner, and prior owners of the Property have submitted an application
for various entitlements that were approved by San Marcos and San Diego LAFCO allowing 
development of 192 multifamily residential units on the Property (the “Project”). 

4. As part of the processing of entitlements and San Marcos’s preparation of an
environmental impact report (“EIR”) for the Project as the lead agency under the California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), a traffic impact analysis (“TIA”) has been generated that 
analyzes the Project’s traffic impacts on relevant roadway segments and intersections.   

5. The Property is near the jurisdictional boundaries of the City and, as a result, the TIA
has identified potential impacts that would occur within the City, which San Marcos, as the CEQA 
lead agency, does not have the ability to mitigate because these impacts are outside San Marcos’s 
jurisdiction.   

6. The Developer and the City have met and discussed certain infrastructure
improvements, set forth herein, that would ensure that the Project’s impacts relating to traffic within 
the City would not be significant.     

7. Accordingly, the Parties agree that, if the Developer and/or Owner proceed with

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 7



development of the Project, the Developer will provide the physical infrastructure improvements 
and/or monetary payment articulated in this Agreement.  The City hereby agrees that the 
infrastructure improvements and/or payment articulated in this Agreement will be sufficient to fully 
and fairly mitigate any potential Project impacts within the City to a less than significant level under 
all applicable thresholds of significance.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions herein 
contained, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. TERM OF AGREEMENT. 

This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and shall continue in full 
force and effect until the Developer has made all the promised improvements and monetary 
payments pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
in the event the Project is not approved by all relevant public agencies, or Developer decides, in 
its sole discretion, not to proceed with the Project, this Agreement may be terminated by 
Developer with thirty (30) days’ notice.  

SECTION 2. MITIGATION. 

A. Developer shall, before the issuance of the first certificate of occupancy for a 
residential unit developed as part of the proposed Project, fulfill all obligations regarding 
construction of the infrastructure improvements, including all related obligations regarding ongoing 
maintenance and funding for the improvements, as described in detail in Exhibit A, which is 
attached to this Agreement and incorporated herein by this reference. 

B. The City agrees that Developer’s obligations articulated in this Section and 
Exhibit A to this Agreement will ensure that the Project’s impacts on roadways and traffic within 
the City will not be significant.  Accordingly, in consideration for the Developer’s promise to 
perform its obligations under the Agreement, the City agrees that it will not object to San Marcos’s 
or LAFCO’s approval of the Project, nor will the City request any further traffic mitigation 
measures or other conditions of approval be imposed on the Project.  The City further agrees that, if 
requested by Developer, the City will submit a letter to San Marcos and/or LAFCO stating its 
position that the Project will not result in significant traffic impacts in the City.   

C. The Developer agrees to process plans for all work prior to commencing 
construction to the satisfaction of the City of Escondido and to obtain any necessary permits.  All 
such construction shall be consistent with the City of Escondido’s standards and subject to 
inspection and approval by the City.  The Developer will pay standard review fees, inspection fees, 
and securities to the City of Escondido. 

SECTION 3. CONDITION PRECEDENT. 

This Agreement does not obligate the Developer to take any action or expend any 
funds unless Developer actually proceeds with the Project.  The Parties agree that Developer has no 
obligation to actually proceed with the Project, and no obligations under this Agreement until it 
applies for its first certificate of occupancy associated with the Project.  

SECTION 4. NOTICES. 

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 7



All notices, demands and requests, which may be or are required to be given or 
made by either Party to the other Party shall be in writing.  All notices, demands, requests and 
payments by Developer to the City shall be sent by United States registered mail, postage 
prepaid, addressed to the City as follows: 

City of Escondido  
201 N Broadway 
Escondido, CA 92025 
Attn: City Attorney 

or to such other addressee and at such other place as the City may designate, from time to time, in 
written notice to Developer. 

All notices, demands, and requests by the City to Developer shall be sent by United 
States registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed to Developer as follows: 

Lennar Homes of California, Inc. 
16465 Via Esprillo, #150 
San Diego, CA 92127 
Attn: Alex Plishner, Senior Vice President 
 
and  
 
CAL HEARTHSTONE Lot Option Pool 02, L.P. 
c/o Hearthstone, Inc. 
23975 Park Sorrento, Suite 220 
Calabasas, CA 91302 
Attn:  Steven Porath, Esq., General Counsel 
 

or to such other addressee and at such other place as Developer may, from time to time, 
designate in written notice to the City.   

Notices, demands, requests and payments, which shall be served upon the Parties in the manner 
aforesaid, shall be deemed sufficiently served or given for all purposes thereunder at the time 
such notice, demand, request or payment is thus mailed. 

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. 

This Agreement, including but not limited to any modification to the Exhibits 
thereto, shall only be amended upon written consent of both the Developer and the City. 

SECTION 6. MISCELLANEOUS. 

A. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement and the rights and obligations of 
the Parties hereunder shall inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the Parties’ respective 
successors, assigns and legal representatives. 

B. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed under 

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 7



the laws of the State of California, as such laws apply to agreements among California 
residents made and to be performed entirely within the State of California, without giving effect to 
the choice of law or conflict of law provisions (whether of the State of California or any other 
jurisdiction) that would cause the application of the laws of any other jurisdiction other than the 
State of California.  Any lawsuit brought in connection with this Agreement shall be brought in the 
appropriate court in the County of San Diego, California 

C. No Third-Party Rights.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or 
otherwise construed as granting any rights, benefits or interests to any individual, entity or body 
who/that is not a Party to this Agreement. 

D. Authority and Requisite Action.  The parties covenant that individuals 
executing this Agreement have the legal power, right and authority to enter into this Agreement and 
to bind their respective principals/entities to the terms and conditions set forth herein.  
Furthermore, the parties covenant that all requisite action has been taken by their respective 
principals/entities in connection with entering into this Agreement and the instruments referenced 
herein, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

E. Entire Agreement.  This writing constitutes the entire agreement between the 
Parties, and no modification of this Agreement shall be valid unless executed in writing by the 
Parties hereto.  Further, none of the Parties to this Agreement shall be bound by any 
representations, warranties, promises, or statements unless expressly set forth herein. 

F. No Waiver.  The failure of any Party to enforce against the other a 
provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of that Party’s right to enforce such a 
provision at a later time. 

G. Captions.  The captions of the various Sections in this Agreement are for 
convenience and organization only, and are not intended to be any part of the body of this 
Agreement, nor are they intended to be referred to in construing the provisions of this 
Agreement. 

H. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed on separate counterparts, 
each of which shall be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  Delivery of an executed signature page of this Agreement by electronic means, 
including an attachment to an email, shall be effective as delivery of an executed original.  An 
electronic signature shall be acceptable and deemed to have the same legal effect as a handwritten 
signature. 

I. Attorney’s Fees.  In the event an action is commenced by any Party to this 
Agreement to enforce or construe its rights, the prevailing party in such action, in additional to any 
other relief and recovery awarded by the court, shall be entitled to recover all reasonable attorneys’ 
fees. 

J. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent allowable by law, Developer shall 
defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free 
and harmless from any and all claims, demands, actions, causes of action, proceedings (including 
but not limited to legal and administrative proceedings of any kind), suits, fines, penalties, 
judgments, orders, levies, costs, expenses, liabilities, losses, damages or injuries, in law or equity, to 

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 7



property or persons, including wrongful death, in any manner arising out of or incident to any 
alleged acts, omissions, negligence or willful misconduct of Developer, its officials, officers, 
employees, agents, consultants and contractors arising out of or in connection with the Project or 
Developer’s performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including without limitation the 
payment of all consequential damages and attorney’s fees and other related costs and expenses 
(collectively, “Claims”). Developer shall defend, at Developer’s own cost, expense and risk, any 
and all Claims that may be brought or instituted against City, its officials, officers, employees, 
volunteers or agents. Developer shall pay and satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be 
rendered against City or its officials, officers, employees, volunteers or agents related to any such 
Claims. Developer shall reimburse City and its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents 
for any and all legal expenses and costs incurred by each of them in connection with any Claims or 
in enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Developer’s obligation to indemnify shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by the City, its officials, officers, employees, 
volunteers or agents. 

K. Cooperation and Future Assurances.  The Parties shall reasonably cooperate
in good faith to facilitate the performance of this Agreement, and each party shall deliver to the 
other party copies of such notices, documents, records and information as are reasonably necessary 
to such performance. 

L. Recitals.  The Recitals set forth above are included herein by reference as part
of this Agreement and the Parties agree that said Recitals are essential facts to this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date 
hereinabove written. 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO, 
a California municipal corporation 

Approved By: 

City Mayor 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY 
City Attorney 

LENNAR HOMES OF 
CALIFORNIA, INC., a California 
corporation  
By:      
Name:  
Title:                                                     

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 7



EXHIBIT A  
 

Description of Infrastructure Improvements and/or Fair Share Payments 

1. Intersection #7. Barham Drive / Meyers Avenue – Prior to the issuance of the first certificate of 
occupancy for a residential unit, the Developer, at its sole cost and expense, shall provide a traffic signal with 
a dedicated westbound left turn lane and protected left turn phasing on the westbound approach of Barham 
Drive towards Meyers Avenue at this intersection. The westbound left-turn pocket shall provide at least 100 
feet of storage to accommodate queueing under buildout traffic conditions. 

2.   Traffic signal maintenance at Meyers and Barham – Prior to the issuance of the first certificate of 
occupancy for a residential unit, the Developer shall deposit the sum of ONE HUNDRED AND NINETY 
SEVEN THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED AND NINTY-NINE DOLLARS ($197,199) with the City as the 
full and complete obligation for funding the long-term operation and maintenance of the new traffic signal at 
Meyers and Barham.  This sum shall not be due until the signal has been energized.   

3. Intersection #9. Mission Road / Nordahl Road – Prior to the issuance of the first permanent 
certificate of occupancy, the Developer shall select and complete one (1) of the following: 

• Developer Option 1: design, permit and install adaptive signal timing at this intersection to the 
satisfaction of the City of Escondido; or 

• Developer Option 2: Pay a fair share contribution toward the City of San Marcos Adaptive Signal 
System Capital Improvement Project (CIP) for this intersection. The City of San Marcos does not currently 
have an adopted CIP for this intersection. Should no adopted CIP exist at the time of application for the first 
permanent certificate of occupancy, the project applicant shall complete Option 1. 

4.  Segment #3. Barham Drive: SR-78 EB On-Ramp to Meyers Avenue – Prior to the issuance of the 
first permanent certificate of occupancy, the Developer shall provide half-width improvements (including 
curb, gutter, and sidewalk, storm water treatment, etc.) along the south side of Barham Drive (between the 
project’s driveway and Meyers Avenue) and sufficient widening, striping, and the necessary facilities to 
satisfy the requirements for bioretention and hydromodification for the described widening along the north 
side of Barham Drive between the proposed project driveway and Meyers Avenue to achieve a three-lane 
cross section (two-lane + two-way left turn lane). 

This would allow for a two-way left-turn (TWLTL) lane to be striped, which would enhance segment 
operations by allowing vehicles turning to the commercial properties to the north to queue in the TWLTL, out 
of the through lanes. Currently, this section of Barham Drive, located within the jurisdiction of the City of 
Escondido, is narrower than the sections adjacent to it. Improvements have been made to south side of the 
sections adjacent to the listed termini to include curb, gutter and sidewalk. The section currently provides a 
temporary asphalt curb, gutter and sidewalk on the south side of Barham Drive (between the project’s 
driveway and Meyers Avenue), which will be improved as part of this mitigation.  

Concurrent with this mitigation measure, the project applicant shall improve the existing approximately 450-
foot section of Barham Drive from east of Casitas Del Sol to project driveway “A” to provide a three-lane 
cross section, consistent with the existing three-lane (two-lane + TWLTL) segment west of Casitas Del Sol. 

5. Segment #4. Barham Drive: Meyers Avenue to Mission Road – Prior to the issuance of the first 
permanent certificate of occupancy, the Developer shall improve this segment within existing right-of-way on 
the north side of Barham Drive from Meyers Avenue to approximately 200 feet west of Mission Road with 

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 7



adequate street widening to provide an additional two-way left-turn lane while maintaining the on-street 
parking along the south side of Barham Dr. 

The addition of a two-way left-turn lane would enhance segment operations by allowing vehicles turning to 
commercial properties on the south side of the roadway to queue in the TWLTL, out of the through lanes. 

6. Intersection #8. Barham Drive / Mission Road - Prior to the issuance of the first permanent 
certificate of occupancy, the Developer shall select and complete one (1) of the following: 

• Developer Option 1: upgrade the traffic signal equipment at this intersection to allow for more 
efficient signal phases, signal timing, advanced queue detections, and coordination with the Sprinter railway 
crossing. These upgrades shall include traffic signal infrastructure, associated traffic signing, associated 
traffic striping, and other minor ancillary improvements within the existing intersection and intersection 
approaches within the City of San Marcos jurisdiction. Signal phasing upgrades may include modification of 
the traffic signal to provide right turn overlap (RTOL) phasing; Or 

• Developer Option 2: Pay a fair share contribution toward the City of San Marcos Adaptive Signal 
System Capital Improvement Project (CIP) for this intersection. The City of San Marcos does not currently 
have an adopted CIP for this intersection. Should no adopted CIP exist at the time of application for the first 
permanent certificate of occupancy, the project applicant shall complete Option 1. 

 As a part of Option 1 and 2 above, the Developer shall provide queuing analysis for the west-bound 
left turn pocket and extend as necessary to meet the demand to the reasonable satisfaction of the City 
of Escondido.   

7.  Install new storm drain improvements – The Developer shall at its sole expense extend an 18” 
storm drain pipe from the project’s driveway entrance on Barham Drive to a clean out transition point further 
extending an 18” storm drain system, southeast bound on Barham Drive to connect to an existing 72” storm 
drain system at the intersection of Barham Drive and Meyers Avenue.  The Developer shall also extend at its 
sole expense a 36” or 2’x4’ reinforced box culvert storm drain system from the Meyers Avenue driveway and 
connect to the existing 72” storm drain system near the intersection of Meyers Avenue and Barham Drive.  
The storm drain shall have the capacity to accommodate the future storm drain flow from the Sunrise 
development and APNs 228-312-05-00 and 228-312-06-00 located in the city of Escondido.  The Developer 
shall be responsible for maintenance, in perpetuity, of the new green streets tree wells on the north side of 
Barham Drive, unless and until another party assumes maintenance responsibility of such tree wells.  The tree 
wells shall be irrigated and kept clean and free of debris, allowing for water filtration.   

8.  Install driveway from Sunrise Project to Meyers Avenue – Developer will Perform all work 
related to the installation of their proposed driveway from Meyers Avenue to the Sunrise project boundary in 
San Marcos.  The work includes, but is not limited to; clearing, grading, compaction, storm-water treatment, 
retaining wall(s), curb, gutter, sidewalk, paving, driveway approach, kiosk, lighting, landscaping, irrigation, 
gates, turn-around and utility connections (including storm drain, sewer, water, gas, electric, telephone, and 
cable TV, etcetera).   

(End of Exhibit A) 

Resolution No. 2021-41 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 7



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 7 April 7, 2021          File No. 0470-25

SUBJECT: Contract Renewal for the Purchase of Chemicals for the Water and Wastewater 
Treatment Plants

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-46 authorizing the Director of Finance 
to execute, on behalf of the City of Escondido (“City”), the final renewal option of purchase order 
contracts for the purchase of chemicals used at the City’s water and wastewater treatment plants and 
approve the unit price increases for Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2021/22.  

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The price of chemicals used by the City for water treatment have significantly increased since FY 
2019/20.  The increased chemical costs are attributed to heightened prices of raw materials used to 
manufacture the chemicals and record-high freight costs.

In FY 2017/18, the City entered into purchase order contracts with the suppliers listed in Exhibit A to 
this Staff Report, which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, for the purchase of 
chemicals used at the City’s water and wastewater treatment plants (“Contracts”).  The Contracts 
included an initial two-year term with three successive one-year options to renew.  During the initial 
two-year term, the chemical suppliers listed in Exhibit A (“Suppliers”) honored fixed unit prices 
resulting in approximately $1.8 million in chemical costs to the City each fiscal year.  

In FY 2019/20, during the first one-year option of the Contracts, the Suppliers stated they were no 
longer able to honor the fixed unit pricing due to increased material and freight costs.  Consequently, 
the Suppliers requested and the City accepted increased unit pricing during the first one-year option 
period, resulting in approximately $2.5 million in chemical costs to the City in FY 2019/20.

In FY 2020/21, the City exercised the second one-year option of the Contracts; the total cost for the 
purchase of chemicals for current fiscal year is estimated to be approximately $2.5 million.  

For FY 2021/22, the Suppliers have requested increased unit pricing for the final one-year renewal 
term.  Proposed unit prices, percentage increases, and estimated annual costs for FY 2021/22 are 
detailed in Exhibit A.  The requested increases are consistent with current market prices.  Sufficient 
funds will be appropriated in the Utilities Department operating budget for FY 2021/22 to cover the 
proposed increased costs for the purchase of chemicals.

The total cost for the purchase of chemicals under the Contracts in FY 2021/22 may vary depending 
on the City’s water treatment needs but shall not exceed $3.8 million.  The unit prices detailed in 



Contract Renewal for the Purchase of Water Treatment Chemicals
April 7, 2021
Page 2

Exhibit A will remain firm during FY 2021/22.  The purchase of chemicals is essential to the proper 
treatment of water and wastewater to protect the environment and the public health. 

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On June 28, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution No 2017-88R authorizing a bid award for the 
purchase of chemicals to the bidders listed in Exhibit A.  The bid specifications required a two-year 
Contract and provided three successive one-year options to renew. 

On May 22, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2019-76 authorizing approval of the first 
one-year option to renew the Contracts for FY 2019/20 with unit price increases.  The general 
provisions of the bid allowed for price increases based on general price increases to the trade or 
industry, but capped any yearly increase to three percent.  Due to current market conditions, several 
of the general price increases in the industry exceed that threshold.

BACKGROUND:

The City supplies water to approximately 26,000 residential, commercial, and agricultural customers.  
The City treats raw water from multiple sources at the City’s water treatment plant near Dixon Dam.  
The raw water is treated, in part through the addition of chemicals, to remove organic compounds and 
suspended materials to meet and exceed drinking water standards.  The City also operates a 
wastewater treatment and disposal facility, also known as the Hale Avenue Resource Recovery 
Facility.  Wastewater is treated with chemicals to remove suspended solids, volatile organic 
compounds, and other pollutants so the water is safe for recycling and ocean discharge.  The use of 
these chemicals is essential for the treatment of water and wastewater, both to meet regulatory 
requirement and to ensure the safety and cleanliness of the Escondido community.

Based on the current market conditions in the chemical industry, and as allowed by the general 
provisions of the bid, the Purchasing Division and the Utilities Department deemed it is in the City’s 
best interest to renew the Contracts for the final one-year term effective July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2022, at the proposed unit prices listed in Exhibit A. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
04/01/21 9:01 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Resolution No. 2021-46
2. Resolution No. 2021-46 – Exhibit “A” – List of Vendors and Unit Prices for the Purchase of 

Chemicals.



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-46

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF 
FINANCE, TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY, THE FINAL RENEWAL OPTION 
OF PURCHASE ORDER CONTRACTS FOR 
THE PURCHASE OF CHEMICALS

WHEREAS, on June 28, 2017, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2017-

88R, authorizing the Director of Finance to execute purchase order contracts for the 

purchase of water treatment chemicals (“Contracts”); and

WHEREAS the Contracts included an initial two-year term and three successive 

one-year options to extend; and

WHEREAS, on May 22, 2019, the City Council adopted Resolution No.2019-76 

authorizing the exercise of the first one-year option to extend the Contracts, including 

increased unit prices; and

WHEREAS, on July 1, 2020, the Director of Finance exercised the second one-

year option to extend the Contracts, including increased unit prices; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise the third and final one-year option to 

extend the Contracts for the purchase of chemicals used at the City’s water and 

wastewater treatment plants for fiscal year (“FY”) 2021/22; and

WHEREAS, the proposed unit prices for FY 2021/22 are attached hereto as 

Exhibit “A” and incorporated by this reference; and



WHEREAS, the proposed unit prices detailed in Exhibit “A” are consistent with 

current market prices; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve the third and final one-year extension of Contracts for FY 

2021/22 at the unit prices detailed in Exhibit “A”.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the Mayor and City Council accepts the recommendation of the 

Director of Finance regarding the renewal of Contracts.

3. That the City Council authorizes the Director of Finance to execute, on 

behalf of the City, the third and final one-year extension of the Contracts for the 

purchase of chemicals for FY 2021/22 at the proposed unit prices detailed in Exhibit “A” 

which is attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, subject to final approval as 

to form by the City Attorney.



Item # Chemical 

Chemical 

Used by * Lowest Responsible Bidder 

Estimated 

Annual 

Usage

 FY 2021/22 

Proposed Unit 

Price 

Estimated Extended 

5th Year Renewal 

Cost

Annual Cost 

Increase 

  % 

Increase

1 Sodium Chloride (Salt) WTP Step Saver Inc. 1181 Tons 159.06$   187,849.86$   11,892.67$   6.76%

2

Cationic Polyelectrolyte 

(20% Solids) WTP SNF Polydyne 162 Tons 1,160.00$    187,920.00$   -$   0.00%

3

Ferric Sulfate      

(12-14% Iron content dry basis) WTP/WWTP Kemira Water Solutions

2,700 Dry 

Tons 397.00$   1,071,900.00$    45,927.00$   4.48%

4

Aqua Ammonia      

(19% basis wet basis) WTP Airgas Specialty Products 220 Tons 158.40$   34,848.00$   -$   0.00%

5 Purate WTP Water Solutions 141 Tons 2,100.00$    296,100.00$   2,820.00$   0.96%

6

Hydroflousilicic Acid  

(23% FSA) WTP DuBois Chemical 110 Tons 414.00$   45,540.00$   5,500.00$   13.74%

7

Sodium Hydroxide 

(50% solution) WTP JCI Jones Chemicals Inc. 685 Tons 629.11$   430,940.35$   -$   0.00%

8 Polyelectrolyte Bulk Polymer WWTP SNF Polydyne 380,000 Lbs 0.137$   52,060.00$   -$   0.00%

9

Sodium Hypochlorite 

(12.5% by weight) WTP/WWTP Olin Corporation 614,000 Gals 0.82$    503,480.00$   18,420.00$   3.80%

10 Bioxide WWTP Evoqua Water Technologies 90,000 Gals 2.67$    240,300.00$   4,500.00$   1.91%

11

Dewatering Polymer 

(Active lbs.) WWTP SNF Polydyne 88,000 Lbs 2.952$   259,776.00$   -$   0.00%

12 T-22 Filter Aid (Coagulant) WWTP SNF Polydyne 700,000 Lbs 0.42$    294,000.00$   -$   0.00%

12a T-22 Filter Aid (Flocculant) WWTP SNF Polydyne 32,200 Lbs 0.903$   29,076.60$   -$   0.00%

13 93% FCC Sulfuric Acid WTP Northstar Chemical 144 Tons 341.35$   49,154.40$   1,209.60$   2.52%

14 Permanganate WTP Carus Chemical Company 40,000 lbs. 2.41$    96,400.00$   6,400.00$   7.11%

Total Estimated Annual Cost FY 2021/22 3,779,345.21$    

Exhibit A -  List of Vendors and Unit Prices  

Resolution No. 2021-46 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2



Item # Chemical 

Chemical 

Used by * Lowest Responsible Bidder 

Estimated 

Annual 

Usage

 FY 2021/22 

Proposed Unit 

Price 

Estimated Extended 

5th Year Renewal 

Cost

Annual Cost 

Increase 

      % 

Increase

Exhibit A -  List of Vendors and Unit Prices    

*WTP-Water Treatment Plant / WWTP-Wastewater Treatment Plant

Resolution No. 2021-46 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 2



Staff Report - Council

 Consent Item No. 8                         April 7, 2021 File No. 0600-10, A-3357

SUBJECT: Authorization of Participation Agreement, Easement, and Plot Plan Approval

DEPARTMENT: Community Development 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-52 authorizing the Mayor to execute, on 
behalf of the City, a Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program Participation Agreement 
(“Agreement”) and related easement (“Easement”) with San Diego Gas & Electric (“SDG&E”) for the 
installation of ten electric vehicle (“EV”) charging stations at the Woodward Parking Lot of Grape Day 
Park, and approve SDG&E’s Plot Plan for the design of the EV charging stations (“Plot Plan”).

The Agreement is attached to the draft Resolution No. 2021-52 as Exhibit A and incorporated herein 
by this reference. 

The Easement is attached to the draft Resolution No. 2021-52 as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

The Plot Plan site plan and exhibits are attached to the draft Resolution No. 2021-52 as Exhibit C and 
incorporated herein by this reference.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

Fiscal impacts of the Agreement are limited to staff time and resources necessary to carry out related 
administrative tasks, including but not limited to report preparation, and record and release of the 
proposed easement.  Staff time and resources for such administrative tasks will be included within the 
Community Development Department budget.  

During the eight-year term of the Agreement, SDG&E will own, maintain, and operate the EV charging 
stations equipment installed at the Woodward Parking Lot of Grape Day Park.  Thus, there will be no 
cost to the City for the design, installation, and operation of EV charging stations equipment and 
infrastructure.  

The City will have the option to purchase the EV charging station equipment from SDG&E at fair market 
value, subject to regulatory approval, at the end of the Agreement term. 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:

In an effort to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, SDG&E recently adopted its Power Your Drive for 
City and County Parks EV Charging Infrastructure Program (“Program”) to maximize the use of 



April 7, 2021
Authorization of Participation Agreement and Easement
Page 2

renewable energy to charge electric vehicles at highly trafficked community facilities in the region.  The 
Program is the latest in a series of initiatives undertaken by SDG&E to expand EV charging to make it 
easier for more people to switch to zero-emission transportation, which is key to reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions and air pollution.  The Program is intended to move San Diego County toward supplying 
10% of Governor Jerry Brown’s goal for 1.5 million zero-emission vehicles in California by 2025.

In late 2020, SDG&E contacted the City staff and confirmed the City’s eligibility to participate in the 
Program.  Grape Day Park, and the associated Woodward Parking Lot, was subsequently identified as 
a preferred location for installation of the EV charging stations due to its proximity to existing SDG&E 
underground infrastructure, surrounding uses, and downtown amenities.  

Thereafter, SDG&E submitted the Plot Plan (Planning Case No. PL21-0039) for the installation of the 
proposed EV charging station equipment.  City staff reviewed the Plot Plan, and have identified 
conditions for its approval (“Conditions of Approval”).  The Conditions of Approval are attached to the 
draft Resolution No. 2021-52 as Exhibit 4 and incorporated herein by this reference.

SDG&E also submitted proposed plans for installation of the ten EV charging stations at the Woodward 
Parking Lot (“Proposed Plans”).  The Proposed Plans are attached to this Staff Report as Attachment 
A and incorporated herein by this reference.  Pursuant to the Proposed Plans, two types of EV chargers 
will be installed: eight level 2 (208-240 volt) chargers, which can provide up to 10-20 miles of range per 
hour of charging; and two DC fast chargers (480 volt), which can provide about 20-30 miles for every 
15 minutes of charging.  A photo illustration of the proposed EV chargers is attached to this Staff Report 
as Attachment B and incorporated herein by this reference.  Each EV charger will be approximately five 
feet tall and serviced by SDG&E’s existing underground infrastructure.

During the eight-year Agreement term, SDG&E will own, maintain, and operate the ten EV charging 
stations installed at the Woodward Parking Lot of Grape Day Park.  Thus, there will be no cost to the 
City for the design, installation, and operation of electric vehicle charging stations infrastructure.  The 
City will have the option to purchase the EV charging station equipment from SDG&E at fair market 
value, subject to regulatory approval, at the end of the Agreement term.  At the end of the eight-year 
Agreement term, the Easement may be abandoned and encumbrance on the property’s title may be 
released

City residents and customers that utilize the EV charging stations installed at the at the Woodward 
Parking Lot will pay SDG&E at time of use rates.  A third-party vendor selected solely by SDG&E will 
provide related charging and billing services.

Despite staff’s attempts to negotiate the Agreement, SDG&E has declined to include insurance and 
indemnification provisions.  

Staff previously requested that SDG&E include an insurance provision in the Agreement.  Pursuant to 
the insurance provision proposed by staff, SDG&E would have been required to procure and maintain 
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property that may arise from or in 



April 7, 2021
Authorization of Participation Agreement and Easement
Page 3

connection with the Agreement.  In lieu of adding the proposed insurance provision, SDG&E provided 
evidence of its of self-insurance.  SDG&E further indicated that, throughout the term of the Agreement, 
it will be responsible for maintaining, operating, and repairing the ten EV charging stations in a manner 
similar to any of its other facilities existing on private property or within the public right of way (e.g. pole, 
transformer, switch cabinet, manhole, handhole).  SDG&E’s obligations to maintain, operate, and repair 
the ten EV charging stations shall be in accordance with SDG&E’s obligations as a utility provider 
regulated by the Public Utilities Commission. 

Similarly, staff proposed to include an indemnification provision within the Agreement.  The proposed 
indemnification provision would have required SDG&E to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City 
(including its officials, officers, agents, employees, and volunteers) from and against any and all claims, 
suits, liabilities, or injuries arising from the Agreement, except where caused by the sole negligence or 
willful misconduct of the CITY.  SDG&E declined to incorporate the proposed indemnification provision 
into the Agreement.  

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW:

The California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines list classes of projects that have been 
determined to not have a significant effect on the environment and as a result are exempt from review 
under CEQA.  The Project site is located within a developed urban area of the City and developed as 
a municipal parking lot.  The proposed project qualifies for a categorical exemption from CEQA pursuant 
to CEQA Guidelines section 15303, as a new construction of a small structure.  The CEQA Notice of 
Exemption is attached to the draft Resolution No. 2021-52 as Exhibit F and incorporated herein by this 
reference. The Notice of Exemption demonstrates that the Project qualifies for the exemption and does 
not have a significant effect on the environment.  

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Mike Strong, Director of Community Development
04/01/21 12:56 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment 1 - Proposed Plans 
2. Attachment 2 - Photo Illustration 
3. Resolution No. 2021-52, including the following Exhibits: 
4. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit A Agreement 
5. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit B Easement 
6. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit C Plot Plan 
7. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit D Conditions of Approval 
8. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit E Findings of Fact 
9. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit F Notice of Exemption 



.-------------------------------------------------------------. 

83200053 - GRAPE DAY PARK
321 N. BROADWAY, ESCONDIDO, CA 92025 

VICINITY MAP 

NO SCALE TB# 1129-H2 

SHEET INDEX 
SHEET 1: COVER PAGE AND ONE LINE 
SHEET 2: SKETCH 

APPLICANT APPROVAL 

APPROVAL OF THE SYSTEM DESIGN AS IT APPEARS ON THIS PRELIMINARY DRAWING(S). 

A. Certifies that the location of facilities to be owned and operated by SDG&E ore acceptable 
and are not in conflict with Applicant's planned improvement. 

B. Authorizes SDG&E to proceed with the preparation of finol design(s), drawing(s), ond/or 
cost(s). 
Any further costs incurred by SDG&E in the processing of this project will be at the 
Applicant's expense if: 

1. There are changes to the system caused by the Applicant or the Applicant's authorized 
representative. 

2. There is a deviation from the gas/electric load information specified on the Approved 
Load Study which will necessitate design and/or construction changes. 

3. The project is cancelled after contract negotiations have been completed by Applicant 
and Utility. 

APPLICANT APPROVAL - Please Print or Type 

APPLICANT SIGNITURE 

Copyright 2003 Son Diego Gas & Electric Company. All rights reserved. 
Removal of this copyright notice without permission is not permitted under low. 

TITLE 

DATE 

ONE LINE DIAGRAM 

NO SCALE 
CIRCUIT 515 
UG 515 00007 
EAfiA 15952-120320 
PROJECT ADDRESS: 321 N. BROADWAY, ESCONDIDO, CA 92025 

........ ,

... 91· .... .... .... \ 
REFERENCE STRUCTURE

� 

t,.\.�t."-- .... \ 
H111200 11i l

_. \ 314. 3-3 ........ 
... · ........ ,.,. \ 

,;o\)��:;?.:?:�f�:/: 
;l.�).t�"..,.\. ,;..-\ 

\\'j';;
.,_
�l��;; :::0,il� �

) 

9s31:,;:/(* r �, REFERENCE STRUCTURE__/ 

0011,
,Y. I J 515-92 

_/ 

1-SONTS 
0124171 

REFERENCE STRUCTURE 
515-93 
1-50 NOD 
0124170 

STRUCTURE COORDINATES 

(LOC 1) D143394: N 33.125118', W -117.084441' 
[LOC 3] D143394: N 33.125136', W -117.084449' 

NOTES 

0 THE PURPOSE OF THIS WORK ORDER IS TO INSTALL TWO NEW METERS AND TWO 
TRANSFORMERS FOR ELECTRIC CHARGERS. THE SITE WILL HAVE A TOTAL OF 9 NOZEELS. 
TWO DC FAST CHARGERS, THREE L2 DUAL CHARGERS AND ONE L2 SINGLE CHARGER 

0CAUTION: ELECTRIC STAND-BY LINEMAN REQUIRED FOR ALL WORK AROUND 
ENERGIZED FACILITIES. 

0 ALL QUESTIONS RELATED TO SERVICE TRENCH SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO THE 
APPROPRIATE FIELD CONSTRUCTION ADVISER. 

0 ALL EQUIPMENT ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WILL REQUIRE AN EASEMENT. 

INS: 3425 

515-1020 

1-150 HNS 

D238442 

EX. 3425 PAD 

TO REMAIN 

515-424 

INS: 1-150 HBS 

D143394 

RECEIVED 

0 

SCALE 

NTS 

(J)O � 
0

0 

0� 0� 

� i
f--
� -1---:l

.,, 

I rr, 
O 13 
s: ->. 1§ "O O 0 

Coll 2 Working Days Boforo You Dig/ � -ri � 

1-800-227-2600 z N 

n 
:c 
s: 
m 

z 
-I 

i,-

Attachment 1 



Attachment 1 



ATTACHMENT 2 

Charging Station Specifications and Photos 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-52

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, 
ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A PARTICIPATION 
AGREEMENT AND EASEMENT WITH 
SDG&E, AND APPROVING A PLOT PLAN 
FOR INSTALLATION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLE 
CHARGING STATIONS AT THE WOODWARD 
PARKING LOT OF GRAPE DAY PARK

WHEREAS, San Diego Gas & Electric (”SDG&E”)  recently adopted its Power Your 

Drive for City and County Parks EV Charging Infrastructure Program (“Program”) to 

maximize the use of renewable energy to charge electric vehicles (“EV”) at eligible 

community facilities in the region; 

WHEREAS, in late 2020, SDG&E contacted the City of Escondido (“City”) and 

confirmed the City’s eligibility to participate in the Program; 

WHEREAS, Grape Day Park, and the associated Woodward Parking Lot, has 

been identified as a preferred location for installation of EV charging stations as part of 

the Program due to its proximity to existing SDG&E underground infrastructure, 

surrounding uses, and downtown amenities;

WHEREAS, the Community Development Commission is the owner of Grape Day 

Park, and the associated Woodward Parking Lot, located at 251 Woodward Avenue, 

Escondido, CA 92025 (Assessor’s Parcel Number 229-352-12-00);

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 2012-16 of the City Council of the City, the 

City is the successor agency to the Escondido Community Development Commission;



WHEREAS, as a Program participant, SDG&E requires the City to enter into its 

eight-year Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program Participation 

Agreement (“Agreement”) for installation, maintenance, and operation of EV charging 

stations at the Woodward Parking Lot of Grape Day Park;

WHEREAS, the Agreement is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A and 

incorporated herein by this reference;

WHEREAS, contrary to City staff requests, SDG&E has declined to include 

insurance and indemnification provisions in the Agreement; 

WHEREAS, there will be no cost to the City for the design, installation, and 

operation of EV charging station equipment and infrastructure pursuant to the Agreement; 

and

WHEREAS, the City will have the option to purchase the EV charging station 

equipment at fair market value at the conclusion of the eight-year Agreement term, 

subject to regulatory approval, and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to grant SDG&E an easement for the purpose of 

constructing, installing, and maintaining the 10 EV charging stations and infrastructure 

during the eight-year Agreement term (“Easement”); 

WHEREAS, the Easement is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B and 

incorporated by this reference;



WHEREAS, SDG&E has filed a land use development application with the City 

(Planning Case No. PL 21-0039) consisting of a proposed Plot Plan for the installation 

and operation of 10 EV charging stations and infrastructure at the Woodward Parking Lot 

of Grape Day Park (“Plot Plan”); and 

WHEREAS, the Plot Plan plans and exhibits are attached to this Resolution as 

Exhibit C and incorporated herein by this reference;

WHEREAS, the Conditions of Approval of SDG&E’s Plot Plan are attached to this 

Resolution as Exhibit D and incorporated herein by this reference; 

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed SDG&E’s requests for this project and 

has determined SDG&E’s proposed installation of EV charging stations at the Woodward 

Parking Lot of Grape Day Park is categorically exempt from further review under the 

California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15303;

WHEREAS, the Findings of Fact related to SDG&E’s Plot Plan is attached to this 

Resolution as Exhibit E and incorporated herein by this reference;

WHEREAS, the Notice of Exemption related to SDG&E’s Plot Plan is attached to 

this Resolution as Exhibit F and incorporated herein by this reference; and

WHEREAS, this City Council desires at this time and deems it to be in the best 

public interest to approve the Agreement, Easement, and Plot Plan for installation and 

operation of then EV charging stations and infrastructure at the  Parking Lot of Grape Day 

Park.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That SDG&E’s proposed installation of EV charging stations at the 

Woodward Parking Lot of Grape Day Park is categorically exempt pursuant 

to CEQA Guidelines section 15303 and thus exempt from further CEQA 

review.

3. That the Findings of Fact (Exhibit E) related to SDG&E’s Plot Plan are 

hereby made by this City Council, and represent the City Council’s careful consideration 

of the record.  The findings of this City Council contained in Exhibit E shall be the final 

and determinative Findings of Fact related to SDG&E’s Plot Plan.

4. That upon consideration of the Findings, the attached Exhibits, the Staff 

Report dated April 7, 2021 (a copy of which is on file in the Office of the City Clerk), 

public testimony presented at the meeting, and all other oral and written evidence 

regarding the Agreement, Easement, and Plot Plan, the City Council hereby approves 

the Plot Plan subject to the Conditions of Approval set forth in Exhibit D.  

5. The Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, the Agreement 

(Exhibit A) and Easement (Exhibit B). 

5. The City Manager or designee is authorized to manage all related 

Agreement and Easement documentation.



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

1 

This CUSTOMER PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is by and between SAN DIEGO GAS 

& ELECTRIC COMPANY, a California corporation (“SDG&E”) and City of Escondido (“Program 

Participant”). SDG&E and Program Participant are referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as 

the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

A. In support of California’s goal to reach 1.5 million zero-emission vehicles by 2025 and infrastructure

to support more than 5 million zero-emission vehicles by 2030, Program Participant will permit, and

SDG&E will own, install, operate and maintain electric vehicle charging stations at qualifying and

selected Park & Beaches as part of SDG&E’s Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging

Program (“Program”) and as approved by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).

B. In general, the Program provides: no cost design, installation and operation of SDG&E infrastructure

and EV Charging Equipment at no cost to Program Participant for a period of eight (8) years. SDG&E

agrees to facilitate billing to EV Drivers using EVSPs as more fully described in Section 1.1 below.

C. Pursuant to AB1083, Program Participant and SDG&E are entering into this Agreement for

participation in the Program; and for installation and operation of public EV charging infrastructure at

Grape Day Park, 321 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 (“Facility”).

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties mutually agree as follows: 

1.0 GENERAL PROGRAM PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS: 

To participate in the Program, Program Participant agrees to comply with the following requirements: 

1.1 Have dedicated parking for the electric vehicles; 

1.2 Execute and deliver an SDG&E approved easement which shall be recorded in the office of the 

County Recorder for the County of San Diego. 

1.3 Cooperate with SDG&E to ensure the Facility meets applicable accessibility requirements of 

the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); 

1.4 Notify SDG&E in cases of vandalism, damaged or non-functioning equipment. Program 

Participant is not obligated to perform any inspection or maintenance of installed EVSE; 

1.5 Submit Owner Authorized Agent (OAA) Form. OAA approves SDG&E to act as Program 

Participant’s agent as it relates to obtaining any required permits for the installation of the EV 

infrastructure (Exhibit A) and; 

1.6 Support data collection efforts as part of this Program. 

2.0 DEFINITIONS 

ADA: Americans with Disabilities Act. 

Disadvantaged Community: Communities identified by census tract as being in the top quartile 

within SDG&E service territory as scored by the CalEPA Enviroscreen tool and as approved per 

SDG&E Advice Letter 2876-E, Submittal of Definition of Disadvantaged Communities for Electric 

Vehicle-Grid Integration (VGI) Pilot Program Pursuant to Commission Decision 16-01-045. 

Easement: A real property instrument hereto grant right of way for SDG&E to construct, maintain, 

operate and repair any SDG&E owned infrastructure. 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

2 

 

 

 

Effective Date: The date that this Agreement is dually signed and executed. 

EV: Electric Vehicle. 

EV Driver: An EV operator who parks at and uses the EVSE at the Facility. 

EVSE: Electric Vehicle Supply Equipment. All equipment needed to charge an EV including 

the EV charging station, switches, fuses, meters and other associated equipment. 

EVSP:  Electric  Vehicle Service Provider. The third party selected by SDG&E to providing 

charging and billing services to EV Drivers. 

Facility: The premises, where the EV infrastructure will be located. 

Grantor: The fee simple owner of the real property where the Facility is to be located pursuant 

to the Easement. 

Implementers: SDG&E, its contractors, vendors, representatives, or other persons or entities 

responsible for implementing the Program on behalf of SDG&E. 

Intellectual Property Rights: All trade secrets, patents and patent applications, trademarks 

(whether registered or unregistered and including any goodwill acquired in such trade marks), 

services marks, trade names, internet domain names, copyrights (including rights in computer 

software), moral rights, database rights, design rights, rights in know-how, rights in inventions 

(whether patentable or not) including, but not limited to, any and all renewals or extensions thereof, 

and all other proprietary rights (whether registered or unregistered, and any application for the 

foregoing), and all other equivalent or similar rights which may subsist anywhere in the world, 

including, but not limited to, any and all renewals or extensions thereof. 

In Service Date: The date that Project is energized and project commissioning complete. 

Job or Project:    The installation of the approved EVSE at the Facility identified above. 

Power Your Fleet for Parks Public EV Charging Program (or Program): All facets of the 

Power Your Fleet for Parks Public EV Charging Program. 

Program Participant: The SDG&E Customer that enters into this Agreement. 

Rate: The billing rate for use of charging at a Facility. 

Removal Cost: EVSE removal costs which are the sum of (a) SDG&E’s full cost and expense to 

remove the EVSE, (b) an amount equal to the portion of the undepreciated cost of the EVSE 

remaining at the time of removal, (c) the portion of the undepreciated amount of the installation 

costs remaining at the time of removal. 

SDG&E: San Diego Gas & Electric Company. 

3.0 RIGHT TO ACCESS 

3.1 Design and Installation: Program Participant shall provide SDG&E and its Implementers 

access to the project location for purposes of design and installation of the EVSE. SDG&E and  its 

Implementers shall make reasonable accommodations to minimize all impacts to Program 

Participant operations 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

3 

 

 

 

3.2 Operation of Facility: Program Participant shall provide SDG&E and its 

Implementers reasonable access to the Facility at all times. 

4.0 EASEMENT REQUIREMENTS 

Program Participant executes and shall deliver the Easement within 60 days of presentation by 

SDG&E. If Easement is not approved by SDG&E, Program Participant forfeits Program eligibility. 

5.0 INSTALLATION OF EQUIPMENT 

SDG&E and its Implementers will design and construct the infrastructure in compliance with the 

terms of this Agreement, as well as all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulatory 

requirements. For reference, a preliminary layout of proposed infrastructure is illustrated in Exhibit 

B: Preliminary Site Plan. Design layout is coordinated at the site walk, where both SDG&E and 

Program Participant provide input. Final design will be emailed to Program Participant for 

approval. 

 

Program Participant shall have six (6) EV Charging Stations, four (4) Level 2 and two (2) DC Fast 

Chargers. 

 

6.0 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITES ACT (ADA) REQUIREMENTS 

Program Participant acknowledges that electric vehicle charging infrastructure is required to 

comply with ADA, if applicable, and California Building Standards, which may impact parking 

layouts and design. 

7.0 ELECTRIC VEHICLE SERVICE PROVIDER (EVSP) 

7.1 EVSP: SDG&E shall select an EVSP to provide charging and payment services to EV 

Drivers. 

7.2 Additional EVSP Services: Separate and apart from this Agreement, the EVSP may offer 

and provide any additional or complementary services, as long as these services do not directly 

interfere with the objectives of the Program. Specifically, such services may not include activities, 

agreements, arrangements, policies or procedures that inhibit the ability of the EV Drivers to 

respond to the pricing signal of the EV Rate. The costs of any additional EVSP services will be borne 

by Program Participant. 

8.0 RELOCATIONS 

8.1 Removal: Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Easement, at any time during the 

Term of this Agreement, should Program Participant require removal of the EVSE or parts thereof, 

other than those specifically contemplated herein, Program Participant shall bear full Removal Cost 

of all infrastructure installed pursuant to this Agreement, including utility owned infrastructure. 

Program Participant requesting removals shall be responsible for costs as identified in the Removal 

Cost Schedule: 
Removal Cost Schedule 

Year Program Participant 

Percentage Responsibility 

1 88% 

2 75% 

3 63% 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

4 

 

 

 

4 50% 

5 38% 

6 25% 

7 13% 

8 0% 
 

8.2 Relocations: Except as otherwise provided herein or in the Easement, at any time during the 

course of this Agreement or the duration of the Easement, whichever is longer, should Program 

Participant require relocation of the infrastructure installed pursuant to this Agreement including 

Utility owned infrastructure or parts thereof, such relocation shall be by mutual agreement of the 

Parties. Should SDG&E approve relocation of such infrastructure, such relocation shall be at sole 

expense of Program Participant regardless of whether Utility owned or Program Participant owned, 

and in accordance with any Program requirements, laws, regulations, or other applicable 

jurisdictional requirements in effect at the time of relocation. Additionally, at SDG&E’s discretion, 

upon a relocation, Program Participant shall either amend the Easement to include the legal 

description of the new location or enter into a new Easement with SDG&E. 

9.0 RATE 

EV Drivers will be charged the EV-TOU Rate, and the EVSP will manage the EV Driver’s 

payment. 

10.0 DATA COLLECTION & USE 

Program Participant shall support the data collection requirements of the Program. Data 

collection requirements will conform with the requirements of the CPUC. Program Participant 

consents to the use and disclosure, by SDG&E, its agents and representatives of data gathered as 

part of the Program for use in regulatory reporting, industry forums, case studies or other similar 

activities. 

11.0 CONTACT INFORMATION 

Facility contact persons for Program Participant shall be as follows: 

11.1 Designated Program Participant Contact Person for Operations 
Primary - Name:     

Job Title:     

Agency:     

Address:     

Email:     

Phone:     

 
Back-up - Name:     

Job Title:     

Agency:     

Address:     

Email:     

Phone:     

 

11.2 Designated SDG&E Contact Person for Operations 
Primary - Name:   Joe Bielawski  

Job Title:   Project Manager, Operations  

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

5 

 

 

 

Agency:   SDG&E  

Address:   8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123  

Email:   Jbielaw1@sdge.com  

Phone:   (858) 276-9980  

 
Back-up - Name:   Anthony Aguirre  

Job Title:   Project Manager, Power Your Drive for Parks  

Agency:   SDG&E  

Address:   8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123  

Email:   Aaguirre@sdge.com  

Phone:   (619) 416-2311  
 

12.0 COMPENSATION 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, under no conditions shall Program Participant 

receive compensation of any kind, either by cash, in-kind services, or otherwise, for any duties or 

requirements provided for in this Agreement or for participation in any way as part of the Program, 

including but not limited to: 

• Easement; 

• Use of data for lawful purposes; 

• Loss of activity during construction or maintenance activities, or 

• Any other inconvenience or loss, without limitation, related to participation. 

 

13.0 CONFIDENTIALITY 

During the term of this Agreement, Program Participant may be provided with information of a 

confidential nature (“Confidential Information”) by SDG&E or its Implementers. 

 
13.1 Duty of Confidentiality. Throughout and after the duration of this Agreement, Program 

Participant shall hold all Confidential Information in strict confidence. Without SDG&E’s prior 

written approval, Program Participant shall not use, disclose, reproduce, distribute, or otherwise 

misappropriate any Confidential Information, nor shall Program Participant take any action that 

may cause, or fail to take any action necessary to prevent causing, any Confidential Information to 

lose its character as Confidential Information. 

 
13.2 Return of Materials. Upon the termination or conclusion of this Agreement for any reason, 

or upon earlier request by SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives, Program 

Participant shall promptly erase and destroy or otherwise return all Confidential Information and 

other documents or data that contain Confidential Information. 

 
13.3 Customer Information. Program Participant acknowledges and agrees that all information 

Program Participant collects or obtains from SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated 

representatives with regard to EV Drivers, including but not limited to names, addresses, telephone 

numbers, account numbers, utility bill data, energy usage, demographics, financial data, or any 

other personal information (“Customer Information”), shall be deemed Confidential Information. 

 
13.4. Data Security. Program Participant will establish and diligently maintain safeguards and 

security practices to protect against the destruction, loss, or disclosure of any Confidential 

Information in its custody or possession. If Program Participant discovers a breach of security, it 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

6 

 

 

shall immediately notify SDG&E (use Contact Information included in Section 11.2) and use its 

best efforts to mitigate the breach and prevent any disclosure or loss of Confidential Information. 

 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, SDG&E understands that Program Participant is a public entity and 

subject to federal, state and local regulation governing public records, including the California 

Public Records Act. SDG&E understands and agrees that Program Participant shall comply with 

all such regulations, including the disclosure of Confidential Information, if legally required. 

 

14.0 INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 

Nothing in this Agreement or the Parties’ performance of it is intended to or shall be deemed to 

convey any Intellectual Property Rights to Program Participant. All Intellectual Property Rights 

relating to the Program are expressly reserved to SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated 

representatives and their respective licensors. 

 

15.0 WAIVER 

No provision of this Agreement may be waived unless agreed to by SDG&E and Program 

Participant in writing. SDG&E’s or Program Participant’ failure to insist upon strict performance 

of any provision of the Agreement, or to exercise any right based upon a breach thereof, or the 

acceptance of any performance during such a breach, shall not constitute a waiver of any right under 

this Agreement. 

 

16.0 DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

16.1 Meet and Confer: In the event of a dispute relating to this Agreement, Program Participant 

and SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives shall make a good faith effort to 

resolve the dispute by negotiation between representatives with decision-making power, who, to 

the extent possible, shall not have had substantive involvement in the matters of the dispute. 

 

16.2 Arbitration: In the event the Parties fail to resolve by negotiation any dispute arising out of 

or relating to this Agreement, such dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration administered by 

JAMS (formerly known as Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services) under its then current rules. 

The arbitration shall be conducted in San Diego County, California. The Parties hereby irrevocably 

waive any right to have such disputes tried before a jury. If either Party refuses or fails to participate 

in arbitration after receiving notice, then the arbitrator shall make an award based on the evidence 

presented to him or her. The arbitrator shall award the prevailing Party its fees and costs. Any 

arbitration award shall be final and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable 

law in any court having jurisdiction. In no event may arbitration be demanded on any claim after 

the applicable statute of limitation for commencing litigation has expired. 

 
17.0 GOVERNING LAW 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, excluding its conflict of 

laws rules. The exclusive venue for any litigation arising from or relating to this Agreement shall 

be in San Diego County, California. 

18.0 PROGRAM PARTICIPANT REPRESENTATIONS 

Program Participant represents it is an independent entity from SDG&E, its affiliates, contractors, 

vendors, representatives, designees and nothing herein shall be construed as creating any agency, 

partnership, or other form of joint enterprise between Program Participant and SDG&E, its 

affiliates, contractors, vendors, representatives or designees nor create any obligations or 

responsibilities on their behalf except as otherwise provide herein, nor make any representations of 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

7 

 

 

any kind to this effect. Program Participant represents that it is the fee title owner and has the ability 

to grant the Easement. 

 

19.0 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 

This Agreement and any related documents are solely between the Parties and no third parties are 

intended beneficiaries. 

 

20.0 SEVERABILITY 

If any provision under this Agreement or its application to any person or circumstance is held 

invalid by any court of lawful jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of the 

Agreement which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 

 

21.0 MARKETING & BRANDING (SDG&E BRAND or EVSP BRAND) 

22.1 Disclaimer: All marketing, advertising or promotional materials which reference SDG&E, 

its Implementers or other designated representatives or the Program itself, shall include a disclaimer 

which shall state that Program Participant is not an agent or affiliate of any and all of SDG&E, its 

Implementers or other designated representatives. 

 

22.2 Logos/ Trademarks: Program Participant shall not use the logos, trademarks or service 

marks of SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives in any of Program 

Participant’s marketing, advertising, or promotional materials without express written approval 

from SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives as appropriate. 

22.3 Signage: Neither SDG&E nor its Implementers or other designated representatives or the 

Program itself shall be allowed to erect signage or other marketing materials on Program Participant 

property without prior express approval. 

22.4 Marketing Materials: SDG&E must pre-approve all Program marketing materials. 

22.5 Endorsements: Program Participant shall not state or imply endorsement on the part of 

SDG&E, its contractors or other designated representatives or the Program. 

 

22.6 Right to Review Materials: SDG&E, its contractors or other designated representatives 

reserves the right to review and approve any and all advertising, marketing, or promotional copy or 

materials developed or used by the Program Participant which references the Program Participant’s 

participation in this Agreement or the Program, financing and other SDG&E programs or those of 

the contractors or other designated representatives. At its sole discretion, SDG&E, its contractors 

or other designated representatives may require the Program Participant to submit such copy and 

materials for pre-approval. Approval shall be granted, unless SDG&E, its contractors or other 

designated representatives, in its sole discretion, determines that the copy or materials are 

misleading, in error, or fail to meet the requirements of this Agreement. The Program Participant 

agrees to remove from circulation or otherwise discontinue the use of any such materials. 

 

22.0 CHANGES 

SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives may initiate changes to the Program 

as circumstances dictate. SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives will make 

every effort to provide at least 30 calendar days written notice of changes that affect Program 

activities. In the event SDG&E, its Implementers or other designated representatives materially 

change the Program to the detriment of Program Participant, Program Participant may terminate 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

8 

 

 

this Agreement or rescind the Easement upon 30 days written notice to SDG&E, subject to the 

terms of this Agreement. 

 

Design Changes, Program Participant acknowledges and agrees that any infrastructure installed by 

SDG&E may vary from the Conceptual Design, if, in SDG&E’s sole discretion, actual Site 

conditions or municipal requirements dictate such changes. Program Participant may be responsible 

for incremental costs associated with changes to design requested by Program Participant for 

convenience after acceptance of design. 

23.0 TERMINATION AND TRANSFER 

23.1 Term: This Agreement shall be in effect from the Effective Date (“Effective Date”) through 

a period of eight (8) years from the In-Service Date (“In-Service Date”), unless the parties agree in 

writing to cancel or extend the Term (“Term”). 

23.2 SDG&E Right to Terminate: SDG&E may 

terminate, or for any duration suspend, this Agreement and Program Participant’s participation in 

the Program, or operation of the infrastructure, with or without cause, at any time, and for any 

reason, such reasons may include but are not limited to: 

 
• Failure to provide or maintain terms of the Easement 

• Breach of Agreement in whole or in part 

• Permitting issues 

• Exceptional installation costs 

• Environmental concerns 

• Program no longer authorized by the CPUC 

• Any other reason(s) not in Program or ratepayers’ best interest 

23.3 Termination: Program Participant may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days 

notice should SDG&E materially breach any material term of this Agreement or fail to perform any 

material its obligations hereunder, after notice and a reasonable opportunity to cure. Should a sale 

of property or other circumstance result in Program Participant losing ability to perform its 

obligations per this Agreement, Program Participant shall immediately notify SDG&E in writing 

and without delay within ten (10) days of Program Participant knowledge of such a possibility and 

notwithstanding  anything  to  the  contrary  contained  herein,   this   Agreement   shall  terminate. 

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement, if Program Participant terminates the 

Agreement for any reason other than an SDG&E material breach prior to the eight 

(8) year period, Program Participant will be responsible for the Removal Cost as calculated 

pursuant to the Removal Cost Schedule in Section 8.1. 

If after signing this Agreement, Program Participant withdraws from the Program prior to the site 

being activated, then SDG&E reserves the right to recover all fees and costs incurred by it and its 

Implementers after the Effective Date including, but not limited to, design cost, site walk costs, etc. 

23.4 Transfer of Agreement: Under no circumstance may this Agreement or parts thereof be 

assigned, transferred or otherwise conveyed without prior reasonable written approval of the other 

Party. 

 

24.0 OPTION TO PURCHASE EVSE 

At the end of the eight (8) year term of this Agreement, Program Participants may have the option 

to purchase EVSE located at: Grape Day Park, 321 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025, SDG&E 

may sell EVSE to Program Participant at fair market value, subject to regulatory approval. 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

9 

 

 

Program Participant must notify SDG&E in writing of its interest to purchase EVSE within thirty 

(30) days of completing the eight (8) year period term of this Agreement. 

 

25.0 NOTICES 

Any notice provided under this Agreement shall be sent via certified U.S. Mail, signature required. 

Notice is deemed effective on the third day after it is deposited in the U.S. Mail. Notice pursuant 

to this Agreement shall be sent to: 

 

25.1 Program Participant: 
Primary - Name:     

Job Title:     

Agency:     

Address:     

Email:     

Phone:     

Back-up - Name:     

Job Title:     

Agency:     

Address:     

Email:     

Phone:     

 

25.2 SDG&E: 
Primary - Name:   Anthony Aguirre  

Job Title:   Project Manager, Power Your Drive for Parks  

Agency:   SDG&E  

Address:   8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123  

Email:   Aaguirre@sdge.com  

Phone:   (619) 416-2311  

Back-up - Name:   Chris Farretta  

Job Title:   Clean Transportation Programs Manager  

Agency:   SDG&E  

Address:   8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123  

Email:   Cfarretta@sdge.com  

Phone:   (858) 547-3091  

 

26.0 AUTHORITY 

The undersigned represents and warrants that it has the requisite power, legal authority and capacity 

to enter into this Agreement and to perform each and every obligation required of Program 

Participant under this Agreement. 

 

27.0 MISCELLANEOUS 

This Agreement, including the Exhibits attached hereto and all items incorporated herein by 

reference and any written modification shall represent the entire and integrated agreement between 

the Parties hereto regarding the subject matter of this Agreement and shall constitute the exclusive 

statement of the terms of the Parties’ agreement, and shall supersede any and all prior negotiations, 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

10 

 

 

representations or agreements, written or oral, express or implied, that relate in any way to the 

subject matter of this Agreement or written modification.  If any provision of this Agreement is  in 

any way deemed unenforceable, then the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such 

term or provision to persons or circumstances other than those to which it is held unenforceable, 

shall not be affected, and each term and provision shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted 

by law. 

 

At any time either Party is aware of, any ambiguity in, or conflict between or within this document, 

said Party shall immediately bring such ambiguity to the attention of the other Party or its 

designated representative for clarification and resolution. 

 
28.0 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Program Participant represents and warrants that it has the requisite power, legal authority and 

capacity to enter into this Agreement and to perform each and every obligation required of Program 

Participant under this Agreement. In addition, the undersigned warrants and represents that the 

person signing this Agreement on the Party’s behalf has and shall have all requisite power and legal 

authority to bind the Party on whose behalf he/she is signing to the Party’s obligations under this 

Agreement. 

 

Program Participant acknowledges that it has provided all required information and documentation 

truthfully and accurately. 

 

This Agreement shall become effective as of the Effective Date. 
 

 
PROGRAM PARTICIPANT  SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 

By:    
 

By:    

Signature  Signature 

Date:        Date:  

Printed Name and Title  Printed Name and Title 

Name of Agency   

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

11 

 

 

Owner Authorized Agent Form 

   
 

 

EXHIBIT A: Owner Authorized Agent Form 

 

I,  , hereby authorize San Diego Gas & Electric to act as my agent in all 

documents / forms as it relates to obtaining Agency permits for the installation of AB 1082/AB 1083 

Electric Vehicle charging infrastructure at the property listed below. 

 

 

SITE HOST TO COMPLETE  
 

Property Address: 
 

Grape Day Park, 321 N. Broadway, Escondido, CA 92025 
 

 

 

 
 

Agent Name, Address & Telephone Number: 
 

Anthony Aguirre, Project Manager SDG&E 

 

8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123 

 
aaguirre@sdge.com, (619) 416-2311 

 

 
Property Owner Name, Address, & Telephone Number: 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Signature:     Date:     

Date:    Site ID#:    Site Name: 

 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 12



SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks Public EV Charging Program 

Participation Agreement 

12 

 

 

EXHIBIT B: Preliminary Site Plan 

 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 12



T:landServices:NonRecords:NewBusiness: -1- 810236S 
Rev. 1   

Recording Requested by 

San Diego Gas & Electric Company 

When recorded, mail to: 

San Diego Gas & Electric Company 

8690 Balboa Avenue  

San Diego, CA  92123-1569 

Attn:  Real Estate Records – CPA01 

SPACE ABOVE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

Project No.: 3-333203

Notif. No.: 3-349876

A.P.N.: 229-352-12  Transfer Tax None 

SR No.: 458401 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 

_____________________________________ 

RW 372105
EASEMENT 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO (Grantor), 

grants to SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY, a corporation (Grantee), an easement and right 

of way in, upon, over, under and across the lands hereinafter described, to erect, construct, change the size 

of, improve, reconstruct, relocate, repair, maintain and use facilities consisting of: 

1. Underground facilities, together with aboveground structures consisting of, but not

limited to, pad-mounted electrical equipment, and electric vehicle charging stations

(“EV Stations”), and appurtenances for the transmission and distribution of electricity

to the Facilities.

2. Communication facilities and appurtenances, which can include Supervisory Control

and Data Acquisition (“SCADA”).

The above facilities will be installed at such locations and elevations upon, along, over and under 

the hereinafter described easement as Grantee may now or hereafter deem convenient or necessary.  

Grantee also has the right of ingress and egress, to, from and along this easement in, upon, over and across 

the hereinafter described lands.  Grantee further has the right, but not the duty to clear and keep this 

easement clear from explosives, buildings, structures and materials. 

The property in which this easement and right of way is hereby granted is situated in the County 

of San Diego, State of California described as follows: 

That portion of Lot 25 in Block 10 of Escondido, according to Map thereof No. 336, filed in the 

Office of the County Recorder of said County of San Diego, more particularly described in Parcel 8 in a 

Deed recorded July 15, 1992 at Document No. 1992-0443955, of Official Records of said County of said 

County of San Diego.    

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 1 of 3



T:landServices:NonRecords:NewBusiness: -2- 810236S 
Rev. 1   
  

The easement in the aforesaid property shall be those strips of land, including all of the area lying 

between the exterior sidelines, which sidelines shall be three (3) feet, measured at right angles, on each 

exterior side of each and every utility facility installed within said property on or before December 31, 

2022. 

 

In order to provide adequate working space for Grantee, Grantor shall not erect, place or construct, 

nor permit to be erected, placed or constructed any building or other structure, deposit any materials, plant 

any trees and/or shrubs or change ground elevation within eight (8) feet of the front of the door or hinged 

opening of any above ground Facility (other than the EV Station) and within three (3) feet of the EV 

Station installed within this easement.    

 

 Grantor shall provide at all times, a delineated space surrounding each EV Station, so that EV 

Station may be accessed and used by an electric vehicle for charging.  SDG&E shall stencil, in paint, the 

ground of such stall with the letters “EV Charging Only”.  SDG&E shall mark a minimum of two and up 

to half of these spaces with a sign that states: “No parking except for electric vehicle charging”.  All 

signage proposed for this project shall conform to City Wide Sign Regulations and be administered by the 

Sign Code Administration Division of the Planning Department, where applicable.  

 

 Upon Grantor and Grantee’s mutual agreement, at both parties’ sole discretion, Grantee will (i) 

remove Grantee’s facilities from the Easement within a reasonable period of time, and (ii) upon Grantor’s 

request, furnish Grantor a good and sufficient quitclaim of the Easement; provided, that Grantee shall have 

such time as is necessary to obtain any and all agency or jurisdictional requirements and approvals 

necessary for such removal and quitclaim, including but not limited to any approval from the California 

Public Utilities Commission as may be required. 

 

Grantor grants to Grantee the right to erect and maintain on Grantor's property immediately adjacent 

to this easement retaining walls and/or protective barricades as may be necessary for Grantee's purposes.  

  

 Grantor shall not erect, place or construct, nor permit to be erected, placed or constructed, any 

building or other structure, plant any tree, drill or dig any well, within this easement. 

 

 Grantor shall not increase or decrease the ground surface elevations within this easement after 

installation of Grantee's facilities, without prior written consent of Grantee, which consent shall not 

unreasonably be withheld. 

 

 Grantee shall have the right but not the duty, to trim or remove trees and brush along or adjacent 

to this easement and remove roots from within this easement whenever Grantee deems it necessary.  Said 

right shall not relieve Grantor of the duty as owner to trim or remove trees and brush to prevent danger or 

hazard to property or persons. 

 

 CONDUITS CARRY HIGH VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL CONDUCTORS, therefore Grantor shall 

not make or allow any excavation or fill to be made within this easement WITHOUT FIRST NOTIFYING 

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY BY CALLING (619) 696-2000, and OBTAINING 

PERMISSION. 

 

 The legal description for this easement was prepared by San Diego Gas & Electric Company 

pursuant to Section 8730 of the Business and Professions Code, State of California. 

 

 This easement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of successors, heirs, executors, 

administrators, permittees, licensees, agents or assigns of Grantor and Grantee. 

 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 2 of 3



T:landServices:NonRecords:NewBusiness: -3- 810236S 
Rev. 1   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor executed this instrument this _______________ day of 

____________________________, 20_______. 

CITY OF ESCONDIDO
AS SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ESCONDIDO 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

By: ______________________________________________ 

Name: ___________________________________________ 
PRINT NAME 

Title: ____________________________________________ 

Drawn: BCorbilla 

Checked: CME 

Date: 12/08/2020 

Site No: 83200053 

Site Name: City of Escondido-Grape Day Park 

 

 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF  

On , before me         , 
 (name, title of officer) 

personally appeared         , 

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed 

to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 

authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity 

upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 

paragraph is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

(Notary Seal) 

   (Signature of Notary Public) 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who 

signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of 

that document. 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "B" 

Page 3 of 3



PL 21-0039 

Plans and Exhibits 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 1 of 3



 

 

 

  

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 2 of 3



 

 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "C" 

Page 3 of 3



EXHIBIT D 

PLANNING CASE NOS. PL21-0039 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

This Project is conditionally approved as set forth on the application received by the City of Escondido 
on January 26, 2021, and the Project drawings consisting of Site Plans and colored photos all designated 
as approved on April 7, 2021, and shall not be altered without express authorization by the Community 
Development Department.   

For the purpose of these conditions, the term “Applicant” shall also include the Project proponent, owner, 
permittee, and the Applicant’s successors in interest, as may be applicable. 

This Project is subject to all the terms and conditions set forth in the SDG&E Power Your Drive for Parks 
Public EV Charging Program Participation Agreement between San Diego Gas & Electric Company and 
the City of Escondido in accordance with Exhibit “A” of City Council Resolution No. 2021-52. 

A. General:

1. Acceptance of Permit.  If the Applicant fails to file a timely and valid appeal of this Permit within
the applicable appeal period, such inaction by the Applicant shall be deemed to constitute all of
the following on behalf of the Applicant:

a. Acceptance of the Permit by the Applicant; and

b. Agreement by the Applicant to be bound by, to comply with, and to do all things required
of or by the Applicant pursuant to all of the terms, provisions, and conditions of this Project
Permit or other approval and the provisions of the Escondido Municipal Code or Zoning
Code applicable to such Permit.

2. Permit Expiration. This Permit shall automatically expire after one year from the date of this
approval, or the expiration date of any extension granted in accordance with the Escondido
Municipal Code and Zoning Code.

The Permit shall be deemed expired if a building permit has not been obtained or work has been
discontinued in the reliance of that building permit.  If no building permits are required, the City
may require a noticed hearing to be scheduled before the authorized agency to determine if there
has been demonstrated a good faith intent to proceed, pursuant to and in accordance with the
provision of this Permit.

3. Certification.  The Director of Community Development, or his/her designee, is authorized and
directed to make, or require the Applicant to make, all corrections and modifications to the Project
drawings and any other relevant document comprising the Project in its entirety, as necessary to

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 1 of 7



make them internally consistent and in conformity with the final action on the Project.  This 
includes amending the Project drawings as necessary to incorporate revisions made by the 
decision-making body and/or reflecting any modifications identified in these conditions of 
approval.  Three copies of final Approved Plan set, shall be submitted to the Planning Division 
for certification.  Said plans must be certified by the Planning Division prior to submittal of any 
post-entitlement permit, including grading, public improvement, landscape, or building plans for 
the Project.  
 

4. Conformance to Approved Plans.  

 
a.  The operation and use of the subject property shall be consistent with the Project 

Description and Details of Request, designated with the Approved Plan set.   
 
b. Nothing in this Permit shall authorize the Applicant to intensify the authorized activity 

beyond that which is specifically described in this Permit.   
 

c. Once a permit has been issued, the Applicant may request Permit modifications.  “Minor" 
modifications may be granted if found by the Director of Community Development to be 
in substantial conformity with the Approved Plan set, including all exhibits and Permit 
conditions attached hereto.  Modifications beyond the scope described in the Approved 
Plan set may require submittal of an amendment to the Permit and approval by the 
authorized agency.   

 
5. Limitations on Use.  Prior to any use of the Project site pursuant to this Permit, all Conditions 

of Approval contained herein shall be completed or secured to the satisfaction of the Community 
Development Department.   
 

6. Certificate of Occupancy.  
 
a. No change in the character of occupancy or change to a different group of occupancies 

as described by the Building Code shall be made without first obtaining a Certificate of 
Occupancy from the Building Official, as required, and any such change in occupancy 
must comply with all other applicable local and state laws.   
 

b. Prior to final occupancy, a Planning Final Inspection shall be completed to ensure that the 
property is in full compliance with the Permit terms and conditions.  The findings of the 
inspection shall be documented on a form and content satisfactory to the Director of 
Community Development.   

   
7. Right to Entry.  The holder of this Permit shall make the premises available for inspection by 

City staff during construction or operating hours and allow the investigations of property 
necessary to ensure that minimum codes, regulations, local ordinances and safety requirements 
are properly followed.  The Applicant shall provide such business records, licenses, and other 
materials necessary upon request to provide evidence of compliance with the conditions of 
approval, as well as federal, state, or laws.   

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 2 of 7



 
8. Compliance with Federal, State, and Local Laws.  Nothing in this Permit shall relieve the 

Applicant from complying with conditions, performance standards, and regulations generally 
imposed upon activities similar in nature to the activity authorized by this permit.  (Permits from 
other agencies may be required as specified in the Permit’s Details of Request.)  This Permit 
does not relieve the Applicant of the obligation to comply with all applicable statutes, regulations, 
and procedures in effect at the time that any engineering permits or building permits are issued 
unless specifically waived herein.   
 
No part of this Permit’s approval shall be construed to permit a violation of any part of the 
Escondido Municipal or Zoning Code.  During Project construction and after Project completion, 
the Applicant shall ensure the subject land use activities covered by this Permit is conducted in 
full compliance with all local and state laws.    
 

9. Clerk Recording.   

 
a. Exemption.  If the environmental determination prepared for the Project is a categorical 

exemption, the City of Escondido hereby notifies the Applicant that the County Clerk’s 
Office requires a documentary handling fee of $50 in order to file a Notice of Exemption.  
In order to file the Notice of Exemption with the County Clerk, in conformance with 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines section 15062, the Applicant 
should remit to the City of Escondido Planning Division, within two working days of the 
final approval of the Project (the final approval being the date of this letter) a certified 
check payable to the “County Clerk” in the amount of $50.  The filing of a Notice of 
Exemption and the posting with the County Clerk starts a 35-day statute of limitations 
period on legal challenges to the agency’s decision that the Project is exempt from CEQA.  
Failure to submit the required fee within the specified time noted above will result in the 
Notice of Exemption not being filed with the County Clerk, and a 180-day statute of 
limitations period will apply. 

 

10. Application Accuracy.  The information contained in the application and all attached materials 
are assumed to be correct, true, and complete.  The City of Escondido is relying on the accuracy 
of this information and Project-related representations in order to process this application.  Any 
permits issued by the City may be rescinded if it is determined that the information and materials 
submitted are not true and correct.  The Applicant may be liable for any costs associated with 
rescission of such permits. 
 

11. Revocation, Suspension, Modification.  At any time after Project implementation, the City may 
require a noticed public hearing to be scheduled before the Planning Commission to determine 
if there has been demonstrated a good faith intent to proceed in reliance on this approval.  This 
item may be referred to the appropriate decision-making body upon recommendation of the 
Director of Community Development for review and possible revocation or modification of the 
Permit regarding non-compliance with the Conditions of Approval. 
 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 3 of 7



This Permit may be revoked, suspended or modified by the Planning Commission, or by the City 
Council on appeal, at any time regardless of who is the owner of the subject property or who has 
the right to possession thereof or who is using the same at such time, whenever, after a noticed 
hearing, and after the following findings are fully investigated: 

 
a. A violation of any term or condition not abated, corrected or rectified within the time 

specified on the notice of violation; or 
 

b. A violation of any City ordinance, state law, or federal law not abated, corrected or 
rectified within the time specified on the notice of violation; or 

 
c. The use as presently conducted creates or constitutes a nuisance. 

 
B. Construction, Maintenance, and Operation Obligations:  
 

1. Code Requirements.  All construction shall comply with the applicable requirements of the 
Escondido Municipal Code, Escondido Zoning Code, California Building Code; and the 
requirements of the Planning Division, Engineering Services Department, Director of Community 
Development, Building Official, City Engineer, and the Fire Chief in carrying out the 
administration of said codes.  Approval of this Permit request shall not waive compliance with 
any City regulations in effect at the time of Building Permit issuance unless specifically waived 
herein. 
 

As a condition of receiving the land use approvals specified herein, Applicant shall maintain the 
property subject to the approvals in compliance with all applicable city codes governing the 
condition or appearance of  property.  In addition to compliance with such basic standards, the 
property subject to these approvals shall also be maintained free of trash, plant debris, weeds, 
and concrete (other than existing foundations and permanent structures).  Any signs placed on 
the property advertising such property for sale or rent shall be in accordance with applicable 
laws, and be  kept clean, in like-new condition, and free from fading and graffiti at all times.  This 
condition shall be applicable from the date the land use is approved.  The failure to comply with 
this condition shall subject the approvals specified herein to revocation for failure to comply. 
 

2. Agency License and Permitting.  In order to make certain on- or off-site improvements 
associated with the Approved Plan set, the Permit request may require review and clearance 
from other agencies.  Nothing in these Conditions of Approval shall be construed as to waive 
compliance with other government agency regulations or to obtain permits from other agencies 
to make certain on- or off-site improvements prior to Final Map recordation, grading permit 
issuance, building permit issuance, or certificate of occupancy as required.  This review may 
result in conditions determined by the reviewing agency.   

 
At all times during the effective period of this Permit, the Applicant and any affiliated responsible 
party shall obtain and maintain in valid force and effect, each and every license and permit 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 4 of 7



required by a governmental agency for the construction, maintenance, and operation of the 
authorized activity. 

 
3. Utilities.  All new utilities and utility runs shall be underground, or fee payment in-liue subject to 

the satisfaction of the City Engineer.   
 

4. Noise.  All Project generated noise shall conform to the City’s Noise Ordinance (Ordinance 90-
08). 
 

5. Lighting.  All exterior lighting shall conform to the requirements of Article 35 (Outdoor Lighting 
Ordinance) of the Escondido Zoning Code. 

 

6. General Property Maintenance. The property owner or management company shall maintain 
the property in good visual and functional condition. This shall include, but not be limited to, all 
exterior elements of the buildings such as paint, roof, paving, signs, lighting and landscaping.  
The Applicant shall paint and re-paint all building exteriors, accessory equipment, and utility 
boxes servicing the Project, as necessary to maintain clean, safe, and efficient appearances. 
 

7. Anti-Graffiti.  The Applicant shall remove all graffiti from buildings and wall surfaces within 48 
hours of defacement, including all areas of the job site for when the Project is under construction.  
 

8. Anti-Litter. The site and surrounding area shall be maintained free of litter, refuse, and debris.  
Cleaning shall include keeping all publicly used areas free of litter, trash, and garbage. 
 

9. Staging Construction Areas.  All staging areas shall be conducted on the subject property, 
subject to approval of the Engineering Department.  Off-site staging areas, if any, shall be 
approved through the issuance of an off-site staging area permit/agreement.  

 

10. Disturbance Coordinator. The Applicant shall designate and provide a point-of-contact whose 
responsibilities shall include overseeing the implementation of Project, compliance with Permit 
terms and conditions, and responding to neighborhood concerns. 
 

11. Construction Waste Reduction, Disposal, and Recycling.  Applicant shall recycle or salvage 
for reuse a minimum of 65% of the non-hazardous construction and demolition waste for 
residential projects or portions thereof in accordance with either Section 4.408.2, 4.408.3, or 
4.408.4 of the California Green Building Standards Code; and/or for non-residential projects or 
portions thereof in accordance with either Section 5.408.1.1, 5.408.1.2, or 5.408.1.3 of the 
California Green Building Standards Code.  In order to ensure compliance with the waste 
diversion goals for all residential and non-residential construction projects, the Applicant must 
submit appropriate documentation as described in Section 4.408.5 of the California Green 
Building Standards Code for residential projects or portions thereof, or Section 5.408.1.4 for non-
residential projects or portions thereof, demonstrating compliance with the California Green 
Building Standards Code sections cited above. 
 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 5 of 7



12. Construction Equipment Emissions.  Applicant shall incorporate measures that reduce 
construction and operational emissions.  Prior to the City’s issuance of the demolition and 
grading permits for the Project, the Applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Planning 
Division that its construction contractor will use a construction fleet wherein all 50-horsepower or 
greater diesel-powered equipment is powered with California Air Resources Board (“CARB”) 
certified Tier 4 Interim engines or equipment outfitted with CARB-verified diesel particulate 
filters.  An exemption from this requirement may be granted if (i) the Applicant provides 
documentation demonstrating that equipment with Tier 4 Interim engines are not reasonably 
available, and (ii) functionally equivalent diesel PM emission totals can be achieved for the 
Project from other combinations of construction equipment. Before an exemption may be 
granted, the Applicant’s construction contractor shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the 
Director of Community Development that (i) at least two construction fleet owners/operators in 
San Diego County were contacted and those owners/operators confirmed Tier 4 Interim 
equipment could not be located within San Diego County during the desired construction 
schedule, and (ii) the proposed replacement equipment has been evaluated using the California 
Emissions Estimator Model (“CalEEMod”) or other industry standard emission estimation 
method, and documentation provided to the Planning Division confirms that necessary project-
generated functional equivalencies in the diesel PM emissions level are achieved. 

 
C. Parking and Loading/Unloading.  N/A 

 
 
D. Landscaping: N/A  

 
 

E. Specific Planning Division Conditions: 

 
a. Any new above-ground transformer/electrical boxes shall be painted a dark flat green and 

this note shall be included on the building plans. 
 
b. Any landscaping or irrigation removed or damaged shall be replaced/repaired. 
 
c. The applicant shall submit an encroachment permit with the Engineering Services 

Division/Field Engineering. 
 
F. Building Division Conditions:   

 
Building plans must be submitted for this project. These comments are preliminary only.  A 
comprehensive plan check will be completed prior to permit issuance and additional technical code 
requirements may be identified and changes to the originally submitted plans may be required. 

 
1. The Applicant shall submit a complete set of construction plans to the Development Services 

Department for building permit plan check processing.  Submitted plans must show 
compliance with the latest adopted editions of the California Building Code (The International 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 6 of 7



Building Code with California Amendments, the California Mechanical, Electrical and 
Plumbing Codes).   

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "D" 

Page 7 of 7



Page 1 of 1 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

PL 21-0039  

Environmental Determination(s): 

1. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, (CEQA, Public Resources Code section

21000 et. seq.), and its implementing regulations (the State CEQA Guidelines), Article 14 of

the California Code of Regulations section 15000 et. seq., the City of Escondido is the Lead

Agency for the project (“Project”), as the public agency with the principal responsibility for

approving the Project.

2. All of the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act have been met because it

was found that the project will not have a significant effect on the environment as

demonstrated in the Categorical Exemption in CEQA Guidelines section 15303, “New

Construction” as follows:

a. The project involves the installation and operation of a limited number of new, small

equipment within an existing municipal parking lot.  The site can be adequately served by

all required utilities and public services.

b. The project is not located in the vicinity of any designated or eligible state scenic highway;

there are no on-site hazardous waste sites associated with the project site listed under

Government Code section 65962.5.; and there are no historic resource located within the

project development area or would be affected by the proposed project.  All resource

topics associated with the project have been analyzed and were found to pose no

significant impact.  Therefore, the project would not make a cumulatively considerable

contribution to a significant cumulative impact.

Plot Plan: 

1. The project site is located within the Park View District (PV) of the Downtown Specific Plan

(SPA 9).  Accessory structures such as Electric Vehicle Charging Stations and related

infrastructure are permitted uses within the Park View District.

2. The Plot Plan is granted subject to such conditions as deemed necessary to meet the

standards of the use and zone in which it is located and to comply with applicable design

standards.  The plot plan also is granted subject to such additional conditions as deemed

necessary and desirable to preserve the public health, safety and general welfare.

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "E" 

Page 1 of 1



CITY OF ESCONDIDO 

PLANNING DIVISION 

201 NORTH BROADWAY 

ESCONDIDO, CA 92025-2798 

(760) 839-4671

Notice of Exemption 

To: San Diego Assessor/Recorder/County Clerk 
Attn: Fish and Wildlife Notices 
1600 Pacific Highway, Room 260 
San Diego, CA 92101 (MS A-33) 

From: City of Escondido 
201 North Broadway 
Escondido, CA  92025 

Project Title/Case No.:  PL21-0039 (SDG&E Electric Vehicle Charging Stations) 

Project Location - Specific:  On the southern side of Woodward Avenue, west of N. Broadway, addressed at 251 
Woodward Avenue (APN 229-352-12-00). 

Project Location - City:  Escondido     Project Location - County:  San Diego 

Description of Project:  The project involves the installation of SDG&E Electric Vehicle (“EV”) charging 
infrastructure and charging stations within the City of Escondido Grape Day Park/Woodward Parking Lot.  Two 
types of chargers will be installed as part of the pilot programs: Level 2 (208-240 volt) chargers, and DC fast 
chargers (480 volt).  Eight of the ten proposed EV chargers are Level 2 chargers.  The other two are DC fast 
chargers.  The EV charging stations are narrow vertical structures that are approximately five feet tall and serviced 
by underground infrastructure. 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  City of Escondido 

Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: 

Name:  Anthony Aguirre, San Diego Gas & Electric (Project Manager)  Telephone:  (619) 416-2311 

Address:  8306 Century Park Court, CP 42F, San Diego, CA 92123 

 Private entity  School district  Local public agency  State agency  Other special district 

Exempt Status:  The proposed project qualifies for a categorical exemption pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15303 for New Construction meeting all applicable conditions. 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

1. The project involves the installation and operation of a limited number of new, small equipment within an
existing municipal parking lot.  The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.

2. The project is not located in the vicinity of any designated or eligible state scenic highway; there are no on-site
hazardous waste sites associated with the project site listed under Government Code section 65962.5; and
there are no historic resources located within the project development area or that would be affected by the
proposed project.  All resource topics associated with the project have been analyzed and were found to pose
no significant impact.  Therefore, the project would not make a cumulatively considerable contribution to a
significant cumulative impact.

3. For the foregoing reasons, the project is categorically exempt pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15303, for
new construction and the project would not have the potential to cause an adverse impact on the environment
from any unusual circumstances.  Therefore, the activity is not subject to further CEQA review.

Lead Agency Contact Person: Jay Paul, Planning Division Area Code/Telephone/Extension (760) 839-4537 

Signature:                                 JPaul March 31, 2021 

Jay Paul, Senior Planner Date 

 Signed by Lead Agency  Date received for filing at OPR:      N/A 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "F" 

Page 1 of 1



Staff Report - Council

  Current Business Item No. 9 April 7, 2021     File No. 0610-10

SUBJECT: Approval of City Manager Agreement and Amendment to Existing City Manager 
Retiree Appointment Agreement

DEPARTMENT: City Attorney’s Office
Human Resources Department

RECOMMENDATION:

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-49 approving an Employment 
Agreement (“Agreement”) between the City of Escondido (“City”) and Sean McGlynn to serve as the 
City Manager.  

It is further requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-52, authorizing the Director of 
Human Resources to execute, on behalf of the City, a First Amendment to the current City Manager’s 
Retiree Appointment Agreement (“Retiree Agreement”) for the sole purpose of extending it to the 
effective date of Mr. McGlynn’s Agreement.  All other terms and conditions in the Retiree Agreement 
will remain the same.  

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The City’s financial obligations under the Agreement are detailed in Section 3.  Pursuant to Government 
Code section 54953(c)(3), a summary of the salary and fringe benefits must be reported orally prior to 
the City Council taking action on the Agreement.  The fiscal impact of the extension of the Retiree 
Agreement for the next few months will be dependent on the number of hours reported by Mr. Epp 
during that period, multiplied by his hourly rate of $137.50.  Mr. Epp receives no other compensation or 
benefits under the Retiree Agreement. 

PREVIOUS ACTION:

In the spring of 2020, Jeffrey Epp, the current City Manager, gave notice to the City Council that he was 
retiring after approximately 35 years of faithful service to the City of Escondido as both its City Attorney 
and City Manager.  On June 24, 2020, the City Council adopted Resolution 2020-91R temporarily 
appointing Mr. Epp as the City Manager effective July 13, 2020 to serve in that role while the City 
underwent a recruitment effort for his successor.  The Retiree Agreement entered into with Mr. Epp 
included a provision that the term of that temporary appointment would expire with the selection of a 
permanent replacement.



City Manager Employment Agreement
April 7, 2021
Page 2

BACKGROUND:

The City of Escondido operates under a Council-Manager form of government.  Under that model, the 
legislative body appoints a professional manager to oversee the day-to-day operations of the City and 
implement the policies of the City Council.

Pursuant to the Escondido Municipal Code, the City Manager is an appointed full-time individual who 
serves at the pleasure of the City Council subject to the provisions of an Employment Agreement.  
Under the Code, the City Manager has specified powers and responsibilities in addition to the power to 
serve as the administrative head of the City.  In general, the City Manager has overall responsibility for 
the efficient administration of all affairs of the City; to see that all laws and ordinances are duly enforced; 
to investigate complaints relating to matters of the administration of the government; to ensure the 
proper performance of any obligations of the City; to prepare and submit a proposed annual budget 
and salary plan; to attend meetings of the council; and to recommend the adoption of such measures 
and laws as necessary and appropriate.   The City Manager also serves as the Director of Emergency 
Services under Chapter 7 of the Code.  

RECRUITMENT EFFORT and SELECTION:

In August 2020, the City Council approved staff’s recommendation to hire the recruiting firm of Teri 
Black & Co. (“TBC”) to conduct the search for a new city manager.  

To initiate the recruitment effort, the mayor and each councilmember (including out-going 
councilmember Olga Diaz) met with the recruiter between November 5 and November 17, 2020, to 
discuss the ideal characteristics of the next city manager, priorities for the city manager’s first months 
on the job, and community concerns and challenges.  During these one-on-one meetings and in the 
weeks that followed, each city council member also solicited public input from constituents.

The recruitment was ambitious and thorough, with a nationwide strategy and outreach, officially 
launched on January 4, 2021, and closed on February 7, 2021.  Advertisements were placed in a 
number of publications and websites, including:

 International City/County Management Association website and e-newsletter
 Local Government Hispanic Network website
 National Forum for Black Public Administrators
 Western City website
 Californiacitynews.com
 PublicCEO.com
 Municipal Management Association of Southern California website
 Municipal Management Association of Northern California website



City Manager Employment Agreement
April 7, 2021
Page 3

In addition to paid advertising, the position was featured on the TBC website and promoted through its 
social media venues (including LinkedIn).

In total, 54 resumes were received from across the United States and the candidate pool was 
particularly impressive, given today’s competition for top city manager talent.

TBC conducted preliminary interviews with 11 of the 54 candidates and presented the results to the 
City Council in closed session on March 3, 2021.  The City Council then elected to interview six 
candidates on March 11 before inviting three finalists back on March 14 and making a preliminary offer 
of employment to one candidate.

The City unanimously found that Sean McGlynn had the requisite management experience, 
professional skill and leadership qualities necessary to be the City’s next city manager.  Mr. McGlynn 
is currently the City Manager for the City of Santa Rosa, California, and has 18 years of local 
government experience including 6 years as the Santa Rosa City Manager.  Mr. McGlynn has also 
served as the Deputy City Manager and Director of Museums & Cultural Affairs for the City of El Paso, 
Texas, and various positions with the Department of Cultural Affairs for the City of New York and New 
York City Opera in their Finance & Strategic Initiatives and Education programs, respectively. 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT:

The proposed Agreement between the City and Mr. McGlynn outlines the commitments and 
understandings of the parties, the compensation and benefits, and the methods by which the 
Agreement can be terminated.  Section 2 of the Agreement provides the details of the City Manager’s 
professional and ethical obligations to serve as the City’s Chief Executive Officer and carry out the 
Code’s requirements.  Further, the City provides certain commitments to the City Manager to assist him 
in achieving the City Council’s goals and implement its policies.  

Sections 3 and 4 of the Agreement identify the salary and benefits, as well as PERS and insurance 
obligations, which will be furnished to Mr. McGlynn.  Mr. Epp, the city attorney, and mayor and deputy 
mayor, negotiated the salary and benefits, including a reduction in Management Leave and life 
insurance, from the traditional amounts provided to the city manager.   

Section 5 of the Agreement provides the methods by which it may be terminated.  Under the Agreement, 
the City holds the right to terminate the employment relationship for cause and for convenience.  A 
termination for cause provision gives the City Council the authority to determine whether the city 
manager has committed some specific misconduct or where there has been a material failure to meet 
the performance obligations outlined for the manager.  The City may also terminate the Agreement for 
convenience by giving 30 day’s written notice and paying a year’s salary for the first five years, or six 
month’s salary if the contract is terminated for convenience by the City Council thereafter.  Such 
provisions are commonplace in these types of contracts. Mr. McGlynn must give ninety day’s written 



City Manager Employment Agreement
April 7, 2021
Page 4

notice if he wishes to terminate his employment. If Mr. McGlynn gives such notice, he would not be 
entitled to any severance benefits.  

EPP CONTRACT AMENDMENT:

Under Mr. McGlynn’s current employment agreement with the City of Santa Rosa, he is required to 
give 90 day’s notice of his departure.  On March 30, 2021, Mr. McGlynn gave his contractual notice 
and has indicated that he will be prepared to start here on June 29, 2021.  The Agreement will become 
effective on that start date.  

In the meantime, Mr. Epp will continue to serve as the City Manager.  Mr. Epp’s Retiree Agreement is 
set to expire as of the date his replacement is “selected.”  However, given the gap between the selection 
date and Mr. McGlynn’s start date, it is necessary to adopt an amendment to Mr. Epp’s contract on the 
same terms and conditions as before but now including a specific end date.   

CONCLUSION:

Staff recommends the adoption of Resolution Nos. 2021-49 and 2021-52 providing for the execution of 
the Agreement and First Amendment to the Retiree Agreement, respectively.  

The City looks forward to welcoming Mr. McGlynn to start the next chapter of his career and to assist 
the City Council in achieving its goals, objectives and policies as it sets the course for the City’s future.  

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Michael McGuinness, City Attorney
04/01/21 12:03 p.m.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 2021-49
2. Resolution No. 2021-49 Exhibit “A” 
3. Resolution No. 2021-52
4. Resolution No. 2021-52 Exhibit “A” 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-49

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING THE APPOINTMENT OF SEAN 
MCGLYNN AS THE CITY MANAGER, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE, ON 
BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN EMPLOYMENT 
AGREEMENT WITH SEAN MCGLYNN TO 
SERVE AS CITY MANAGER  

WHEREAS, the City of Escondido (“City”) has a Counil-Manager form of 

government whereby the city manager serves in the role of Chief Executive Officer and 

administrator of the City; and

WHEREAS, City Manager Jeffrey R. Epp, first announced his retirement in the 

Spring of 2021, with the retirement to be effective July 13, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the City and Mr. Epp entered into a Retiree Appointment Agreement 

whereby Mr. Epp agreed to temporarily serve as the City Manager after his retirement 

and until a replacement city manager could be identified and selected; and 

WHEREAS, the City retained a recruiting firm and undertook a comprehensive 

nationwide search for an individual who has the skill and expertise to serve as the City’s 

next city manager; and

WHEREAS, after review of numerous applications, and after a series of oral 

interviews and consideration thereon, the City desires to appoint Sean McGlynn as its 

next city manager; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Escondido Muncipal Code and consistent with state 

law, the City and Mr. McGlynn, desire to enter into an Employment Agreement whereby 

the responsibilities, commitments, compensation and other terms govering the 

employment relationship are to be recorded and approved by both Parties; and



WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best public interest to appoint 

Sean McGlynn to serve as the City’s City Manager pursuant to an Employment 

Agreement which shall provide the necessary terms and condictions of the employment 

relationship and shall be effective on June 29, 2021. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California certifies as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council of the City of Escondido, California does hereby 

appoint Sean McGlynn to serve as the city manager without bond effective June 29, 

2021.

3. That the Mayor is authorized to authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, 

an Employment Agreement with Sean McGlynn to serve as City Manager which is 

attached hereto and incorporated by this reference as Exhibit “A.”  



Escondido City Manager 2021
1 

CITY MANAGER EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

This Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated April 7, 2021, and is effective 
as of June 29 2021, by and between the City of Escondido, California, a municipal 
corporation (the “City”), and Sean McGlynn, an individual (the “City Manager”) 
(collectively referred to herein at times as the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City requires the services of a City Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has the necessary education, experience, 
skills and expertise to serve as the City's City Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City (the "City Council") desires to 
employ the City Manager to serve as the City Manager of City; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to execute this Agreement pursuant to the 
authority of and subject to the provisions of the Escondido Municipal Code and 
Government Code Section 53260, et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, in consideration of these Recitals and the performance by the 
Parties of the promises, covenants, and conditions herein contained, the Parties 
agree as provided in this Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

1. Employment

The City hereby employs the City Manager as its City Manager, and the City
Manager hereby accepts such employment. 

2. Commitments and Understandings

A. The City Manager’s Commitments

(1) Duties & Authority

(a) The City Manager shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the
City and be responsible to the City Council for the proper administration of all affairs of 
the City. 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 13



2 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

(b) The City Manager shall perform all of the duties of the City 
Manager as set forth in Article 3, of Chapter 2, of the Escondido Municipal Code (the 
“Municipal Code”), the California Government Code, and City policies and procedures 
approved by the City Council, as may be provided from time to time. 

(c) The City Council has designated and may also designate the 
City Manager as the chief executive of other City-related legal entities.   

(d) To accomplish the terms of this Agreement, the City Manager 
shall have the power and be required to: 

(i) Attend all meetings of the City Council, and take part in 
the discussion of all matters before the City Council either personally or by delegation. 

(ii) Review all agenda documents before preparing the 
agenda for any regular or special meetings of the City Council. 

(iii) Direct the work of all City officers and departments that 
are the concern and responsibility of the City Council, except as provided in Municipal 
Code section 2-64.  The City Manager may undertake any study or investigation that is 
necessary or desirable to, or as directed by, the City Council.  The City Manager shall 
endeavor to implement changes that the City Manager believes will result in greater 
efficiency, economy, or improved public service in the administration of City affairs. 

(iv) Recommend to the City Council adoption of such 
measures as the City Manager may deem necessary or expedient for the health, safety, 
or welfare of the community or for the improvement of administrative services. 

(v) Consolidate or combine offices, positions, 
departments, or units under the City Manager’s jurisdiction.  The City Manager may be 
the head of one or more City departments. 

(vi) Conduct research in administrative practices in order 
to bring about greater efficiency and economy in City government and develop and 
recommend to the City Council long-range plans to improve City operations and prepare 
for future City growth and development. 

(vii) Provide management training and develop leadership 
qualities among department heads and staff as necessary to maintain a City management 
team that can plan for and meet future challenges. 

(viii) Exercise control of City government in emergencies as 
authorized by the Municipal Code and California law. 

(2) Hours of Work 

(a) The City Manager is an exempt employee without set hours 
of work but is expected to be available at all reasonable times and to engage in those 
hours of work that are necessary to fulfill the obligations of the City Manager’s position. 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 13



3 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

(b) The City Manager shall spend sufficient hours on site to 
perform the City Manager’s duties; however, the City Manager has discretion over the 
City Manager’s work schedule and work location. 

(3) Disability or inability to perform 

In the event the City Manager becomes mentally or physically incapable of 
performing the City Manager’s functions and duties with reasonable accommodation, the 
City Council may appoint an Interim City Manager and may apply for disability retirement 
of the City Manager, pursuant to Government Code section 21153, and any other 
applicable provisions of law.   

B. City Commitments 

(1) The City shall provide the City Manager with the compensation, 
incentives and benefits, specified elsewhere in this Agreement. 

(2) The City shall provide the City Manager with office space, staff, 
equipment, supplies and all other facilities and services adequate for the performance of 
the City Manager’s duties. 

(3) The City shall pay for or provide the City Manager reimbursement for 
all actual business expenses.  The City shall provide the City Manager a credit card to 
charge appropriate and lawful business expenses. 

(4) The City agrees to pay the professional dues and subscriptions on 
behalf of the City Manager for participation in national, regional, state, or local 
associations and organizations, as necessary and desirable for the good of the City. 

(5) The City agrees to pay the travel and subsistence expenses of the 
City Manager for purposes such as official functions, meetings, occasions, short courses, 
institutes and seminars that are necessary for the good of the City and consistent with the 
Administrative Directives applicable to Executive Management positions at the City. 

C. City Council Member Commitments 

(1) The City Council sets policy for the governance and administration 
of the City, and it implements its policies through the City Manager. 

(2) As provided in the Escondido Municipal Code, and except for the 
purpose of inquiry or as otherwise established by a policy agreed upon by the City 
Manager and City Council, the City Council and its members shall deal with all 
subordinate City employees, officers, contractors, and consultants solely through the City 
Manager or the City Manager’s designee, and neither the City Council nor any member 
thereof, shall give orders to any subordinate of the City Manager, either publicly or 
privately. 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 3 of 13



4 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

(3) The City Council agrees none of its individual members will order the 
appointment or removal of any person to any office or employment under the supervision 
and control of the City Manager. 

(4) Neither the City Council nor any of its members shall interfere with 
the execution of the powers and duties of the City Manager.  The City Manager shall take 
direction, orders and instructions from the City Council when it is sitting as a body in a 
lawfully held meeting. 

(5) The City Council agrees that any criticism of a staff member shall be 
done, whenever reasonably possible, privately through the City Manager.  

D. Mutual Commitments 

(1) Performance Evaluation 

The City Council recognizes that for the City Manager to respond to the City’s 
needs and to grow in the performance of the City Manager’s job, the City Manager needs 
to know how the City Council members evaluate the City Manager’s performance.  To 
assure that the City Manager gets this feedback, the City Council shall conduct an 
evaluation of the City Manager’s performance in a properly noticed closed session  not 
less than one (1) year after the effective date of this Agreement.  Thereafter, the City 
Council will annually review the City Manager’s performance within forty-five (45) days of 
the anniversary date of the City Manager’s employment, or as otherwise agreed, and/or 
when it deems necessary to discuss any concerns or direction in performance.  At the 
time of the initial evaluation, and on each anniversary evaluation thereafter, the City 
Council shall consider in good faith performance-based salary adjustments, based upon 
comparable compensation information for cities in San Diego County.  However, the City 
Council shall have no obligation to make any such adjustments, regardless of City 
Manager’s level of performance.  The City Council may, in its sole discretion, elect to 
utilize an outside facilitator to assist in the performance evaluation process. 

(2) Ethical Commitments 

The City expects the City Manager to adhere to the highest professional 

standards. The City Manager’s actions will always comply with those standards. The City 

Manager agrees to follow the Code of Ethics of the International City/County 

Management Association (ICMA) and the ethics rules, regulations, and laws of the State 

of California. Consistent with the standards outlined in the Code, the City Manager shall 

not endorse candidates, make financial contributions, sign or circulate petitions, or 

participate in fundraising activities for individuals seeking or holding elected office, nor 

seek or accept any personal enrichment or profit derived from confidential information or 

misuse of public time. The City shall support the City Manager in keeping these 

commitments by refraining from any order, direction or request that would require the 

City Manager to violate the ICMA Code of Ethics. Neither the City Council nor any 

individual member thereof shall request the City Manager to endorse any candidate, 

make any financial contribution, sign or circulate any petition, or participate in any 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 4 of 13



5 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

fundraising activity for individuals seeking or holding elected office, nor to handle any 

matter of personnel on a basis other than fairness, impartiality, and merit. 

3. COMPENSATION 

The City agrees to provide to the City Manager compensation and benefits, and 
assume certain costs on behalf of the City Manager, during the term of the Agreement as 
follows: 

A. Compensation & Required Employer Costs 

(1) Base Salary 

(a) The annual Base Salary for the position of City Manager shall 
be two hundred and eighty thousand dollars ($280,000).   

(b) The City Manager shall be paid at the same intervals and in 
the same manner as regular City employees.  In the event that there are more than 
twenty-six (26) pay periods in a calendar year, the periodic payments shall be adjusted 
accordingly so that the Base Salary or other compensation or benefits shall not exceed 
any amount approved by the City Council. 

(c) The City shall not at any time during the term of this 
Agreement reduce the Base Salary, compensation or other financial benefits of the City 
Manager unless, as part of a general City management salary reduction, and then in no 
greater percentage than the average reduction of all City department heads.  The City 
shall give the City Manager ninety (90) day’s written notice of any intent to reduce the 
Base Salary pursuant to this provision. 

(2) Required Employer Costs 

(a) Federal Medicare Contributions (as required). 

(b) State Unemployment Insurance. 

(c) Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) 

The City contracts with the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System for retirement benefits.  The City will pay the City’s share, and the City 
Manager shall pay the employee’s share for participation in PERS as a Tier 3 PEPRA 
member, currently set at seven percent (7%). 

(d) The cost of any fidelity or other bonds required by law for the 
City Manager, which the City reserves the right to waive. 

(e) The cost to defend and indemnify the City Manager as 
provided in Section 6(E) below. 

(f) Workers’ Compensation Insurance. 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 5 of 13



6 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

B. Basic Benefits 

(1) Holidays 

The City Manager is entitled to ten (10) paid holidays per year. 

(2) Vacation, Sick Leave and Management Leave Allowance 

Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, the City Manager shall receive: 

(a) A vacation leave bank of one hundred and twenty (120) hours. 
Thereafter, the City Manager shall accrue vacation leave hours commencing at the same 
rate as City employees who have been working for the City for five (5) or more years and 
progressing according the schedule for city employees generally thereafter.  The City 
Manager may accrue up to up to the maximum leave balance as permitted under existing 
City policy for a five (5) year or more City employee.  The City Manager may convert 
vacation leave hours to cash at the same rate and at the same times as City Executive 
Management employees. The City Manager shall be paid for any unused accrued 
vacation hours upon either voluntary or involuntary termination of employment.   

(b) A sick leave bank of eighty (80) hours.  Thereafter, the City 
Manager shall accrue sick leave hours at the same rate and at the same times as City 
employees who have been working for the City for five (5) or more years.    

(c) Ten (10) days (equivalent to 90 hours) of Management Leave.  
The City Manager shall thereafter receive ten (10) days of Management Leave annually.  
The Management Leave hours do not carry from one Fiscal Year to the next and will 
expire at the close of each Fiscal Year if unused.  The City Manager may cash out the 
Management Leave hours in whole or in part at the times established for all City 
employees. 

(d) Moving and relocation expenses in the amount of twenty 
thousand dollars ($20,000).  This amount shall constitute the total amount of 
compensation arising out of or related to the City Manager’s move from his current home 
to the City of Escondido including, but not limited to, the need for temporary housing and 
related relocation expenses.    

(3) Automobile 

Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, the City Manager shall be provided a 
monthly automobile allowance in the amount of seven hundred fifty dollars $750.00 
($9,000.00 annually) in lieu of making a vehicle available for the City Manager’s City-
related business and/or functions during, before and after normal work hours.  The City 
Manager is not precluded from using City vehicles for City business during, before, and 
after the normal workday on occasion, when appropriate. 

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 6 of 13



7 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

(4) Non-Compensable Benefits that Accrue to Other Employees 

The City Manager shall be entitled to all other non-compensable benefits, rights, 
and privileges accorded to City Executive Management employees except as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement.   

4. SECURITY 

A. Pensions 

(1) Public Employees Retirement System (“PERS”) 

For the purposes of PERS reporting, the City shall incorporate into the reported 
Base Salary as compensation earnable the Section 3.A(1)(a) Base Salary, but only to the 
extent, if any, that PERS will consider it to be compensation earnable.  City Manager is a 
Tier 3 PEPRA member of CalPERS (“PERS”), and as such, the City Manager is obligated 
to contribute to PERS at the same level as all other City Tier 3 PEPRA PERS members, 
which is currently seven percent (7%) of Base Salary.   

(2) Deferred Compensation 

(a) Plan Contribution 

The City will make, in equal proportionate amounts each pay period, a pro-rated 
total annual contribution of seven percent (7%) of Base Salary into a qualified deferred 
compensation plan as selected by the City Manager.  Amounts contributed under this 
section shall be to the benefit of the City Manager in accordance with the Deferred 
Compensation Plan participation agreement and shall be considered employer 
contributions.  

(b) Internal Revenue Code Compliance 

All provisions of this Section 4.A are subject to the provisions and limitations of the 
Internal Revenue Code and its related regulations as amended from time to time.  No 
requirement of any provision of this Section 4.A shall be effective if it would violate any 
provision of the Internal Revenue Code or its related regulations. 

B. Insurance 

(1) Disability Insurance 

Short and Long Term Insurance is provided and the City Manager shall contribute 
0.715% of Base Salary for short-term disability coverage and 0.50% of Base Salary for 
long-term disability. 

(2) Medical/Dental/Vision Insurance 

The City Manager shall receive the same cafeteria plan equal to four percent (4%) 
of Base Salary plus one hundred and twenty-five dollars ($125.00) for allowable medical, 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 7 of 13



8 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

dental and vision insurance options and related benefits as are available to other City 
Executive Management employees. 

(3) Life Insurance 

The City Manager shall receive Basic Life and AD&D insurance procured by the 
City and calculated at the rate of twice the Base Salary with a cap of five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000).     

5. SEPARATION 

The City Manager is an at-will employee serving at the pleasure of the City Council 
as provided in Government Code Section 36506.  This Agreement may be terminated, or 
the City Manager may be separated from employment under this Agreement, as follows: 

A. By City 

 The City may terminate this Agreement at any time, either with or without cause, 
by majority vote of the membership of the City Council at a properly posted and duly 
authorized public meeting. Termination shall be under one or more of the following 
provisions: 

(1) For Cause: 

(A) Misconduct.  In the event that the City determines there is 
good cause to terminate this Agreement due to (1) malfeasance, (2) gross negligence, 
(3) fraud, or (4) conviction of a crime, other than a traffic offense or infraction on the part 
of the City Manager, the City shall give the City Manager notice of termination, which at 
the option of the City Council shall either be effective immediately, or the notice shall 
specify the intent to terminate and the date the termination will become final. In either 
case, the notice shall be accompanied by a statement of the basis for the termination. In 
the case of a termination that is effective immediately, the City Manager shall have the 
right to present any rebuttal information to the City Council, in writing, no later than 10 
calendar days after the termination. In the event that the City Council gives notice of an 
intent to terminate at a future date, the City Manager shall have the right to present any 
rebuttal information to the City Council, in writing, prior to the effective date of the 
termination. In either case, the City Manager shall have the right to be represented and 
to have a hearing before the City Council, in open or closed session as authorized by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, within 14 days following termination. The City Council shall review 
any rebuttal information provided by the City Manager and any other relevant material 
and shall then determine whether to uphold the termination or to rescind it. The City 
Council’s decision shall be final. Any actions of the City taken under this paragraph shall 
occur only after the majority vote of the membership of the City Council. 

(B) Material Uncorrected Failure to Perform.  In the event that the 
City determines there is good cause to terminate this Agreement that does not rise to the 
level of seriousness addressed above in Section 5.A(1)(A), such as (1) a repeated 
material failure to meet reasonable performance objectives which have been identified 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 8 of 13



9 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

and adopted by the City Council at a properly notice public meeting, that are within the 
City Manager’s control, or (2) uncorrected material failure to present a positive image to 
the City Council, staff, public or media on behalf of the City, the City may terminate the 
Agreement for cause provided the City (1) first gives notice to the City Manager in writing 
of the alleged failure in performance and a reasonable opportunity to cure the problem, 
and (2) gives the City Manager a reasonable opportunity to present evidence to the City 
Council in rebuttal to any alleged failure in performance or of any extenuating 
circumstances showing that the failure was beyond the control of the City Manager.  The 
City will not terminate for cause under this Section 5.A(1)(B) unless it is determined in 
writing that the evidence in support of the grounds for termination is substantial taking 
into account all of the information available to the City Council, including any evidence 
presented by the City Manager. Any actions of the City taken under this paragraph shall 
occur only after the majority vote of the membership of the City Council. 

(C) No Severance Benefits.  In the event that this Agreement is 
terminated by the City pursuant to Section 5.A(1) for cause, the City Manager shall not 
be entitled to any severance benefits under this Agreement or under any other provision 
of law or City policy or procedure, except for previously accrued vacation and 
management leave to which the City Manager is otherwise entitled. 

(2)  For Convenience 

The City may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause and for 
its convenience as the City shall, in its sole discretion, determine appropriate provided (1) 
the City Manager shall be given at least thirty (30) days’ written notice and an opportunity 
to be heard, in open or closed session or in writing, as the City Council shall determine 
consistent with the Ralph M. Brown Act, with respect to the proposed termination before 
it becomes effective, and (2) the City Council shall vote by not less than a majority of the 
membership of the City Council to exercise its termination rights under this provision. The 
City Manager shall be offered the severance benefits specified below in Section 5 which 
he may accept or reject as provided in Section 5. 

B.  By the City Manager 

 The City Manager may terminate this Agreement at any time, with or without 
cause, by (1) giving Employer ninety (90) days advance written notice of his intent to 
terminate, or (2) a termination sooner by mutual agreement with the City. In the event that 
the City Manager exercises his right to terminate, he shall not be entitled to the severance 
benefits set forth below under Section 5.C or to any other similar termination benefits 
under law or the City’s rules or regulations, provided however, that the City Manager shall 
be entitled to payment for any vacation or management leave earned and unused at the 
time his notice of termination is effective.  

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 9 of 13



10 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

C. Severance 

In the event that the City Manager’s employment is terminated by the City for 
convenience pursuant to Section 5.A(2) above, the City Manager shall be offered and 
shall be entitled to the severance benefits stated in this Section 5.C, as follows: 

(1) Computation 

The City shall offer to the City Manager, for a termination occurring during 
the first five (5) year period after the Effective Date of this Agreement, to pay an amount 
equal to one (1) year of his Base Salary.  For any termination occurring after the first five 
(5) year period after the Effective Date of this Agreement, an amount equal to six (6) 
months of his Base Salary. Such severance benefits shall be paid in addition to payment 
of any accrued vacation or management leave otherwise payable to the City Manager.     

(2) Separately Negotiated; Waiver 

The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that these severance pay 
provisions have been independently negotiated.  Acceptance by the City Manager of the 
severance pay benefits provided by this Section 5 shall operate as a full and complete 
waiver and release of any and all rights, claims, and/or causes of action which the City 
Manager may have, or have had, at any time, in the past or in the future, arising out of 
the City Manager’s employment by the City, including but not limited to claims for wrongful 
termination of this Agreement. If the City Manager wishes to retain any such rights, the 
City Manager must decline to accept the severance benefits provided by this paragraph. 
The City Manager shall notify the City of this election to accept or reject these severance 
benefits within seven (7) days of notice of termination of this Agreement, or within such 
other time period as the Parties may agree to in writing. 

Acceptance of the severance benefits under this paragraph will operate as 
a general release on the part of the City Manager as to all claims, known or unknown, 
and the City Manager specifically waives the provisions of Civil Code Section 1542, which 
provides: 

A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS 

WHICH THE CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT 

TO EXIST IN HIS FAVOR AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING 

THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM MUST HAVE 

MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE 

DEBTOR. 

  (3) The severance provisions of this Agreement shall not apply in the event 
the City Manager is terminated for cause as provided for in Sections 5.A(1)(A) or (B). 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 10 of 13



11 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

6. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Term 

The term of this Agreement shall be from the Effective Date until terminated 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. 

B. Provisions that Survive Termination 

Many sections of this Agreement are intended by their terms to survive the City 
Manager’s termination of employment with the City including, but not limited to, Sections 5 
and 6.E.  These sections, and the others so intended, shall survive termination of 
employment and termination of this Agreement. 

C. Amendments 

This Agreement may be amended at any time by mutual agreement of the City and 
the City Manager.  Any amendments are to be negotiated, put in writing, and adopted by 
the City Council. 

D. Conflict of Interest 

(1) The City Manager shall not engage in any business or transaction or 
have a financial or other personal interest or association, direct or indirect, which is in 
conflict with the proper discharge of official duties or would tend to impair independence 
of judgment or action in the performance of official duties. 

(2) The City Manager shall also be subject to the conflict of interest 
provisions of the California Government Code and Municipal Code. 

(3) The City Manager is responsible for submitting to the City Clerk the 
appropriate Conflict of Interest Statements at the time of appointment, annually thereafter, 
and at the time of separation from the position. 

E. Indemnification 

The City shall defend and indemnify the City Manager to the fullest extent required 
by Government Code section 825, et seq. and as may be required or provided for under 
the Municipal Code and related City Administrative Directives.  

F. Severability 

If any clause, sentence, part, section, or portion of this Agreement is found by a 
court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or unenforceable, such clause, sentence, part, 
section, or portion so found shall be regarded as though it were not part of this Agreement 
and the remaining parts of this Agreement shall be fully binding and enforceable by the 
Parties hereto. 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 11 of 13



12 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

G. Laws Affecting Title 

In addition to those laws affecting a City Manager, the City Manager shall have the 
same powers, rights and responsibilities as a Chief Executive Officer, City Administrative 
Officer, Administrator, and City Administrator as those terms are used in local, state or 
federal laws. 

H. Jurisdiction and Venue 

This Contract shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
California, and the Parties agree that venue shall be in San Diego County, California, 
notwithstanding any conflicting provisions of the California Code of Civil Procedure.  

I. Provisions of Government Code Section 53243, et. seq. 

(1) In the event that the City provides paid leave to City Manager 
pending an investigation of a crime involving abuse of his office or position covered by 
Government Code section 53243.4, and should that investigation lead to either a criminal 
conviction or a civil or administrative penalty by the FPPC or any similarly authorized 
agency, City Manager shall fully reimburse the City for any salary provided for that 
purpose. 

(2) In the event that the City provides funds for the legal criminal defense 
of City Manager pending an investigation of a crime involving abuse of his office or 
position covered by Government Code section 53243.4, and should that investigation 
lead to either a criminal conviction or a civil or administrative penalty by the FPPC or any 
similarly authorized agency, City Manager shall fully reimburse the City for any funds 
provided for that purpose. 

(3) In the event that the City provides City Manager with severance, or 
any other type of cash settlement related to the termination of City Manager, and City 
Manager subsequently is convicted of a crime, or subjected to civil or administrative 
penalties, resulting from abuse of his office or position covered by Government Code 
section 53243.4, City Manager shall fully reimburse the City for any such severance or 
cash settlement. 

(4) This provision shall not be interpreted or construed as creating a 
contractual obligation on the City to provide paid leave, a legal criminal defense or cash 
settlement related to an investigation or termination of the City Manager.  

J. Entire Agreement 

This Agreement represents the contractual relationship of the Parties, and no 
representations have been made or relied upon except as set forth herein.  This 
Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written, fully executed agreement of 
the Parties.  

 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 12 of 13



13 
Escondido City Manager 2021  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Escondido has caused this Agreement to be signed 
and executed on its behalf by its Mayor as authorized by Resolution No. 2021-49, and 
City Manager has signed and executed this Agreement set forth below.  

CITY OF ESCONDIDO CITY MANAGER 

  
Paul McNamara, Mayor 

  
Sean McGlynn 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

  
Michael R. McGuinness, City Attorney 

 

 

Resolution No. 2021-49 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 13 of 13



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-52

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF HUMAN 
RESOURCES TO EXECUTE, ON BEHALF OF 
THE CITY, A FIRST AMENDMENT TO RETIREE 
APPOINTMENT AGREEMENT WITH JEFFREY 
R. EPP TO CONTINUE TO SERVE AS THE CITY
MANAGER

WHEREAS, Jeffrey R. Epp has served as the City Manager of the City of 

Escondido since May 10, 2017; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Epp retired from the City of Escondido in the position of City 

Manager, effective July 11, 2020; and

WHEREAS, in compliance with Government Code section 7522.56, the City 

Council of the City of Escondido provided CalPERS a resolution certifying that it was 

hiring a retiree before 180 days has passed since his retirement date; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido, the City of Escondido and 

Mr. Epp, certified and hereby certify that Mr. Epp did not and will not receive a Golden 

Handshake or any other retirement-related incentive related to his retirement; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido appointed Mr. Epp as an 

interim appointment retired annuitant to the vacant position of City Manager for the City 

of Escondido under Government Code section 21221(h), effective July 13, 2020, and 

he has performed in that role uninterrupted since that time and has not exceeded the 

allowable maximum hours of work during this fiscal year; and



WHEREAS, the City Council has selected a new city manager to fill the position 

but that individual is unable to begin employment with the City until June 29, 2021, and 

therefore, the appointment will not be effective until that date; and

WHEREAS, the City is currently under a proclaimed state of local emergency 

and has been since March 18, 2020, pursuant to Proclamation 2020-01, due to the 

COVID-19 pandemic and such local emergency requires the skills and management 

provided by Mr. Epp, who also serves as the Director of Emergency Services under the 

Escondido Municipal Code, to ensure that there is no stoppage of public business; and

WHEREAS, the City has a continuing need for the specialized skills provided by 

Mr. Epp as an interim appointment until such time as the new city manager can assume 

those critical duties and responsibilities; and

WHEREAS, the Retiree Appointment Agreement (“Agreement”) between Mr. 

Epp and the City of Escondido, which identifies all matters, terms, issues, 

compensation and conditions related to Mr. Epp’s interim appointment, was duly 

adopted pursuant to Resolution No. 2020-91R (as Exhibit “A”) and has been fully 

performed pursuant to its terms by both Parties since that adoption; and 

WHEREAS, there exists a critical need to extend the expiration date of the 

Agreement pursuant to a First Amendment to Retiree Appointment Agreement attached 

hereto as Exhibit “A” to allow for Mr. Epp to continue his service as the interim 

appointed retired annuitant in the role of city manager up until the new city manager 

may commence employment; 



WHEREAS, during this extended period Mr. Epp will continue to only receive the 

hourly equivalent of his maximum and minimum base salary of $23,833.33, which will 

amount to $137.50; and 

WHEREAS, Jeffrey R. Epp has not and will not receive any other benefit, 

incentive, compensation in lieu of benefit or other form of compensation in addition to 

this hourly pay rate.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, as follows:

1. That the above recitations are true.

2. That the City Council of the City of Escondido hereby certifies the entire 

nature of the employment of Jeffrey R. Epp is detailed in Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 

2020-91R (Retiree Appointment Agreement), and Exhibit “A” hereto (First Amendment 

to Retiree Appointment Agreement). 

3. That this continued appointment is necessary to fill the critically needed 

position of City Manager for the City of Escondido up and through no later than June 

29, 2021, because a city manager is necessary to oversee the operations of the City of 

Escondido and all departments and employees in the City.

4. That the Director of Human Resources is authorized to execute, on behalf 

of the City, a First Amendment to Retiree Appointment Agreement, which is attached 

hereto and incorporated by this reference as Exhibit “A,” with Jeffrey R. Epp to continue 

to serve as the city manager. 



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
RETIREE APPOINTMENT AGREEMENT 

This First Amendment to Retiree Appointment Agreement (“Agreement”) is dated and 
effective April 7, 2021, by and between the City of Escondido, California, a municipal 
corporation (the “City”), and Jeffrey R. Epp, an individual (collectively referred to herein 
at times as the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, on or about July 13, 2020, Mr. Epp transitioned from full time 
employment as the City Manager to a temporary appointment as the City Manager 
subject to and compliant with CalPERS rules, including such additional rules adopted to 
address responding to the COVID 19 pandemic and related State of Emergency; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Mr. Epp entered into a Retiree Appointment Agreement 
which identified the terms of Mr. Epp’s continued work for the City as the City Manager 
which Agreement by its terms expires upon the selection of Mr. Epp’s permanent 
replacement as City Manager; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to select its next City Manager and enter into an 
Employment Agreement at this time however, the individual selected to be appointed 
City Manager will not be able to begin his employment with the City until June 29, 2021; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City has a continuing need, and it is in the best public interest, to 
have Mr. Epp serve in the role of City Manager until such time as the new City Manager 
may begin full time work for the City; and   

WHEREAS, in consideration of these Recitals and the performance by the 
Parties of the promises, covenants, and conditions contained herein and in the 
Agreement, the Parties agree to enter into this First Amendment of the Agreement as 
herein provided. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2



FIRST AMENDMENT TO RETIREE APPOINTMENT AGREEMENT 
Page 2 

2 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The term of the Agreement is extended until, and shall expire on, June 25, 
2021, unless terminated earlier by Mr. Epp in his discretion or as otherwise agreed to by 
the Parties.  During such time, Mr. Epp shall assist the City Council and management 
team in transition-related matters in addition to addressing the management of the City 
including the ongoing impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.   

 
2. Except as otherwise provided for herein, all other terms and conditions in 

the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties below agree to the terms contained in this First 
Amendment and are authorized to execute it. 
 
       CITY OF ESCONDIDO 
 
 
Date: _______________________  _______________________ 

Jessica Perpetua  
Director of Human Resources  

 
 
 
 
Date: _______________________  _______________________ 
       Jeffrey R. Epp 
 
 

Resolution No. 2021-52 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 2



Staff Report - Council

  Current Business Item No. 10        April 7, 2021 File No. 0480-70

SUBJECT: Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) between the City of 
Escondido and the US Soccer Foundation related to the installation of two Mini-
Pitch/Futsal courts in Washington Park.

DEPARTMENT: Communications and Community Services

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-54, authorizing the Deputy City 
Manager/Director of Communications and Community Services or her designee to execute an MOU 
with the US Soccer Foundation (“USSF”) to identify a funding source for two Mini-Pitch/Futsal Courts 
in Washington Park; negotiate and enter into a grant agreement; execute all documents necessary for 
the management and completion of the grant scope, including the necessary budget adjustment 
needed to establish a new project number for tracking and spending of grant funds; and  process any 
required entitlement applications through the Planning Division.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

All costs associated with construction of this project would be funded through the grant with no impact 
to the General Fund. Maintenance of the Mini-Pitch system is consistent with the maintenance of the 
tennis court(s) being replaced and will not result in additional costs. Costs associated with processing 
an entitlement application (likely a Plot Plan) would be limited to staff time and are expected to be 
minimal.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

None

BACKGROUND: 

The USSF is a 501(c)(3) organization. Their mission is to enhance, assist and grow the sport of 
soccer in the United States, with a special emphasis on underserved communities.  By supporting the 
development of places to play, grow, and learn, their goal is to ensure that children in underserved 
communities have easy and affordable access to opportunities that help them embrace an active and 
healthy lifestyle, and support their physical and personal development. 

Through partnerships with corporations, the USSF provides ongoing grant opportunities to fund Mini-
Pitch Systems in communities nationwide. Essentially, a Mini-Pitch or Futsal court is a hard surface 
soccer arena. The Mini-Pitches range in size depending on the location available, but are typically 



Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the U.S. Soccer Foundation
April 7, 2021
Page 2

placed on underutilized tennis and basketball courts. Similar to the NFC Fitness Court recently 
installed in Mountain View Park, the Mini-Pitches are all-inclusive systems that include the court 
surface with funding agency’s logo placed at center court, fencing, benches, goals, and lighting. The 
systems can be installed rather quickly, with the installation process taking approximately three to 
four weeks.  

Washington Park is being considered for this opportunity because of the existing infrastructure that 
would lend itself to this project at no cost to the City. If the City were to secure this grant, and 
depending on the level of funding received, we would keep two of the existing four tennis courts for 
tennis and convert the other two tennis courts to Mini-Pitches. If a funder is only willing to provide one 
Mini-pitch, we will continue to work with the USSF to phase the project and build one court now and 
one in the future, as other funders are identified. It is the staff’s goal to get two right from the start.

PUBLIC OUTREACH:

A survey was conducted to gauge the community’s interest and support for this project. The survey 
was sent out in multiple City Newsletters, the Recreation Guide, social media, the City’s website, and 
Nextdoor to target the surrounding neighborhood. There were 363 responses, with 343 people or 
95% in support of the project. Of the 363 respondents, 231 lived within three miles of Washington 
Park. 

NEXT STEPS:

Our next steps would be to sign the MOU with the USSF, and submit the necessary entitlement 
application to the Planning Division. This will allow the USSF to propose the opportunity to their 
funders. After approval of the entitlement application, and after a funder is identified, a formal grant 
agreement would be executed and construction could begin. The timing of this is uncertain, as the 
entitlement has not yet been obtained and there is not a current funder identified; however, the USSF 
is confident that with all the proper approvals already in place, a funder is likely to be identified 
quickly.

The popularity of soccer continues to grow in Escondido and the United States. Soccer is a sport that 
appeals to a cross section of people, the rich and poor, men and women, and the young and 
old. We have heard the requests and seen the need for more spaces that can accommodate pickup 
games and family recreational play. These courts will help to meet that demand by providing efficient, 
professional-grade, customized spaces for our residents to play. 

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA):

The current action requested of City Council is to approve the process for exploring the possibility of a 
potential project, rather than approval of the project itself, and thus the instant action is not a project 
as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The City will fully comply with CEQA, 
including evaluating any potential significant environmental effects, within the context of the 



Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with the U.S. Soccer Foundation
April 7, 2021
Page 3

entitlement process as described above, and the City reserves the right to approve, deny, or condition 
any potential project, or mitigate the environmental effects of such project, as otherwise may be 
required or authorized under CEQA or other applicable laws.

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Danielle Lopez, Assistant Director of Community Services 
04/01/21 9:18 a.m.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Attachment “1” - Mini-Pitch System Brochure 
2. Resolution No. 2021-54 
3. Resolution No. 2021-54 Exhibit “A” 



Mini-Pitch System™

Modular Sports Solution

Attachment "1" 



The Mini-Pitch System™ 
modular sports solution has  
an innovative, all-in-one design 
to help communities create 
fun and active play spaces by 
revitalizing public areas.

Created to assist the U.S. Soccer Foundation in 

providing safer places to play the game, the Mini-

Pitch System is ideal for transforming abandoned 

courts and other underutilized areas into places 

where children and families can come together in 

the spirit of teamwork, empowerment, and physical 

activity. The system supports the Foundation’s 

It’s Everyone’s Game movement to ensure that all 

children have access to the game and its many 

benefits.

Complete

The mini-pitch comes as a modular system 

complete with lighting, fencing, goals, benches, 

ADA-compliant access, and lockable storage.

Convenient

Assembly can be done by a three-person  

crew in approximately 16 hours.

Customizable

You’ll have options on the size of your pitch  

and custom signage to ensure it meets your  

exact needs. Surfacing is handled by another 

vendor on a project-by-project basis.

Attachment "1" 



“ Since the installation at Santa Fe South, we’re seeing kids from 
different high schools hanging out and playing together almost 
every night. It’s unifying kids using these courts.” 

 –  Mickey Dollens, Executive Director of the Energy Assist Foundation

Attachment "1" 



Complete System
The Mini-Pitch System™ modular sports solution 

includes lighting, structural, and electrical 

components designed and engineered to work 

together for streamlined installation and reliable 

operation.

•  Factory-built, wired, aimed, and tested. 

•  Fast, trouble-free installation.

•  Rugged reliability, designed to be long-lasting in 

all weather conditions and atop all surfaces.

•  10-year warranty covers all parts and labor.

TLC for LED® Lighting  

Enjoy the benefits of the LED sports lighting 

technology of choice at venues around the world.

•  Custom optics create a more uniform distribution 

of light for better visibility.

•  Patented glare control preserves darkness around 

your pitch, keeping neighbors happy.

• Instant on/off and energy efficient operation.

Control-Link® Service

Your system will be supported by Musco’s  

Control-Link control and monitoring service.

•  Manage your lights instantly, from anywhere, 

with a touch of a smart phone.

•  24/7 support from the Musco Team includes 

proactive monitoring and scheduling assistance.

•  Get a real, live voice on the other end of the 

phone anytime you call Control-Link Central™ 

service center.

ADA-compliant access

Lighting control system
with 24/7 monitoring

Galvanized steel fencing
and structure

Surfaces provided by others, evaluated on a project-by-project basis.

Attachment "1" 



Benches

Built-in goals

Optional graphic panels

Energy efficient, neighbor friendly  
TLC for LED® lighting

Lighting control system
with 24/7 monitoring

Galvanized steel fencing
and structure

Lockable storage

10-Year Parts and Labor Warranty
With Musco’s long-term parts and labor warranty, you’ll have the peace 

of mind in knowing that you won’t have to pay for maintenance to your 

Mini-Pitch System.

• No maintenance costs for the next decade.

• Every part and all labor covered.

• Supported by Musco’s regionally-based technicians.

And with the 24/7 proactive monitoring of Control-Link, if any issues 

with your mini-pitch lighting arise we’ll probably know before you do.

Separate playing surface warranty is provided by the surface contractor.

Attachment "1" 



Size

 Your Pitch,  Your Way
 The Mini-Pitch System™ modular sports solution gives    you customization options to meet your exact needs.

40 ft x 84 ft
12 m x 25 m

76 ft x 84 ft
23 m x 25 m

Desert West, Phoenix, Arizona, USA Santa Fe South High School, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, USA

Attachment "1" 



Size

 Your Pitch,  Your Way
 The Mini-Pitch System™ modular sports solution gives    you customization options to meet your exact needs.

50 ft x 104 ft
15 m x 31 m

96 ft x 104 ft
29 m x 32 m

60 ft x 120 ft
18 m x 36 m

116 ft x 120 ft
35 m x 36 m

Eakin Elementary School, Columbus, Ohio, USA
Oklahoma State University – Oklahoma City Campus 
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma

Attachment "1" 



www.musco.com
e-mail: lighting@musco.com

www.ussoccerfoundation.org
e-mail: info@ussoccerfoundation.org

©2019, 2020 Musco Sports Lighting LLC · M-3208-enUS-4 
U.S. and foreign patents issued and pending.

US Soccer Foundation is a registered trademark in the United States to United States Soccer Foundation.

Attachment "1" 



RESOLUTION NO. 2021-54
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE DEPUTY CITY 
MANAGER / DIRECTOR OF 
COMMUNICATIONS AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES TO EXECUTE A MEMORANDUM 
OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE U.S. 
SOCCER FOUNDATION TO PROCESS ANY 
DOCUMENTS AND OBTAIN ALL PERMITS 
RELATED TO TWO MINI-PITCH / FUTSAL 
COURTS LOCATED AT WASHINGTON PARK

WHEREAS, the US Soccer Foundation provides ongoing grants to fund mini pitch 

systems in underutilized park areas; and

WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Escondido (“City”) authorizes the 

submittal of the Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with the US Soccer Foundation 

(“USSF”) to identify a funding source for two Mini-Pitch/Futsal Courts in Washington Park; 

and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Escondido authorizes the Deputy City 

Manager / Director of Communications and Community Services to execute all 

documents and take all actions necessary for the management and completion of the 

potential project, including, but not limited to, those related to grant(s), budget 

adjustments, and entitlement applications; and

WHEREAS, through this resolution, the City Council of the City of Escondido is 

authorizing the exploration of a potential project rather than approving a project. This 

exploration is not a project, as defined by the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA), and does not commit the City to taking any action on the potential entitlement 

and implementation of the proposed project.



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Escondido, California, resolves as follows:

1. The above recitations are true.

2. The City Council hereby directs and authorizes the Deputy City Manager / 

Director of Communications and Community Services or her designee to execute the 

MOU with the US Soccer Foundation which is attached hereto and incorporated by this 

reference, subject to final approval as to form by the City Attorney. 

3. The City Council hereby directs and authorizes the Deputy City Manager / 

Director of Communications and Community Services to execute all documents 

necessary for the management and completion of the grant and processing of any 

necessary entitlement application(s).

 



U.S. Soccer Foundation Mini-Pitch Initiative 
Memorandum of Understanding 

My signature and initials below confirm that the appropriate representative(s) from my organization 

understand that it has been considered for U.S. Soccer Foundation (“Foundation”) mini-pitch(es), and as 

such, we would be responsible for the following.  Please initial each line on page 1, sign page 2, initial on 

Attachment A attached hereto and incorporated by this reference, and return an electronic copy of the 

document in full. 

_____ Upon completion of the mini-pitch(es), provide proof of commercial general liability, workers’ 

compensation liability, participant accident liability, and umbrella liability insurance, or comparable 

self-insurance, and add the U.S. Soccer Foundation as “Additional Insured” on insurance 

documentation 

_____ Confirm ownership or long-term lease (minimum of 10 years) of the property on which the mini-

pitch(es) is/are to be installed 

_____ Allow the Foundation, and other funders, to have their logos placed on both the mini-pitch surface(s), 

as well as on the associated signage, for the useful life of the mini-pitch(es), as seen on Attachment A 

_____ Provide electrical access to the location of the mini-pitch(es) within the property as needed 

_____ Allow the Foundation to act as the project manager, using their approved vendors who carry all 

requisite insurance to perform installation of the mini-pitch project(s) 

_____ Obtain all necessary consents, approvals, permits and/or licenses required to install the mini-pitch(es) 

_____ Provide before and after photos of the mini-pitch(es) to Foundation upon request 

Execution of this Memorandum of Understanding signifies that all involved parties have reviewed this 

Memorandum of Understanding and are prepared to execute a formal Grant Agreement within 30 

days of being selected for a U.S. Soccer Foundation mini-pitch grant.  

Name of Organization 

Name and Title (please print) 

Authorized Signature Date

Resolution No. 2021-54 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 1 of 2



ATTACHMENT A 

_____  (Initials) 

 

Resolution No. 2021-54 
Exhibit "A" 

Page 2 of 2



Staff Report - Council

 Current Business Item No. 11        April 7, 2021         File No. 0230-31

SUBJECT: Daley Ranch Mitigation Bank Credits

DEPARTMENT: Community Development Department, Planning Division
and Utilities Department, Water Division, Lakes & Open Space

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive and file.

FISCAL ANALYSIS: 

The current Daley Ranch conservation credit prices were updated in 2018 (Table #2 on Page 4).  The 
City Council has authority to establish Daley Ranch Conservation Bank credit prices at their 
discretion.  A total of $4,905,693 in habitat credits have been sold to date representing approximately 
25 percent of cumulative credits.  If all remaining publicly available Daley Ranch habitat credits could 
be sold at their current prices, the City of Escondido (“City”) could generate approximately 
$143,190,169.

The Daley Ranch Conservation Bank Implementation Agreement signed by the City, state, and 
federal governments stipulates that $500 per habitat credit sold be deposited into an Endowment 
Fund, and that interest earnings from the Fund be used for long-term management efforts in Daley 
Ranch.  The Endowment Fund currently totals $361,476.  Of that balance, $253,937 are permanently 
restricted funds, and $107,539 are interest earnings accumulated over time that can be spent in 
accordance with the agreement.  Until the Endowment Fund is fully funded upon the sale of the City’s 
last habitat credit, the City is not required to spend more than $80,000 per year on management 
obligations.

The Implementation Agreement also stipulates that fifty percent of the habitat sale proceeds be 
earmarked in a Restoration Fund, to finance obligations with respect to restoration of the property.  
$500,000 is the minimum balance required for the City to maintain in this fund.  The Agreement 
allows that once the Restoration Fund has a balance of $500,000, the City is not required to make 
any further payments to this fund. 

The remaining balance of revenue generated from the sale of Daley Ranch habitat credits is allocated 
to the General Fund for use as the City Council determines.

PREVIOUS ACTION: 

On March 10, 2021, the City’s 2021 Climate Action Plan (“CAP”) was adopted. Chapter 5 of the CAP 
directs the City to, “Maximize mitigation benefits locally by prioritizing Escondido community specific 



Daley Ranch Mitigation Bank Credits 
April 7, 2021
Page 2

(i.e.,p local) mitigation for GHG emissions and biological impacts/habitat loss. If no local mitigation 
credits or mitigation opportunities are available, allow project applicants to seek out regional solutions 
first. If no regional solutions are available then State solutions, with a preference to proximity.”  

New projects will have to demonstrate consistency with the CAP, including this adaptation measure.

On May 8, 2019, the City Council unanimously adopted Resolution No. 2019-59 in order to implement 
a strategy for increasing Daley Ranch conservation habitat credit sales by:

1) Offering a five percent price reduction to purchasers of negotiated habitat credits from 
competing mitigation banks for the sale of comparable Daley Ranch habitat credits.

2) Proactively approaching developers in the region who require habitat mitigation and 
informing them of opportunities to save five percent by purchasing conservation credits in 
Daley Ranch. 

On January 24, 2018, the City Council approved adjusting the Daley Ranch Conservation Bank credit 
prices of habitat types available to purchase as off-site mitigation for public and private development 
projects to ten percent below advertised prices listed at other regional conservation banks (Table #2 
on Page 4). The City Council also:

1. Amended the Daley Ranch Conservation Bank Credit Purchase Agreement & 
Acknowledgment standard terms and conditions to require credit purchasers who re-sell 
their credits on the open market to evenly split any profit with the City gained from the sale, 
and to require payment of credit purchases within 90 days of the City’s execution of the 
purchase agreement.

2. Established a minimum balance of habitat credits to be reserved solely for future municipal 
projects allowing for the sale of all remaining credits on the open market (Table #2 on Page 
4).

BACKGROUND:

Daley Ranch is a 3,058-acre site acquired and managed in perpetuity by the City for the preservation 
of a biologically unique and diverse habitat area of regional importance, while providing recreational 
and educational opportunities in a historically significant setting.  The State of California Department 
of Fish & Wildlife and the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service approved Daley Ranch as a Conservation Bank 
in 1997 with 2,842 habitat credits for use as off-site mitigation for five categories of species and 
habitat (Table #2 on Page 4, Column 1).  The Conservation Bank apportions 2,642 credits to the City 
of Escondido, and 200 credits to the former property owner, Shea Homes. 

Each “habitat” or “conservation” credit equals one acre of a specific category of species and habitat.  
The credits may be purchased in any fraction from the City for public and private projects from the 
Pacific Ocean to the inland mountain ranges, from the U.S./Mexico border to Riverside County.  A 
total of 509.34 habitat credits have been sold since Daley Ranch was established in 1997.



Daley Ranch Mitigation Bank Credits 
April 7, 2021
Page 3

Table #1: Habitat Credit Sale History
Calendar Year Credit Sales Credits Sold Revenue

2020-Present 1 0.52 $  29,016
2019 4 1.50 $105,570
2018 3 2.96 $147,832
2017 7 12.05 $201,400
2016 10 12.71 $295,405
2015 6 16.51 $223,000
2014 8 31.64 $497,831
2013 2 2.00 $  30,000
2012 4 17.27 $257,600
2011 2 2.59 $  38,850
2010 8 11.39 $173,950
2009 5 7.99 $  93,325
Totals 60 119.13 $2,103,779

12-year average 5 9.93 $175,315

Conservation credits are NOT Development Impact Fees.  Projects are only required to secure these 
credits if they must mitigate their impacts through the purchase of offsite habitat at an approved 
conservation bank, of which there are several in the region.  Daley Ranch is the only municipally 
operated conservation bank in the region; others are owned and managed by private and/or non-
profit agencies.  The eligibility of a development project anywhere in the region for use of Daley 
Ranch Conservation Credits is determined by the Resource Agencies on a case-by-case basis during 
the environmental review process for each project.

The process for purchasing Daley Ranch conservation credits is coordinated through the Planning 
Division.  A project’s environmental mitigation measure(s) will include the requirement to purchase 
conservation credits.  Daley Ranch credit prices vary by habitat category and are all-inclusive, 
including the management and restoration expenses.  City staff tracks the sale price and credit 
allocations with an executed Credit Purchase Agreement and Acknowledgement.  This information is 
also monitored by state and federal resource agencies.

Typically, the applicant will secure the credits during the post entitlement process prior to constructing 
the project.  After the purchase of habitat credits required for each project, applicants have no 
additional costs for on-going mitigation lands management.  See Table #2 on the following page for 
details on conservation credits, their original amounts, credits sold, and prices.



Daley Ranch Mitigation Bank Credits 
April 7, 2021
Page 4

Table #2: DALEY RANCH CONSERVATION BANK

Daley Ranch 
Habitat Type

Original 
Habitat 
Credits

Habitat 
Credits 
Sold to 

Date

Habitat 
Credits 

Reserved 
only for 
Future 

Municipal 
Projects

Remaining 
Habitat 

Credits for 
Sale

Column 2
minus 

Columns 3 
and 4 

Adopted 
Price per 

Credit

Remaining 
Credits if sold 

at Adopted 
Price

Column 5
multiplied by

 Column 6

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6 Column 7

Chaparral & Coastal 
Sage Scrub 2,098.00 269.90 50.00 1,778.10 $72,000 $128,023,200

Coast Live 
Oak Woodland 145.00 25.37 15.00 104.63 $54,000 $5,650,020 

Englemann 
Oak Woodland 79.00 4.20 5.00 69.80 $54,000 $3,769,200 

Water Dependent 
Habitat

15.00 4.00 4.00 7.00 $450,000 $3,150,000

Non-Native 
Grasslands

305.00 205.87 50.00 49.13 $52,875 $2,597,748.75

Totals 2,642.00 509.34 124.00 2,008.66 $143,190,168.75

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christopher McKinney, Deputy City Manager/Director of Utilities
04/01/21 9:21 a.m.

Mike Strong, Director of Community Development 
04/01/21 9:45 a.m.



Staff Report - Council

  Current Business Item No. 12                      April 7, 2021               File No. 0220-55

SUBJECT: American Rescue Plan Act Update

DEPARTMENT: Christina Holmes, Director of Finance

RECOMMENDATION:

Receive an update on the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, and provide preliminary policy 
comments.

FISCAL ANALYSIS:

The American Rescue Plan Act will provide the City of Escondido (“City”) an estimated one-time 
amount of $45 million to cover expenses, make up for lost revenue, and ease the overall economic 
impact from the COVID-19 pandemic.  All funds must be spent by December 31, 2024.  

BACKGROUND:

On March 11, 2021, President Joe Biden signed the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (“ARPA”), 
which contains $1.9 trillion in overall national spending to support relief and economic recovery 
efforts.  ARPA provides $350 billion in assistance to state, local, and tribal governments, of which $65 
billion is directly portioned to local governments.  This direct funding is allocated based on a modified 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) formula for those cities considered to be an 
entitlement community, generally defined as populations of 50,000 or more.  The current estimated 
allocation to Escondido is $45 million.   

The money received from the ARPA will not address the City’s structural budget gap because it is not 
an ongoing source of revenue. Funds should be treated as one-time money. Moreover, the amount of 
the ARPA funds ($45 million) is less than 25% of the total estimated shortfall ($220 million) which the 
City will confront over the next 20 years.

As noted below, City staff, as with other cities, are awaiting additional guidance from the United 
States Department of the Treasury as to the specific and permissible purposes for expending funds.  
However, based simply on the language in the Act itself, the funding is to be used for various relief 
programs due to the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, and eligible uses of these funds include: 

 To respond to the COVID-19 emergency and address the negative economic impacts of 
COVID-19, including economic recovery, assistance to small businesses, households, non-
profits, and hard-hit industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality, 

 Revenue replacement for the provision of government services to the extent of the reduction in 
revenue due to the COVID-19 public health emergency, relative to revenues collected in the 



American Rescue Plan Act Update
April 7, 2021
Page 2

most recent fiscal year prior to the emergency,  

 Provide premium pay for essential workers or grants to their employers (cannot exceed $13 
per hour or $25,000 per worker), 

 Investments in water, sewer, and broadband infrastructure 

The statute itself contains certain restrictions on the uses of these funds. Specifically, that state and 
local governments cannot use the funds to make pension payments.  The Treasury regulations may 
contain additional restrictions. Regular reports to the federal government regarding the use of funds 
will be required, including a detailed accounting of the use of funds.  

In addition to the funding that the City will be receiving, the ARPA also designates separate funding 
for recovery in specific industries including but not limited to restaurants, shuttered venues operators 
(i.e. the California Center for the Arts, Escondido), education, and healthcare. The guidance from the 
National League of Cities encourages cities to save local fiscal relief recovery funds for gaps and 
priorities not eligible for these other federal and state assistance programs. 

To receive the allocation of funds, all jurisdictions will be required to complete a certification process 
and agree that it will use any payment in compliance with the use of fund restrictions.  ARPA requires 
that the funds be released in two tranches, or portions – the first within 60 days of the enactment of 
the legislation, and the second no earlier than 12 months after the first payment.  Based on this 
timeline, the first portion of funds, 50% of the total amount allocated to the City, is expected to be 
received by June 2021.  All funds must be spent by December 31, 2024.  

The U.S. Treasury Department is responsible for the oversight of this funding and will be providing 
specific guidance on the program requirements and the eligible uses of funds not described in the 
statute.  As with previous COVID-19 relief packages, implementation will be an extensive process as 
new or updated guidance and FAQs are developed and released.  City staff are closely monitoring for 
the release of this additional guidance.  

As additional details on eligible expenditures and program requirements are provided by the U.S.  
Treasury Department, and after review of guidance from the National League of Cities, Cal Cities, 
and other jurisdictions, City staff will return to City Council for additional policy direction on a program 
to make the best use of these funds to benefit Escondido, including Council priorities and 
recommendations for the use of funds.   

PRIOR FEDERAL STIMULUS FUNDING:

It is anticipated that the range of options for use of this round of federal stimulus will be much broader 
than prior relief.  The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (“CARES”) Act signed last year 
provided $2.2 trillion in federal funds to respond to the COVID-19 emergency.  Under the CARES Act, 
the Treasury provided direct funding only to counties and municipalities with populations greater than 
500,000. All other funding was provided to states to distribute as they deemed appropriate.  



American Rescue Plan Act Update
April 7, 2021
Page 3

Escondido was allocated $1,889,210 from the State and $2,713,486 from the County of San Diego; a 
total of $4,602,696.   

The CARES Act required that the payments from this former stimulus only be used to cover expenses 
that: (1) were necessary expenditures incurred due to the public health emergency with respect to the 
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID–19); and (2) were not accounted for in the budget most recently 
approved as of March 27, 2020 (the date of enactment of the CARES Act).  All funds were required to 
be expended by September 30, 2020.    

The CARES Act funds were used by Escondido for payroll costs of personnel and services that were 
diverted to a substantially different use, such as Community Services staff delivering Senior Meals, as 
well as the costs incurred for public safety and public health employees who were substantially 
dedicated to mitigating or responding to COVID-19 public health emergency.  The funds were all also 
used to purchase personal protective equipment and the supplies needed to support public health 
and the measures undertaken in response to the emergency.  

Economic development and increasing the City’s technology capabilities to enhance teleworking and 
video conferencing availability were a priority for spending the remaining funds.  Equipment was 
purchased to support and improve the teleworking capabilities of staff.  In addition, $60,000 was 
allocated to the the Escondido Union School District for wireless hotspot equipment, and $40,000 was 
allocated to the Escondido Union High School District for the purchase of student electronic devices. 
To support the City’s business community, $1.0 million in grants were awarded to 103 local 
businesses.    

Additionally, the CARES Act also included funds for the Community Development Block Grant 
(“CDBG-CV”) program and for the Emergency Solutions Grant (“ESG-CV”) program to “prevent, 
prepare for and respond to the coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19”).”  The City received $2,394,882 
in CDBG-CV funds and $4,487,427 in ESG-CV funds; a total of $6,882,309.  

Activities funded with CDBG-CV or ESG-CV were required to: 1) be consistent with a jurisdiction’s 
Consolidated Plan, 2) must assist low- and moderate-income individuals (CDBG-CV) or individuals 
and families who are homeless or are at risk of homelessness (ESG-CV), and 3) must prevent, 
prepare for, or respond to COVID-19 (CDBG-CV/ESG-CV).

Through previous amendments to the City’s Annual Action Plan, City Council approved the use of the 
grant funding to support multiple programs within the City including the Senior Nutrition program, 
Meals on Wheels of San Diego County, the Legal Aid Society of San Diego for eviction prevention 
support, rental and utility assistance programs, homelessness prevention and outreach programs, the 
Rapid Rehousing program, and Emergency Shelter program.  



American Rescue Plan Act Update
April 7, 2021
Page 4

 CONCLUSION

Staff encourages feedback from the City Council regarding the most appropriate expenditures of 
ARPA funds as a starting point for determining specific expenditure recommendations and will return 
following additional guidance on permissible uses of the funds. 

APPROVED AND ACKNOWLEDGED ELECTRONICALLY BY:
Christina Holmes, Director of Finance
04/01/21 9:10 a.m.



Current Business Item No. 13 April 7, 2021

APPOINTMENT AND DIRECTION 
REGARDING A HOUSING 

SUBCOMMITTEE, AND RELATED 
DETAILS SUCH AS SCOPE, 

DURATION, AND STAFF 
SUPPORT- 

No materials available. Council 
discussion only. 



- 1 -

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 
Updated April 1, 2021 

AGENDA ITEMS AND CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE.
CHECK WITH THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AT (760) 839-4617

April 14, 2021 -
CANCELLED

April 21, 2021 
5:00 p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
Bid Award for the Skate Spot Construction Project
(D. Lopez)

It requested that the City Council approve the awarded bid for the Skate Spot Construction Project.

Approval of the FY2020-21 Traffic Signal Priority List for New Traffic 
Signals and for Signal Modification Projects
(J. Procopio)

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-36 approving the FY 2020-21 Traffic Signal 
Priority List for new traffic signal projects and for modification of existing traffic signals, as recommended by 
the Transportation and Community Safety Commission.  Established ranking criteria, including accident data 
and delay, has been used to set the order of priority for signal projects that will be budgeted as a part of the 
Capital Improvement Program.

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Public Hearing for the City of Escondido Landscape Maintenance District 
Zones 1 through 38
(J. Procopio)

The City Council has previously approved the Preliminary Assessment Engineer’s Report Zones 1 through 38 
with Resolution No. 2021-19.  It is requested that the City Council hold a public hearing to receive input on 
the levy of the proposed annual assessments for the City of Escondido Landscape Maintenance District (LMD) 
Zones 1 through 38.

Public Hearing and Adoption of the Updated Traffic Impact Analysis 
Guidelines
(J. Procopio)

It is requested that the City Council hold a public hearing and approve Resolution No. 2021-47 adopting the 
Traffic Impact Analysis Guidelines.



- 2 - 
 

One-Year Action Plan for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Home Funds for 
Affordable Housing Activities, CDBG Funds for Community Development 
Programs and Projects, and ESG Funds for Homeless Priorities
(M. Strong)

It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 2021-50 approving Fiscal Year 2021-2022 HOME, 
CDBG, and ESG budget and allocation to projects.  It is requested that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 
2021-51 approving the City of Escondido's One Year Action Plan and approving the submittal to HUD. This is a 
required hearing for the Annual Action Plan for allocating federal HOME, CDBG, and ESG funds for projects 
and programs.  

CURRENT BUSINESS 
Single-Use Plastics Policy
(P. McNamara)

At the March 10, 2021 City Council meeting, Mayor McNamara requested that the City Council consider 
including a Single-Use Plastics Policy in the Climate Action Plan.

Mountain View Park Update
(D. Lopez)

It is requested that the City Council receive the update on the Mountain View Park Survey, the Field House 
historic assessment, and the business proposal to place a vineyard on the knoll area of the park.

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

April 28, 2021 NO MEETING (Spring Break) 
 

May 5, 2021 NO MEETING (Spring Break) 



April 7, 2021

CITY MANAGER’S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT

 Please refer to the City’s website at
https://www.escondido.org/latest-news-from-the-city-
managers-office.aspx


	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. AFFIDAVITS OF PUBLICATION, MAILING AND POSTING (COUNCIL/RRB)
	2. APPROVAL OF WARRANT REGISTER (Council)
	3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: None Scheduled
	4. ANNUAL STATE MANDATED INSPECTION COMPLIANCE REPORT - 
	Resolution 2021-29 
	Exhibit A - R2021-29

	5. AUTHORIZATION OF ESRI ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT -
	Resolution No. 2021-39 
	Exhibit A - R2021-39 

	6. SUNRISE PROJECT TRAFFIC MITIGATION AGREEMENT -
	Resolution No. 2021-41 
	Exhibit A - Resolution No. 2021-41 

	7. CONTRACT RENEWAL FOR THE PURCHASE OF CHEMICALS FOR THE WATER AND WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANTS  -
	Resolution No. 2021-46 
	Exhibit A - R2021-46 

	8. AUTHORIZATION OF PARTICIPATION AGREEMENT, EASEMENT, AND PLOT PLAN APPROVAL -
	Attachment 1 
	Attachment 2 
	Resolution No. 2021-52 
	Exhibit A -  R2021-52 Agreement
	Exhibit B - R2021-52 - Easement
	Exhibit C - R2021-52 - Plans and Exhibits 
	Exhibit D - R2021-52 - Conditions of Approval 
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7

	Exhibit E - R2021-52 - Findings of Fact
	Exhibit F - R2021-52 - Notice of Exemption


	CURRENT BUSINESS
	9. APPROVAL OF CITY MANAGER AGREEMENT AND AMENDMENT TO EXISTING CITY MANAGER RETIREE APPOINTMENT AGREEMENT   
	Resolution No. 2021-49
	Exhibit A - R2021-49 
	Resolution No. 2021-52
	Exhibit A - R2021-52 

	10. APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) BETWEEN THE CITY OF ESCONDIDO AND THE US SOCCER FOUNDATION RELATED TO THE INSTALLATION OF TWO MINI-PITCH/FUTSAL COURTS IN WASHINGTON PARK 
	Attachment 1 
	Resolution No. 2021-54 
	Exhibit A - R2021-54

	11. DALEY RANCH MITIGATION BANK CREDITS - 
	12. AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT UPDATE -
	13. APPOINTMENT AND DIRECTION REGARDING HOUSING SUBCOMMITTEE, AND RELATED DETAILS SUCH AS SCOPE, DURATION AND STAFF SUPPORT -

	14. FUTURE AGENDA
	FUTURE AGENDA - 

	CITY MANAGER'S WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT
	WEEKLY ACTIVITY REPORT - 




